
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

4 

E 

E 

1 i  

1E 

1: 

2( 

21 

2; 

2: 

2r 

2! 

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
BEFORE THE KENTUCKY STATE BOARD ON 

ELECTRIC GENERATION AND TRANSMISSION SITING 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

THE APPLICATION OF ESTILL COUNTY 
ENERGY PARTNERS, LLC FOR A 
CERTIFICATE TO CONSTRUCT A COAL 
COMBUSTION/ELECTRIC GENERATING 
FAC I L I TY 

CASE NO. 2002-00172 

AUG 3 1 2004 

TRANSCRIPT OF EVIDENCE 

DATE OF HEARING: August 24, 2004 

1 

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

22 

24 

25 

e 

APPEARANCES 

BOARD MEMBERS: 
MARK DAVID GOSS, CHAIRMAN 
ELLEN C. WILLIAMS, VICE CHAIRWOMAN 
W. GREGORY COKER 
LAJUANA S. WILCHER 
J. R. WILHITE 
JUDGE WALLACE TAYLOR 
JOHN M. ST. CLAIR, JR. 

HON. A. W. TURNER, COUNSEL FOR SITING BOARD STAFF 

COUNSEL FOR ESTILL COUNTY ENERGY PARTNERS, LLC: 
HON. STEPHEN H. WATTS, I1 
MCGUIREWOODS LLP 
ONE JAMES CENTER 
901 EAST CARY STREET 
RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 23219-4030 

HON. JOSEPH G. TIRONE 
MCGUIREWOODS LLP 
7 SAINT PAUL STREET, SUITE 1000 
BALTIMORE, MARYLAND 21202-1671 

HON. LISA E. UNDERWOOD PLC 
314 HOLIDAY ROAD 
LEXINGTON, KENTUCKY 40502 

COUNSEL FOR DLX, INC. AND 

HON. WAYNE F. COLLIER 
KINKEAD & STILZ 
NATION CITY PLAZA 
301 EAST MAIN STREET, SUITE 800 
LEXINGTON, KENTUCKY 40507-1520 

HARRY LAVIERS, JR., TRUSTEE: 

COUNSEL FOR WILL HERRICK: 
HON. THOMAS J. FITZGERALD 
KENTUCKY RESOURCES COUNCIL 
P.O. BOX 1070 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40602 

2 
~~ 

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

a 

9 

i o  

11 

i 

P 
L 

4 

1E 

1€ 

l i  

1 t  

1s 

2( 

2' 

2: 

2: 

21 

2! 

I N D E X  

Appearances 
Discussion 

GERARD B. MACK 
Direct Examination by Mr. Watts 
Cross Examination by Mr. Collier 
Cross Examination by Mr. FitzGerald 
Cross Examination by Mr. Turner 
Examination by Secretary Wilcher 
Examination by Chairman Goss 
Redirect Examination by Mr. Watts 
Recross Examination by Mr. Collier 
Examination by Chairman Goss 
Recross Examination by Mr. FitzGerald 
Recross Examination by Mr. Collier 
Redirect Examination by Mr. Watts 
Discussion 

DELL JAGGERS 
Direct Examination by Mr. Watts 
Cross Examination by Mr. Collier 
Cross Examination by Mr. FitzGerald 
Examination by Chairman Goss 
Cross Examination Continued by Mr. FitzGerald 
Cross Examination by Mr. Turner 
Redirect Examination by Mr. Watts 
Recross Examination by Mr. Collier 
Recross Examination by Mr. FitzGerald 
Redirect Examination by Mr. Watts 

DONALD GREGORY LAVIERS 
Direct Examination by Mr. Collier 
Cross Examination by Mr. Watts 
Cross Examination by Mr. Turner 
Redirect Examination by Mr. Collier 
Examination by Chairman Goss 

PAGE NO. 
2 
5-36 

36-44 
46-79 
79-119 
119-131 
131-132 
133-138 
139 
140-143 
143 
144-148 
149-155 
155-156 
156-160 

160-161 
162-205 
206-217 
217-218 
218-219 
219-235 
235-241 
241-242 
242-244 
245 

246-248 
248-250 
250-251 
251-263 
265 

(INDEX CONTINUED TO PAGE 4) 

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

22 

24 

25 

a 

I 4 

I N D E X (CONTINUED) 
PAGE NO. 

HARRY LAVIERS, JR. 
Direct Examination by Mr. Collier 
Cross Examination by Mr. Watts 
Cross Examination by Mr. FitzGerald 
Redirect Examination by Mr. Collier 

WILLIAM STUYVESANT HERRICK 
Direct Examination by Mr. FitzGerald 
Cross Examination by Mr. Watts 
Discussion 

DELL JAGGERS (RECALLED) 
Rebuttal Examination by Mr. Watts 

266-267 
267-270 
271 
272-273 

274-275 
275-277 
277-281 

282-301 

301-305 Discussion 

Reporter’s Certificate 306 

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



E 

1c 

11 

1; 

1: 

1 L  

I t  

1f 

1; 

1I 

l! 

21 

2 

2: 

2: 

2, 

2 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Good morning. 

Commonwealth of Kentucky before the Kentucky State 

Board on Electric Generation and Transmission Siting in 

the matter of the application of Estill County Energy 

Partners, LLC for a certificate to construct a coal 

combustion/electric generating facility, Case No. 2002- 

00172. My name is Mark David Goss. 

the Kentucky State Board on Electric Generation and 

Transmission Siting. 

are my fellow Board members. 

we're a little bit cramped up here. This is a bench 

that's meant for three people and there's seven of us 

up here, so we may be elbowing each other during the 

course of this, so please forgive us. Let me introduce 

the Board members, if I may. The Vice Chair of the 

Siting Board is Ellen Williams, who is also Vice Chair 

of the Public Service Commission. Ellen is seated 

right there. Greg Coker, who is seated right here, is 

Commissioner of the Public Service Commissioner and 

also a statutory member of the Siting Board. Then we 

have Secretary LaJuana Wilcher, seated to my left, who 

is the Secretary of the Environmental and Public 

Protection Cabinet. We have J. R. Wilhite right next 

to me. J. R. is the Kentucky Commissioner of Community 

We'll be on the record in the case of 

I am Chairman of 

Seated to my left and to my right 

As you all can tell, 
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Development and is the designee of Secretary Gene 

Strong, who is the Secretary of the Economic 

Development Cabinet. 

Taylor, who is the County Judge Executive for Estill 

County, Kentucky, and seated to my far left is Mr. John 

St. Clair, who is an ad hoc member, along with Judge 

Taylor, who is a citizen and businessman in Estill 

County. This matter was formally initiated on June 10, 

2004 when the applicant, Estill County Energy Partners, 

LLC, by and through its counsel, Honorable Lisa 

Underwood, filed its application for a certificate to 

construct a merchant electric generating facility with 

this Board. Soon thereafter, a procedural Order was 

entered, setting out certain deadlines which the 

parties were to follow in order to comply with the 

mandates set forth pursuant to KRS 278.700 et seq. 

Included in that Order was a site visit to the location 

of the proposed construction site of this facility, 

which occurred on August 2, 2004. A public hearing was 

then held on August 5, 2004 at the Estill County 

Courthouse where the Board heard public comment 

regarding the application. 

the process where a formal hearing on the application 

is to occur and that, of course, is why we are here 

today. 

Seated to my far right is Wallace 

We are now at the point in 

Prefiled direct testimony of the parties' 
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witnesses is before the Board and the purpose of this 

hearing is to formally receive that testimony and to 

afford the parties an opportunity to cross examine all 

witnesses. Of course, the Board will not issue its 

decision at the conclusion of the proof today but 

rather will receive simultaneous briefs of the parties 

and issue a decision on or before the statutory 

deadline of October 12, 2004. At this point in time, 

I'd like to take appearances of counsel, and we'll 

start with the applicant. Ms. Underwood, we'll start 

with you and then go from there. 

UNDERWOOD : 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'm Lisa Underwood for Estill 

County Energy Partners, and with me today are Stephen 

Watts and Joe Tirone. 

MR. WATTS: 

Good morning. I'm Stephen Watts. I'm in the Richmond 

office of McGuire Woods. My partner, Joe Tirone, 

beside me is in our Baltimore office. We are very 

pleased to be here today. 

opportunity to appear before you. 

that I'm particularly pleased because my son just 

graduated from the University of Kentucky this summer, 

and so, having written a number of out-of-state tuition 

checks, I feel like I've made a contribution to the 

I might say - to have the 

I might say also 
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economy of your Commonwealth. 

be here. 

So I'm very pleased to 

VICE CHAIRWOMAN WILLIAMS: 

We appreciate that. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Thank you very much. 

MR. WATTS: 

Also, at the conclusion of the introductions or 

appearances of counsel, I have a preliminary matter I'd 

like to bring before the Board. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. Thank you, gentlemen, very much. 

MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

For the intervenors, DLX, Inc. and Harry LaViers, Jr., 

Trustee? 

MR. COLLIER: 

Wayne Collier on their behalf, and I would note that I 

have filed a motion to dismiss on jurisdictional 

grounds. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. 

minutes. For Mr. Will Herrick, intervenor? 

We'll take that up here just in a few 
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MR. FITZGERALD: 

Tom F i t z G e r a l d ,  M r .  Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Good morning, M r .  F i t z G e r a l d ,  

CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

For  t h e  S t a f f ?  

MR. TURNER: 

May it p l e a s e  t h e  Board, A .  W 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

, Turne r  w i t h  t h e  S t a f f .  

Thank you, M r .  T u r n e r .  A l l  r i g h t .  L e t ' s  go o v e r  j u s t  

a few ground r u l e s ,  if w e  may, p r i o r  t o  b e g i n n i n g  t h e  

h e a r i n g .  F i r s t ,  s o r t  o f  a p e t  peeve  I have  i s  w i t h  

regard t o  c e l l  phones .  C e r t a i n l y  I have  no problem 

w i t h  p a r t i e s  h a v i n g  c e l l  phones and  h a v i n g  them on, b u t  

I would r e q u e s t  t h a t  t h o s e  c e l l  phones ,  i f  you have  

them on, would be e i t h e r  on s i l e n t  o r  on v i b r a t e .  

i f  you get a c a l l ,  you can  go o u t s i d e  and  ge t  i t .  

C e r t a i n l y ,  i f  one of  t h e  a t t o r n e y s  gets  a c a l l ,  t h a t ' s  

n o t  a good t h i n g .  

l i t t l e  b i t  l a t e r ,  maybe d u r i n g  t h e  break o r  someth ing ,  

b u t  anyone i n  t h e  a u d i e n c e  t h a t  h a s  a c e l l  phone I ' d  

a s k  you t o  t u r n  t h e  r i n g e r  o f f .  

b r e a k .  I t ' s  a b o u t  t e n  a f t e r  t e n .  W e  may n o t  have  a 

break t h i s  morning, b u t ,  i f  i t  goes  i n t o  t h e  a f t e r n o o n ,  

w e ' l l  t r y  t o  have a b r e a k  m i d a f t e r n o o n .  There  are  

So, 

We'll  a s k  you t o  t a k e  t h e  c a l l  a 

W e  w i l l  t r y  t o  have  a 
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meeting rooms available throughout the PSC offices 

here. 

room right outside the door. 

meet with any of the litigants or witnesses or parties 

during a break, please feel free to do so, and, if you 

can't find a room, just ask one of the folks out front 

and whoever is out there will lead you to an empty 

room. With regard to posthearing data requests, 

because we're all sort of operating on a short leash 

here in terms of trying to meet the statutory deadline, 

I would request and it will be the order of the Board 

that any posthearing data requests will need to be 

completed and filed no later than August 31, 2004. 

Certainly, if there's some extraordinary or extenuating 

circumstance which any of the parties need to bring to 

the attention of the Board with regard to some data 

request response, we'll take that up at the appropriate 

time. Procedurally, I think, under the regulations, 

there is a seven-day briefing rule. However, I 

understand that, because of certain issues, the 

parties, I think, are prepared to waive that seven-day 

rule and the briefing schedule, the briefing dead- 

line, that's set forth in the procedural Order of 

September 7, 2004 is the briefing schedule that the 

parties will agree to abide by. 

Certainly there's a pretty good size conference 

If any of you all need to 

Am I correct in that 
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belief? 

MR. WATTS: 

Yes. 

MR. TURNER: 

Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yes. 

MR. TURNER: 

As a default, yes, I think that's September 7th. 

think we might at the end of the hearing ask the 

Court Reporter when she might be able to have a 

transcript . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. 

MR. TURNER: 

I 

. . . and, if that crowds us, then that September 7th 
could conceivably be moved some. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

All right. 

MR. TURNER: 

But September 7th ought to be the default, 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I believe. 

All right. I'll ask you to remind me of Liat, please, 

Mr. Turner, before we all leave. As I said, a public 

hearing was held in this matter on August 5, 2004 down 

1 1  
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in Irvine and, as such, the Board will not be taking 

any sort of live public comment at the hearing today. 

However, certainly, if any member of the public wishes 

to offer any posthearing comments, you are welcome to 

do that in writing and you may submit those to us here 

at the Public Service Commission. You can go to our 

web site and do it by e-mail if you want to. If you 

want to do it in writing, just mail it to us or bring 

it to Mr. Turner, or Mr. Melnykovych, or someone here 

at the PSC and we'll be happy to accept those. Now, 

with regard to order of proof, it is my intention, 

since the - of course, the Estill County Energy 

Partners are the applicant so they carry the burden. 

They will go first, followed by the intervenors, DLX, 

Inc. and Harry LaViers, Jr., Trustee, followed by Will 

Herrick, intervenor, and, lastly, the Staff. Now, 

let's take up any outstanding motions or housekeeping 

matters that the parties wish to bring to the attention 

of the Board. 

MR. WATTS: 

Thank you, sir, if I may be heard. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yes, sir. 

MR. WATTS: 

As I indicated when I was up earlier, I did have 
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something to bring before the Board and I'd like to do 

that now, if I can. 

called the real estate dispute, those issues that have 

been presented to you. As I believe you're aware, 

Estill County Energy Partners proposes to develop and 

construct its electric generation facility on a site o 

approximately 620 acres in Estill County, Kentucky 

which will be leased from an affiliate, Fox Trot 

Properties, LLC, which has contracted to acquire that 

property out of the Kentucky Processing Company 

It does relate to what might be 

bankruptcy. That much I think you're aware. Mr. Harry 

LaViers and a company called DLX have filed a motion to 

intervene in this proceeding and also direct testimony, 

and they have asserted some competing claims to a 

portion or portions of the site, and I'd like to talk 

just a moment about those portions just so we can 

understand what we're referring to. There are, as I 

understand it anyway, three pieces of property that 

have been referred to. One is the Sandhill property, 

and I'd like to just make clear that that property is 

not included within the 620 acres of the site. It's 

across the Kentucky River. There is no litigation that 

I'm aware of with respect to that site. So I just 

wanted to sort of put that in context. That's not 

within the area that's being claimed for as the site. 
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The second piece of property or properties that I 

understand to be involved is called the Calla 

Subdivision and it is within the site, but it's in the 

area of the coal waste piles from which coal would be 

reclaimed for combustion in the facility, and there is 

no litigation that I'm aware of, no formal claim that's 

been made or litigation pending with respect to that 

piece of property. 

And then, finally, there is . . . 
So I wanted you to understand that. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

Okay. Let me stop you, sir. 

MR. WATTS: 

Yes. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

So you're saying the Calla Subdivision part is not in 

dispute in terms of the title? 

MR. WATTS: 

It appears to be in dispute in the sense that I 

understand the LaViers Trust to claim some rights in 

it. What I want you to understand is there is no 

pending litigation with respect to such a claim that 

I'm aware of, and I just wanted to make that clear. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

And that includes in the bankruptcy proceeding? 
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MR. WATTS: 

That's correct. That's correct. That's my 

understanding, and then there is what has been referred 

to as the refuse pile - we refer to it as the river 

pile - property and that is claimed by, or some 

ownership rights in that property are claimed by DLX, 

and it is that property which is the subject of the 

litigation in bankruptcy court, as I understand it, and 

that, of course, is within the site as well. Mr. Jerry 

Mack, who is one of our witnesses, who is the Project 

Manager, can actually explain this in more detail than 

I can. I just wanted to sort of set that stage for you 

so that you can appreciate what these properties are. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Do you have any idea, roughly, and I'm sure the 

gentleman that you spoke of will tell us more, but 

about how many acres are we talking about? 

MR. WATTS: 

I prefer if you directed that question to him. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. Okay. 

MR. WATTS: 

So Mr. LaViers, as a Trustee, and DLX have argued in 

their motion to intervene and also in their direct 

testimony, and we agree with this, that this Board does 
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not have the jurisdiction nor should it attempt to 

decide the merits of these disputes. Obviously, one of 

them is actually pending before the bankruptcy judge 

here in Kentucky, and so we don't - we agree with them 

with respect to that, as we indicated in response to 

their motion to intervene, and you ruled to that effect 

on July 23 in your Order in response to our filing, and 

we think that's appropriate and an accurate statement 

of the law. So the question then arises how should the 

Board approach this issue as it considers the 

application, and so, in preparation for this hearing, 

we had sort of focused on trying to provide an approach 

that we thought could work, and we were going to submit 

that to you and will submit that to you, but let me 

come back to that in just a minute. We were packing up 

this morning to come over here and found that a motion 

to dismiss has been at least prepared. I don't know 

whether it's been filed or not. It hit the fax machine 

of Ms. Underwood at a quarter to midnight last night, 

so we found it this morning. We haven't had much of a 

chance to review it this morning, but I think it 

provides even more impetus for a solution, and we 

believe we have that, but I have to say - I'm not going 

to respond to it in detail right now - obviously, I 

haven't had time to do that - but it is a remarkable 

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

s 

I C  

11 

1; 

1: 

1 L  

I t  

1t 

1- 

1I 

l !  

21 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

document, and it says three things, as I read it. The 

first is that the Board can't decide the real estate 

ownership issue that's been raised by the parties, 

least if you're going to decide it adverse to them. 

They say you can't do that. Then it says you must, 

however, decide on the merits in their favor. That's a 

remarkable contravention of their argument that you 

don't have jurisdiction, but they say you can decide it 

and, in fact, must decide it in their favor, but you 

cannot decide it against them, and then they say, if 

at 

you don't grant the motion, that the members of the 

Board, as I read the motion, are personally, jointly, 

and severly liable for damages if you don't grant the 

motion and don't decide the issue in their favor. I 

consider that to be a remarkable document. As I said, 

I'm not going to respond to it now except to say that 

it is without merit and it should be dismissed. But, 

returning to the solution that we believe we have, 

have developed a condition which will address the 

concerns of the opponents and also allow this 

proceeding to go forward in an orderly manner in a way 

in which we're not trying to argue about deeds for the 

we 

next two weeks, which I think is not something this 

Board either should desire to do or I think has 

jurisdiction to do. So we've developed a condition 
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that we are going to propose to you, and I'd like to 

put it in front of you at this point, but what it would 

do is, and I'll read it, it says - it would say that, 

"A boundary survey shall be obtained and recorded in 

the Estill County Clerk's Office by ECEP or an 

affiliate of ECEP as lessor to ECEP for the real 

property upon which ECEP will construct the facility 

and upon which on-site waste coal will be mined as a 

fuel source for the facility," and what that would do 

is provide that, in the unlikely event that the 

opponents are successful in their claims, either in 

litigation or otherwise, that that portion of the site, 

to the extent that they were successful, would not be 

included and could be excluded in the survey that would 

be filed. So their rights would be protected. At the 

same time, the applicant would be able to proceed with 

its project, and so everybody's interests would be 

served by that. So I'd like to put this in front of 

you. Mr. Mack can answer questions about it, to the 

extent that you have them, but it's intended to try to 

address the situation that's been created by these real 

estate claims, and I hope it will be helpful. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, isn't a delineation of the boundaries something 

that's required to be in the application on its face? 
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MR. WATTS: 

Well, the application contains such a description of 

the property, which is what's actually required, and it 

describes - there are a couple of different exhibits 

that have been provided which do provide the boundaries 

of the property as we understand them to be, and so our 

point is that, to the extent that there's some question 

about that, then we believe this condition would - it 

might be a revised boundary survey, but it would be a 

survey that would accompany a legal document that would 

be filed at the Clerk's Office. So I hope that's an 

approach that would be helpful, and we'd be happy to 

hand this out to you and to the parties. It's very 

short. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. Mr. Collier, I presume you have something 

you want to say to the Board. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Right. I was waiting to hear how that was a motion. I 

think it was a response to the motion that my parties 

filed and trying to get ahead of it. I realize that it 

won't be possible for the Board to consider the motion 

today, but it was tendered so that it would be in the 

record prior to the holding of this hearing. However, 

I think that there are several things that are simply 
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not correct about the applicant's position. 

everyone would readily admit that this body is not 

going to sit as a court and adjudicate real estate 

matters; that's a given, but there is a threshold 

question that every Board, whether it's a Board of 

Adjustment, a Zoning Board, the Public Service 

Commission, the Siting Board, any other Board that 

meets to discuss matters that concern real estate, must 

deal with and that is the threshold question of whether 

the applicant, for whatever right that they seek from 

the governmental body, has to make some sort of prima 

facie showing to show that they're entitled to invoke 

the Board's jurisdiction and have relief granted to 

them that will affect the real property. In this 

particular case, what ECEP wants to do is to construct 

a power plant and mine refuse coal and other coal from 

these properties and possibly from other properties. 

As it turns out, and I haven't been able to ask these 

questions yet, it turns out that the plant site - and 

I've gone around and looked at the maps that are on the 

walls throughout this room - you will see that the 

property that DLX currently has record title to - 

record title, not some sort of claim or anything else, 

record title, has a deed - is actually the place where 

this plant is proposed to be built. 

I think 

This is no small 
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matter and not, as they said in their application or in 

their responses to the data requests, that it's a small 

portion of the property. In acreage, it may not 

represent 50 percent, but, in fact, it is the key 

property in this application. Not only that, the best 

refuse coal and the coal that is closest to the site 

happens to be owned by DLX, so that granting a permit 

to construct is essentially a green light to ECEP or to 

Fox Trot, if you will. I haven't figured out exactly 

what the relationship is, because I haven't seen a 

lease or any other document that indicates what the 

true nature of the legal relationship is between these 

parties, but they want to go in and begin constructing 

something on property for which they have no legal 

title, which they have no color of title, only a claim. 

I mean, I could claim to own the building that we now 

occupy, but I'd have to have something more than good 

intentions and an idea in expectation of profit, and 

they propose to mine this coal. 

profound. There will be a structure that my client 

doesn't want on their property plus they propose to 

begin removing, depleting, the asset that is on one of 

the refuse piles. So these are very significant 

issues. What can the Board do about it without 

deciding the legal title? The burden is on the 

These changes will be 
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applicant to satisfy this Board that it has the 

requisite interest to entitle itself to the 

construction permit that they seek. Now, that was one 

of the reasons that I tried to get this in. I 

apologize. I've been on vacation, and the research was 

rather lengthy, but it turns out that other juris- 

dictions have considered these issues, and principally 

Kentucky actually has talked about - there's one case 

that talks about what you have to have, and they talk 

about legal rights, and they cite cases from other 

jurisdictions, one of which actually involves a power 

plant application in Rhode Island. Fortunately, for 

that applicant, the real land owner was part of the 

proceeding. It was a case of Dunham v. - whatever the 

body was in Rhode Island, but they said, as to the 

power plant that had nothing more than a bare option to 

purchase and no right to actually develop the plant, 

said they had no standing whatsoever to proceed. Their 

bacon was pulled out of the fire simply because the 

owner was present. In this case, the people who want 

to build it are trampling upon the rights of the owner, 

have caused them to, forced them to, attend the 

hearing, to expend legal fees and costs, and run the 

risk that a permit will be issued as to their property. 

DLX and the Trust vehemently oppose any of these acts, 
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vehemently oppose the granting of any permit on their 

property. 

satisfy that they are entitled to invoke this body's 

jurisdiction. 

should be made as to record title on their behalf. 

They can't do it. 

So the real question is their burden to 

So certain basic prima facie showing 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Where in the statute can you point me that it's the 

obligation of the Board to determine record title 

ownership? 

MR. COLLIER: 

Well, I've addressed that in two ways, and I realize 

there's - you're correct; there is nothing that has 

those precise words in the statute. What I have done 

is I have gone through and catalogued some of the 

places in the statutory enactments that require various 

things that have to do with legal title. For instance, 

more, it would seem, is required of adjoining 

landowners. You would have to establish, "I'm an 

adjoining landowner" before you can come in and entitle 

yourself to the protections they're afforded in notices 

to adjoining landowners. There are things in the 

statute that have to do, particularly with the power 

lines, under 278.714, you have to notify owners, you 

have to come up with a survey, etc. So there are 
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various references in it. If the Board should conclude 

that there are not sufficient references to require 

that on the face of the statutory scheme, it's perhaps 

unconstitutional unless those requirements are 

inferred, and what I've cited the court to is a case 

from Maine called Walsh v. City of Brewer where they 

say this: "When ... there is lacking a clear, 
affirmative and express provision to the contrary, such 

'title, right or interest' in the land is implicitly a 

valid precondition of 'standing' to be a proper 

'applicant' under the ordinances," and then they go on 

to give some public policy rationales which are fairly 

obvious. One, it prevents public agencies from 

spending time on applications which are just wishful 

thinking. If we were before a court of law, there 

would be questions of ripeness, standing, judi- 

ciability, and other concepts that would attend the 

discussion, but those are ways in which other courts, 

other jurisdictions have handled similar circumstances. 

It's such an obvious question that it's almost as 

though perhaps it was overlooked because one might 

presume that no one would come forward and say, "I'd 

like to build something over here on property that I 

don't own," but, if that actually occurs, there's got 

to be some protection for the people who actually own 
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the property or their rights are meaningless. 

that's the primary basis for the motion, and it's a 

burden they've got to satisfy, and you'll notice - I've 

gone through the application - there's not a single 

signed - there is no survey, signed or unsigned. There 

are no documents, title documents, which show any 

record title to the refuse pile tract, in particular, 

and, as to the exceptions that are contained in the 

deed that they say their, one day, lessor will one day 

get if the litigation results in a judgment, they say, 

"Copies of these deeds are attached to Question No. 11 

of the Board's First Data Request. Please note that 

certain exceptions and exclusions described in these 

deeds are not shown on Exhibit B," and one would wonder 

why not. If they're excepted in the deed, why don't 

they want to show them? Why are they claiming to own 

them? They go on to say, "However, Fox Trot Properties 

and ECEP believe that Fox Trot has valid rights to all 

the property shown on Exhibit B," with nothing more. 

That's not title; that's just a statement. It has no 

legal efficacy other than to perhaps constitute a 

slander of title against the rights my clients own. 

So 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

So does your client claim ownership to at least that 

portion of the property where the facility itself will 

- 
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be constructed, the turbines, and the stack, and the 

bed, and those sorts of things? 

MR. COLLIER: 

Yes. There is an overlay on this wall. I guess the 

Staff has prepared it from a variety of the maps. In 

fact, we had prepared one perhaps for use that has a 

bright yellow line on it, but it's remarkably similar 

to what they have prepared, and, if you go over and 

examine it, you'll see the bend in the river there. 

You can see it all the way over there in the 

photographic map. In that corner running from 

southwest to northeast is what I would call the refuse 

pile tract where the largest and best pile of coal 

refuse is. There's kind of a white spot that is a 

little bit to the southeast of that, and in that area 

is where ECEP proposes to construct the merchant power 

plant facility. That happens to be on the 

southeasternmost portion of the refuse pile tract. 

There is a specific exclusion in the deed from DLX to 

Kentucky Processing that describes that property. It's 

specifically stated that it's excluded. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

If you would, tell the Board what litigation there is 

currently pending, if any, with regard to title 

ownership of the disputed tracts. 
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MR. COLLIER: 

Kentucky Processing Company, which I mentioned earlier 

that had received this deed from DLX back in 1944, 

August 2nd, or whatever it is, went into bankruptcy, 

changed ownership. 

interest. Then that company and a series of related 

companies of Mr. Yates went into bankruptcy and have 

been in bankruptcy in the Eastern District for some 

period of time. 

Yates, or his family, or affiliated companies, or 

something, were interested in acquiring this tract and 

thought they were going to acquire the refuse pile 

tract which they own, so they investigated and found, 

in fact, that's what they were going to claim. 

filed an adversary proceeding to protect those rights. 

Chuck Yates bought an ownership 

DLX learned that it may be that Mr. 

So they 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

In bankruptcy? 

MR. COLLIER: 

In bankruptcy. Judge Lee has the case. In fact, that 

case has been tried. That case concerns not only the 

property but the access road from the public highway 

that you've seen that goes by the industrial park, down 

to the property, crosses the railroad and goes up. 

That case was tried in June of last year. It's been 

briefed. It's awaiting decision. They mentioned . . . 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Is that in the nature of a quiet title action or . . . 
MR. COLLIER: 

Actually, it was filed as a reformation which ended up 

of Fox Trot and KPC denying to reform the boundary 

lines, so that may or may not happen, as a matter of 

fact, and it's unclear because . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

So the issue is reformation of the deed, not an actual 

- an action to quiet title? 

MR. COLLIER: 

Actually, Fox Trot never pled that it had title or had 

acquired title, and the interesting thing is there I'm 

not sure how it can, because DLX filed a Notice of Lis 

Pendens prior to the auction. There was an 

announcement made prior to the auction, which was 

attended by Mr. Yates and his employees, stating the 

nature of the claim that DLX had and DLX had filed 

suit. So, if they bid, they bid with full knowledge 

that this was going on. But I want to make . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

So is there anything pending in Circuit Court in Estill 

County with regard to . . . 
MR. COLLIER: 

Nothing, nothing. 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

. . . title of this property? 
MR. COLLIER: 

One of the - no, there is not. The lis pendens was 

filed in the real estate record simply to give notice 

to those who may choose to examine the title that they 

would be on notice to go check the bankruptcy records 

and find out. That's provided by Kentucky statute, of 

course, but that's been done. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Interestingly, at the time it was made, and it seemed 

to me the inference was that somehow the Trust has not 

initiated any litigation for the inference that perhaps 

they are only now claiming to own the Calla Subdivision 

property. The reason no case has been filed is only 

when we got a copy of the application and saw these 

maps did we realize, especially with this statement 

that, even though are exceptions in the deed, Fox Trot 

is now going to claim those too. This was news to us. 

So we have busied ourselves with trying to make sure 

that there's no permit issued on the property, but that 

doesn't mean that an action will not be filed possibly 

in bankruptcy court with respect to those properties 
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either, because statements have now been made, contrary 

to the deed under which Fox Trot would have to take, 

that it now owns these properties which are 

specifically excluded in the deed. 

understand that either, and that is primarily their 

position. It does - it has to do with the threshold 

question of what interest must an applicant have, what 

must it demonstrate, to make a prima facie showing to 

entitle it to the relief that this Board can grant. 

So we don't 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I presume you'll brief that extensively. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Yes. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

All right. I would presume, Mr. Tirone, . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

Watts. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

You're Mr. Watts. I'm sorry. Mr. Watts? 

MR. WATTS: 

Yes. Thank you. Very briefly, - yes, to the extent 

that the Board would like to receive such briefing - 

just a couple of points. The first is the reference to 

the property on which the proposed facility itself, 

that is the generation facility, would be located, a 

- 

- 
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claim with respect to ownership about that is not in 

bankruptcy. That's not in litigation in the bankruptcy 

court. That has been asserted, to the extent it's been 

asserted, since that litigation. It's not involved in 

that litigation, no litigation pending with respect to 

that claim. So I wanted to make that clear. Secondly, 

I think it should be clear to the Board that whatever 

rights that DLX and LaViers Trust believe they have are 

fully protectable in court. 

assert whatever claims they have and receive a 

resolution of those claims as opposed to before this 

They can go to court and 

Board. Finally, I misspoke . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Court where? 

MR. WATTS: 

Well, apparently they may go back to the bankruptcy 

court with additional claims. They can go to circuit 

court and seek to quiet title. Whatever claims they 

may have, they have recourse in an appropriate forum. 

I misspoke apparently with respect to the Calla 

Subdivision. It's my understanding that there isn't 

minable coal in the Calla Subdivision, but I'd like for 

Mr. Mack to address that. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

Okay. 
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MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. I appreciate your time this morning. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Thank you. Let's hear from Mr. FitzGerald next. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Mr. Chairman, it is, I think, acknowledged by a1 I 

although A. W. can speak for himself, that you are not 

here to adjudicate the title dispute, but it seems that 

there are two different issues irrespective of whether 

or not DLX has any claim to this property. One of the 

threshold questions which is implicit in the statute is 

that this Board does not busy itself rendering advisory 

opinions for applicants who have no sufficient claim on 

a piece of a property to support construction of a 

merchant power plant; otherwise we would be endlessly 

entertaining applications from people who have no 

option, no deed, no claim, no contract to purchase. In 

all of the other cases that have come before this Board 

under the statute, and there are three that I'm aware 

of, and, fortunately or not, I participated in each of 

them, there was a deed or a contract to purchase which 

gave sufficient title to the applicant to be able to 

commit to the mitigating conditions, to be able to 

represent the boundaries and the distance of the 

exhaust stack, for example, from the property 
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boundaries. There is, I think, assumed that there is 

sufficient ability to control the property to support 

the application, and so I think that is one issue that 

needs to be demonstrated as part of the applicant's 

case in chief regardless of whether there is a disputed 

claim. The second is, and I think Mr. Collier pointed 

out, is that there is a prima facie showing of 

sufficiency, which is related to the first claim, that, 

where it is assailed by an intervenor, there is, I 

think, a slightly higher burden to show that there is a 

sufficient claim of title. Now, I would suggest that, 

and I know you're not going to entertain the motion to 

dismiss now, because it has just been filed, to go 

ahead and put all the proof on record, but I think it 

should be subject to posthearing briefing on the issue 

of whether they do, in fact, have standing to be 

applicants and then also whether, in light of the 

claim, they have made a prima facie showing of 

sufficiency of title. There's a third question, 

though, which is that the applicant is required not 

merely to provide, as counsel indicated, a description 

of the site but legal boundaries to the site, and that 

entails that there is a survey of some sort that is 

signed and certified, and I've not seen that. Now, it 

may be that it will be produced either as part of a 
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data request or as part of the applicant's case in 

chief, but I don't know that it's something that could 

be made a condition after the fact; rather, it is part 

of what makes a complete application that invokes the 

jurisdiction of this Board. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, certainly the setback - one of the requirements 

is there's a setback requirement contained in the 

statute that talks in terms of 1,000 feet, 2,000 feet 

from the boundary of an adjoining property owner, 

and . . . 
MR. FITZGERALD: 

Certainly, and there is - specifically, in the Site 

Assessment Report, they're required to provide, under 

278.708 (3) (a) 2., the legal boundaries of the proposed 

site, and your point is well taken; you can't define 

who the adjoining property owners are, you can't define 

your setbacks, unless you know what the legal 

boundaries are, and that requires a meets and bounds 

description, a legal survey, I believe, under Kentucky 

law, and I have not seen that. Perhaps that will be 

provided, but I think that is a condition precedent to 

a complete Site Assessment Report rather than something 

that can be supplied after the fact. 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Thank you, Mr. FitzGerald. Mr. Turner, do you have 

anything to add on behalf of the Staff? 

MR. TURNER: 

No, Your Honor. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I think I speak for all the Board when I say that, in 

the course of the posthearing briefs, this matter 

should be briefed very extensively. This is an issue 

that the Board takes very seriously and will take very 

seriously, and certainly we're plowing new ground here. 

This is the first one of these that I have presided 

over, and certainly I think Mr. FitzGerald is correct 

that the other two probably did involve more than just 

colorable title; it involved a lot more, and so I think 

that that matter does need to be briefed by the parties 

in addition to all the other issues that the Board must 

consider under 278.710. All right. So the ruling of 

the Board with regard to the motion to dismiss will be 

that the Board will take that motion under advisement 

and will consider the briefs and respective positions 

of the parties and a ruling on that motion will be part 

and parcel of the final decision with regard to the 

certificate that the Board enters. Do any of the Board 

members have any questions of any of the attorneys with 
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regard to what we've just heard? I've done most of the 

talking. Anybody? All right. Hearing none, are there 

any other housekeeping matters or any other motions 

that the Board needs to take up prior to receiving 

testimony? All right. Hearing none, then we'll begin 

with the applicant. Mr. Watts, you may call your first 

witness. 

MR. WATTS: 

Thank you, sir. I call Gerard Mack. 

WITNESS SWORN 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Please be seated. Mr. Watts, you may proceed, sir. 

MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. May I take a moment to get situated? 

Just a moment. 

The witness, GERARD B. MACK, after having been 

first duly sworn, testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. WATTS: 

Q. Would you please state your name, position of 

employment, and business address? 

A. My name is Gerard B. Mack. I am the Project Manager 

for Estill County Energy Partners, LLC. My business 

address is 121 Hermitage Road, Charlotte, North 

Carolina. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q .  

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Now, Mr. Mack, do you have in front of you six pages of 

typed questions and answers that purports to be the 

"Direct Testimony of Gerard B. Mack on Behalf of Estill 

County Energy Partners, LLC? 

I do. 

Was it prepared by you or under your direction? 

It was. 

Okay, and was this the direct testimony that you 

submitted for filing with the Board? 

Yes, it was. 

Okay, and was it prepared by you or under your 

direction? 

Yes. 

Okay. Do you have any corrections or additions to it? 

No, I do not. 

If you were asked these 

the same or substantial 

I would. 

questions, would you provide 

y the same answers? 

MR. WATTS: 

I'd like to have this identified, if that's the 

process, sir. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yes, sir. That's fine. 

MR. WATTS: 

Do you assign exhibit numbers, or do you just put 
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it all in the record? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yes, we do. We'll do Applicant Exhibit so on. 

We'll do Intervenor, and we'll designated which 

intervenor, and, if the Staff has any exhibits, 

which is doubtful, we'll call them Staff Exhibits. 

So we do number them. 

MR. WATTS: 

Okay. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Have you passed the witness for cross? 

MR. WATTS: 

Not quite yet. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Oh, I'm sorry. 

MR. WATTS: 

I have just a little bit of additional testimony 

that I'd like to proceed with, if I can. 

Q. Mr. Mack, are you familiar with the letters that were 

sent on August 6, 2004 and August 18, 2004 by John 

Gardner, TVA's Manager of Transmission Commercial 

Operations, in response to the Board's July 19, 2004 

letter on ECEP's interconnection arrangements? 

A. I am. 

Q. Thank you, and did you respond to TVA after seeing 
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their first letter? 

A. Yes, I did. I called John Gardner and then provided 

him copies of e-mails which were sent a little over a 

year ago during the interconnection evaluation process 

which clearly demonstrated that TVA had been copied on 

the documents and that part of the evaluation. 

Q. And why did you do that? 

A. Well, I was . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Excuse me just a minute. Mr. Watts, are we 

going beyond - are you asking him questions now 

that goes beyond the questions and answers in the 

prefiled direct? 

MR. WATTS: 

Yes, I am, and there's a reason for that. Because 

of a development since this testimony was 

prepared, there was something in the record that 

we wanted to clarify, and that's the purpose of 

this additional direct testimony. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Typically, we're limited to the prefiled direct. 

Do any of the parties have any problems or 

objections to going beyond that? Isn't that 

typically - isn't that correct, Mr. Turner? Is 

that in the Order? 
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MR. TURNER: 

That is typically the case, Your Honor. In this 

particular case, it was a Board letter that went 

and TVA professed not to know anything about the 

project. So, if that's the extent of the Q and 

A, . . .  
MR. WATTS: 

That is the purpose. 

MR. TURNER: 

. . . I think Staff believes that they ought to 
proceed. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. Okay. 

MR. WATTS: 

And that was the - the question that I just asked 

was the reason for doing this. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. I'm sorry to interrupt you, but I 

wanted to be fair to everybody. 

MR. WATTS: 

Oh, no. That's fine. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Go ahead. 

Q. Do you recall the question? Why did you take the 

actions that you just said you had taken? 
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A. I took the actions because the letter stated that TVA 

was not aware of our project. 

All right, and have you prepared copies of that e-mail 

correspondence? 

Q. 

A. I have. 

Q. Thank you. 

MR. WATTS: 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

We have prepared copies of the correspondence for 

submission to the record so that the record will 

include what TVA knew and when they knew it. 

Unfortunately, it's rather extensive. 

And could you identify what I've just handed out, sir? 

Yes. This book includes an e-mail that I sent to John 

Gardner at TVA on August loth, and it includes copies 

of the, I believe, five or six exhibits that were 

attached to that August 10th e-mail. 

And what were the attachments? What do the earlier 

e-mails do? 

Well, the earlier e-mails were the transmittal of 

things like meeting minutes, progress reports, interim 

and final results of thermal analyses, stability, short 

circuit, all of the work that was done during the 

interconnection evaluation that was performed by the 

Midwest Independent System Operator, MISO, and Kentucky 

Utilities. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Now, when was TVA first informed of the proposed ECEP 

interconnection? 

We had our first kick-off meeting for the evaluation on 

May 8th of 2003, and, at that kick-off meeting, I was 

there representing the project. KU was represented; 

East Kentucky Power Co-op was represented; and the MISO 

was represented, and we decided that, because they were 

adjoining systems, although not very close, that we 

would copy AEP and TVA on all the documentations and 

all the analyses that were performed. 

Why did you decide to include TVA and AEP? 

Well, we wanted to make sure that the results of the 

evaluation and the results of the studies were 

available to them and to give them an opportunity to 

participate in the evaluation work that was being done, 

to ask questions, to request further analyses, to 

provide their own analyses to us. 

Just for the record, you referred to MISO. Could you 

identify what that is? 

Sure. That's the Midwest Independent System Operator. 

And what information did MISO provide to TVA? 

Well, MISO provided the minutes of all of the meetings. 

They provided the progress reports from their 

evaluation. They provided all of the interim results 

to discuss. They provided the final results to 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

discuss, and, although it's not included in your book, 

because I didn't send it to John Gardner, they also had 

an opportunity to review several draft copies of the 

final report. 

Did TVA respond to MISO with any comments, questions, 

or suggestions concerning the interconnection 

evaluation? 

Not to my knowledge. 

Did TVA have opportunity to participate in the MISO and 

KU evaluations and to do their own corresponding 

studies at that time? 

They did. 

What additional information has TVA requested? 

Well, as a result of the e-mail that I provided to Mr. 

Gardner, they had originally asked me to fill out a 

generator interconnection form, which was totally 

inappropriate, because we're not requesting an inter- 

connection from TVA. They've since scaled down the 

request and what they're looking for is some of our 

output data and transformer data to perform their own 

thermal analysis. 

And the project will interconnect with KU; is that 

correct? 

That's right. 

Okay. Has ECEP satisfied the conditions of 
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KRS 278.706(2)(i) with the MISO interconnection and 

facilities evaluations and the Interconnection and 

Operating Agreement executed by MISO, KU, and ECEP and 

filed and accepted by the FERC? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. 

MR. WATTS: 

That's all I have on that. I appreciate you 

taking the time to do that, . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Thank you. All right. Mr. Collier? 

MR. WATTS: 

. . . but I hope that completes the record. 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I'm sorry. Did you move for admission of 

the . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

I would. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. Any objection? We're calling this 

Applicant 1, Connie? Have you marked it? 

COURT REPORTER: 

This six pages of testimony, was that going to 

be Exhibit l? 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

No. The testimony is prefiled and is already 

of record so that does not need to be formally 

admitted. The testimony doesn't. You can go 

through that with him, but we don't mark that as 

an exhibit. 

MR. WATTS: 

All right. What about the application, sir? Does 

that need to be separately identified? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

The application is a part of the record already 

and does not need to be made an exhibit. 

MR. WATTS: 

As well as the discovery responses, I mean, the 

data requests? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All of the data requests, yes. 

MR. WATTS: 

Okay. Thanks very much. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. So, hearing no objection, then, to the 

motion to admit Applicant Exhibit 1, let it be 

offered and admitted. 

APPLICANT EXHIBIT 1 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

Mr. Collier, you may cross, sir. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Thank you. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COLLIER: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Mr. Mack, looking at your testimony, you indicate that 

you have been in the power generation business for 25 

years, and I presume that your responsibilities have 

risen over time with your experience in the industry; 

correct? 

That's correct. 

With ECEP, how would you describe your job responsi- 

bilities? 

Well, my job title is Project Manager and, in my 

thinking, that's fairly descriptive. My responsibility 

is to coordinate all aspects of the development of the 

power generating station. 

All aspects then would include the acquisition of the 

real estate and real estate interests necessary for the 

completion of the project? 

Well, if you're referring to the acquisition of the 

real estate by Fox Trot Properties, LLC, that's not one 

of my responsibilities, no. 

That's not what I asked. I said real estate and real 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

estate interests. Doesn't ECEP plan to acquire some 

real estate or interests in real estate in this 

property to operate the plant? 

ECEP plans to lease real estate. 

All right, and, in connection with leasing real estate 

in your prior experience prior to ECEP, have you been 

involved in leasing real estate for the benefit of your 

employer ? 

Yes. 

Tell me what your understanding of the value of 

acquiring an interest in the property is to the 

project . 
Are you asking me to quantify something? 

Yes. How important is it to acquire an interest in 

real estate before you invest significant time, money, 

to build a plant? I don't know - in the particular 

situation, your past experience you've been involved, 

how important is it? 

Well, my experience has been that the final acquisition 

of real estate is essential for the completion of the 

financing of the power plant in the beginning of the 

construction. 

Would you, as Project Manager, advise ECEP to construct 

a plant if it did not own a valid interest in the real 

estate where the plant was to be constructed? 

47  

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



e 

0 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14  

15 

1E 

1' 

I I  

l !  

21 

2 

2; 

2: 

2s 

2 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Well, you asked if I would advise them. 

that you can build a power plant and secure financing 

if you don't have an interest in the property. 

And I would ask you the same question with respect to - 

you do plan to burn on-site coal and refuse coal, do 

you not, in the plant? 

We plan to burn on-site refuse coal. 

you mean by on-site coal. 

I don't know what you're going to call it. I say coal 

and refuse coal. 

Okay. 

So you do plan on burning . . . 
As long as it's the same thing, yes. 

But you're the engineer. 

Actually I'm the Project Manager. 

But you do have a degree in engineering, don't you? 

I do. 

All right. Now, some of the - you would also expect to 

have the requisite valid legal interest in this coal 

before you took it and burned it in this plant, 

wouldn't you? 

Yes. 

Does ECEP intend to acquire those interests? 

ECEP intends to enter into a lease with Fox Trot 

Properties that would provide for the ability to mine 

I don't think 

I don't know what 

That's why I'm asking you. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

the coal. 

What if Fox Trot Properties, LLC does not have the 

interests that you require? 

If Fox Trot Properties doesn't have the interests that 

we expect to receive through the lease, then obviously 

they can't provide us those interests through the 

lease. 

How much longer will you continue with this project if 

those interests do not become available? 

That's a real interesting question. I don't know that 

I can answer that. 

You wouldn't buy the plant, the machinery, the 

structure that's going to be constructed until you were 

certain that you had those rights, would you? 

Well, let me explain. I want to be responsive to your 

question, so let me explain the process. Prior to the 

purchase of the equipment for the power plant, we will 

have put all the various development components 

together, including property, and secure financing for 

the power plant. 

The reason I ask is I looked in your answers to the 

Staff's First Data Request and I believe that the 

response was that ECEP plans to begin construction in 

early 2005. That's just a few months away, and you 

have just said that you would not begin that 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

construction until you had assured yourself, on ECEP's 

behalf, that it had acquired valid interests in the 

real estate and in these refuse coal reserves that you 

intend to burn on site; correct? 

I'm not sure what you're asking me. Are you asking 

m e . . .  

Isn't that what you just said; you want to start 

construction in early 2005, but, as a precondition, 

ECEP wants to acquire valid interests in the real 

estate and in the coal that it intends to burn from the 

site? 

That's correct. 

What steps has ECEP undertaken to assure itself that 

it, in fact, has those rights? 

Could you rephrase that? Because I'm not sure - you're 

asking me the whole basket of development activities? 

What steps has ECEP taken to assure itsel that it has 

or will acquire the requisite rights in the real estate 

and the coal to be burned? 

Fox Trot Properties is the entity that is investigating 

the rights to the property and to the waste coal. That 

work is continuing. 

That's not my question. What is ECEP - you have just 

said that ECEP is going to take the lease. Who is 

going to own the power plant, the structure, the 
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Q. 
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A. 

Q. 
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Q. 
A. 

facility? 

The power plant will be owned by ECEP. 

How much is that plant projected to cost installed? 

The projections are about $150 million. 

All right. So you're going to spend, or somebody is 

going to spend, $150 million, and you're going to put 

it on a piece of real estate. What steps is ECEP 

taking to assure itself that its investment in this 

plant will be secure once it's placed on that real 

estate? 

Oh, I understand your question now. The steps that 

ECEP is taking to make sure that the power plant that's 

built on the site is supported by the property rights 

is that we are not going to start construction or not 

as those going to finance this plant until such time 

property rights are in hand. 

All right. So what steps, then, are you ta .ing on 

ECEP's behalf to investigate and acquire those property 

rights? 

We will be developing a lease between ECEP and Fox Trot 

Properties. 

Will you conduct a title examination? 

Yes. 

Have you conducted a title examination? 

I have not. 
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Q. Have you authorized someone on ECEP's behalf or has 

ECEP authorized someone on its behalf to conduct a 

title examination with respect to the properties that 

are the subject of this application? 

A. We have looked at the record titles in the Estill 

County Courthouse and used that information in 

preparation of the application. 

commissioned a title insurance company to provide us a 

binder, if that's what you're asking. 

Not quite. Have you had an attorney run the title to 

the property that is the subject of this application? 

We have not 

Q. 

A. I can't tell you directly that we have . . . 
Q. Well, you don't know . . . 
A. I'm sorry. Go ahead. 

Q. Have you retained an attorney to run the title to this 

property? 

A. ECEP has . . . 
Q. Has ECEP retained an attorney to run the title to the 

property that is the subject of this application? 

A. No, we haven't. That title work that has been done, in 

my understanding, has been done through Fox Trot 

Properties. 

And what then has Fox Trot Properties done for ECEP in 

that regard? 

Q. 

A. Well, they've done it for themselves. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Well, to whom will ECEP be liable when it purchases 

this $150 million plant? In other words, there will be 

more than the plant itself. 

lot of indebtedness; correct? 

That's correct. 

So it will be obligated to people for the repayment of 

whatever these sums are in excess of $150 million. 

That's right. 

And title will be run and they will undoubtedly require 

title insurance, won't they? 

That's right. 

And, before that can happen, you've got to figure out 

whether these rights can be acquired. You're not going 

to, in fact, rely on Fox Trot, are you? ECEP is going 

to have to speak for the validity of its titles and 

answer in the form of a note or other obligation to 

whoever it borrows the money from and promise that it 

has title and promise that it will repay those sums and 

a mortgage will be placed in the Estill County Clerk's 

Office; isn't that right? 

That's right. 

So what is ECEP doing to assure itself for its own 

benefit that it can rely on anything that anyone tells 

it about the property since it's going to have to make 

those representations? 

ECEP is going to incur a 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

At the time that those representations are necessary 

when we close financing, ECEP will conduct a title 

search. 

When do you plan on entering into a lease with Fox 

Trot? 

I don't know that we've got that scheduled. That will 

be sometime prior to close of financing. 

When do you project to close on financing? 

Well, the answer that I give in public, because I'm a 

developer, is that we expect to be able to close 

financing by the first quarter of 2005. Now, that's 

going to require us to do quite a number of things, not 

only to secure the certificate to construct the power 

plant from this Board but also to secure all of the 

environmental permits, the air permits, the water 

permits, waste disposal, all of those things. So 

there's really quite a basket of things that need to be 

done. 

Well, I've read your application. You plan to begin 

construction in early 2005 and, based on everything 

you've said, that means that the deal will have closed. 

You'll have a lease. You will have borrowed the money. 

There will be a mortgage. You'll have purchased the 

plant and made arrangements to have it constructed on 

the site. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

That's right. 

So when do you plan on investigating the title and 

assuring yourself that you can enter into this highly 

leveraged situation? 

Well, the title investigation to prepare the 

application was performed prior to the application 

going in, obviously. The title insurance policy, in my 

experience, is one of the last things to be developed 

prior to the closing of financing, because the title 

insurance company wants to run the title and make sure 

there are no outstanding liens on the property right 

before they authorize the closing. 

So have you retained any attorneys to review any of the 

real estate issues that relate to my clients? And, 

when I say ''you," I mean ECEP. 

ECEP has not directly retained an attorney to 

investigate claims of your client. 

What do you mean "has not directly retained"? 

I mean that . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

I'm going to ask that we be careful here in 

terms of intruding into attorney/client relation- 

ships, communications, and so forth. I didn't 

object because I thought I wanted to see what 

direction this was going, but I do think we're 
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getting on thin ice here, and I would object to 

the question. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yeah. I think the question was, "Have you 

retained counsel?" I don't think he asked him 

what counsel has told you or if counsel has given 

ECEP any sort of opinion. So I think he can - 

I'll overrule the objection and let him answer the 

question as to whether or not counsel has been 

retained, but certainly, Mr. Collier, you're not 

to go into any opinions or any communication that 

ECEP's counsel might have had with Mr. Mack or 

anyone else. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Well, I think that his answer thus far has been 

they've retained - ECEP has retained no counsel 

with respect to these real estate issues but said 

that indirectly they have received some 

information, and that's the basis of my question. 

There would be no attorney/client privilege 

because ECEP did not retain that lawyer. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, I don't know if there'd be privilege or not, 

but I'm going to err on the side of respecting the 

privilege. So certainly you can answer the 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

question, Mr. Mack, with regard to whether or not 

counsel has been indirectly retained, I think was 

your word. 

Well, if Fox Trot Properties has retained counsel to 

investigate the claims, they did not do that at my 

request, if that's responsive to the question that I 

understand. 

Has - you said earlier that you were relying on 

information that had been provided to ECEP by Fox Trot. 

What information has Fox Trot supplied to ECEP 

regarding my clients' property interests? 

Oh, I understand now, sure. Fox Trot has provided me 

with copies of the testimony and the filings under the 

adversary proceeding in the bankruptcy court. 

Would that include the surveys which my clients have 

also filed in the record in this matter? 

Yes. 

The affidavit of Richard Hall with the explanatory 

maps? 

MR. WATTS: 

I'm going to try to restrain my inclination to 

object to too many questions, but we also need to 

be careful, in my view, not to retry the case that 

was heard by the bankruptcy court or these real 

estate disputes, period, and so I - it seems to me 
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we're  g e t t i n g  i n t o  t h a t  area,  and  I would o b j e c t  

t o  i t .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I ' m  n o t  s u r e  I know who M r .  H a l l  i s  anyway. I 

d o n ' t  t h i n k  h e ' s  t e s t i f i e d  i n  t h i s  case. So, i f  

w e  a re  g o i n g  i n t o  i s s u e s  t h a t  are  c u r r e n t l y  

pend ing  i n  t h e  bankrup tcy  p r o c e e d i n g ,  l e t ' s  n o t  do 

t h a t .  

MR. COLLIER:  

I ' m  n o t  d o i n g  t h a t  a t  a l l .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. 

MR. COLLIER:  

I h a v e n ' t  asked t h a t  q u e s t i o n .  I ' m  a s k i n g  what 

he  knows, what h e ' s  found o u t ,  what s t e p s  h e ' s  

t a k e n  t o  a p p r i s e  ECEP of  t h e s e  mat ters ,  and  I j u s t  

a s k e d  i f  he  had  reviewed it .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Go ahead  and  a s k  your  q u e s t i o n  a g a i n .  

Q .  M r .  H a l l  w a s  t h e  s u r v e y o r  whose s u r v e y  h a s  been  f i l e d  

a l o n g  w i t h  h i s  a f f i d a v i t  f o r  t h e  documents t h a t  are  

from t h e  r e c o r d  i n  t h a t  case. So, when you sa id  you 

r ev iewed  r e c o r d s  from t h e  b a n k r u p t c y  a c t i o n ,  I w i l l  

j u s t  t e l l  you t h a t  M r .  H a l l ' s  s u r v e y  w a s  . . . 
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MR. WATTS: 

I'm going to object to counsel testifying as to 

what was testified to in the bankruptcy case. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, I don't think that's of record. If Mr. 

Mack knows what Mr. Hall has previously said or 

what he's offered, certainly he can speak to that, 

but I'm not sure counsel needs to represent what 

Mr. Hall might have said or not said that's the 

subject of another proceeding. 

MR. COLLIER: 

I'll just return to my original question. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Okay. 

Have you reviewed, as part of the materials that were 

sent to you by Fox Trot from the bankruptcy case, the 

affidavit, attachments, and survey of Richard Hall? 

Yes, and I've also seen that as one of the exhibits in 

your clients' filings. 

They're the same document, aren't they? 

Well, now, that's an interesting question, because I 

didn't compare the two. 

Did you read it and review the comments that he made 

regarding the boundaries? 

Well, I've looked at the survey and I've read the words 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

that were on the survey. I certainly couldn't answer 

any questions about them, but I have read them. 

You said that people on ECEP's behalf have taken a look 

at deeds in the Estill County Courthouse. What did you 

mean by that? 

I don't know that I mean anything other than that 

direct statement. 

Did you perform that task? 

No. 

Other ECEP employees? 

Actually, any work that was done to investigate at the 

courthouse was done by one of our engineering 

consultants. 

And who might that have been? 

That would be CBC Engineers & Affiliates. 

And that's Mr. Dell Jaggers who's employed by . . . 
Mr. Jaggers didn't perform the work, but that is the 

company that he manages. 

Did you examine any of the work that they performed? 

Yes. 

What did you examine? 

I examined the materials that were provided in response 

to the Board Staff's First Data Request. 

In examining those, are you familiar with the deed from 

- first, have you examined many surveys in your career, 
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legal descriptions? 

A. I've looked at a few. 

Q. Do you know what an exception is? 

A. I do. 

Q. What is it? 

A. Well, an exception is essentially a carve-out. 

Q. Did you examine the Osborne tract and the Osborne tract 

exception in the deed from DLX to Kentucky Processing? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Hold on just a second. Mr. Watts? 

MR. WATTS: 

Yes, sir. I object to this question and this line 

of questions in that we are heading into trying 

the real estate dispute right here in front of 

you, and we're going to be here for two weeks. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I'm going to sustain your objection. I think we 

are getting into detail, Mr. Collier, that this 

Board really, as we said before, does not have 

jurisdiction to consider. Certainly everyone 

recognizes that there's a dispute as to title to 

the property, and to the boundaries, and those 

sorts of things, but I don't think we need to get 

into the specifics of which exception is where, 

and which deed is where, and that sort of thing. 
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That's just not something that we have the 

opportunity to consider. 

MR. COLLIER: 

The only thing, and I regret having to explain 

where I'm going with my line of questioning, but 

ECEP has represented that its would-be lessor owns 

this property and they've said that these deeds 

that they've examined - they submitted the deeds. 

They submitted them, purportedly, I guess, to 

induce the Commission to grant it its application, 

and, if they've examined them and understand that 

the deeds do not describe the property, then 

they're misrepresenting that fact, and I think 

that DLX and the Trust are entitled to see what 

knowledge they have, what steps they took, and 

what they've represented in the papers that 

they've filed, and what knowledge they actually 

had and when they got it. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

Well, I just - I think certainly you have the 

right to ask what they know with regard to the 

dispute, but we do not need to get into the 

specifics and the fine points of what the deeds 

say and what the exceptions say and those sorts of 

things, because we will be here all day and it's 
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just not something that we have the authority to 

rule on. So what I'd ask . . . 
MR. COLLIER: 

I want to know if he understood, when he saw the 

Osborne tract, which is one of the tracts that 

underlies this property, if he understood that 

there was an exception that carved out, as he 

said, the property where they want to build the 

plant. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

Well, I would just ask you to move on, if you 

would, please, sir. 

Has ECEP caused anyone to begin or complete a survey 

of the properties that are claimed by my 

clients? 

Yes. 

And who wa 

concerning any 

th t? 

That would be CBC Engineers. 

Has the survey been completed? 

No. 

When was it begun? 

I don't remember exactly when it was begun. 

little over a month ago. 

Maybe a 

All right. Has ECEP, or anyone from whom ECEP would 

like to acquire rights by lease or otherwise, acquired 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

a permit of any kind with respect to the properties 

which my clients claim? 

No. 

I noticed in the responses to the Staff's data requests 

that there was mention made of a power line easement. 

I think it was Jackson Electric. I may get the name 

wrong, but you're familiar with that easement; correct? 

Which question are you referring to? 

There are two power line easements that go to the 

proposed facility where it will be constructed. One is 

Kentucky Utilities. It goes across the river. There's 

one Jackson Electric. Are you familiar with those? 

I am. 

If you can correct me as to the name, I'm just 

struggling with it. 

I think the current name is Jackson Electric 

Cooperative. 

Okay, Jackson Electric Cooperative. Have you dealt 

with them concerning the relocation of that easement? 

Yes. 

Do you understand that it crosses the property that my 

clients', DLX specifically, claims to own? 

I understand that the JEC line crosses the tract that's 

subject to the dispute in front of the bankruptcy 

board. 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Has any agreement been reached to relocate it? 

No. 

What about the roads to the property? I noticed that 

there was mention made that you have been negotiating 

with CSX for appropriate - I don't know what sort of 

agreements you might have to enter into with CSX to use 

the road, because the plant is going to be on the 

outside, if you will, of the railroad; correct? In 

other words, to trail from the public highway, you'll 

have to go across the industrial park, cross the 

railroad, and then go to the plant? 

That s right. 

A large portion of the refuse coal lies across the 

railroad from the plant; correct? 

That's correct. 

Have you done any studies to determine how much coal on 

a daily basis you'll have to haul from there to the 

plant? 

Yes. 

Has that been discussed with CSX? 

Yes. 

Has CSX imposed any restrictions on the amount of daily 

traffic on its railroad crossing? 

Not to my knowledge. 

Has the possibility been discussed with CSX as to what 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

effect that might have if my client, DLX, wished to 

haul coal from its site across the crossing? 

No. 

At present, ECEP does understand that DLX claims that 

the Osborne exception under which it claims in fact 

encompasses the site where the power plant is proposed 

to be built? 

I don't think that's correct. 

Why do you think it's not correct? 

Well, I've seen the drawing of the area that was 

claimed by DLX and . . . 
Which drawing was that? Was this one of the documents 

that you were provided from the bankruptcy action? 

Yes. That would be the Richard Hall survey. 

So why did you form an - how did you form your opinion 

that you didn't think it included the portion where the 

plant would be built? 

Looking at the area that was claimed in the adversary 

proceeding, I can see that it does not include the area 

where the plant is going to be built. It's adjacent to 

it. 

Did ECEP retain counsel to advise it as to the effect 

and impact of the legal proceedings in the bankruptcy 

case? 

No. 

66 

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

1: 

1L 

1: 

1€ 

l i  

1E 

15 

2( 

2' 

2; 

2: 

2r 

2! 

Q. So you reached t h i s  c o n c l u s i o n  on your  own? 

A. T h a t ' s  r i g h t .  

MR. COLLIER: 

T h i s  i s  why I a s k e d  about  t h e  except ion ,  because 

I wanted t o  know how he came t o  t h a t  conc lus ion .  

Q. What do you p l a n  t o  do i f  i t  t u r n s  o u t  t h a t  my c l i e n t s  

are  r i g h t ?  

MR. WATTS: 

C o u l d  you rephrase t h e  q u e s t i o n ?  

what? 

MR. COLLIER: 

T i t l e  t o  t h e  p rope r ty .  

MR. WATTS: 

Well, t o  what p rope r ty?  

MR. COLLIER: 

T h e  

CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

cou 

t h e  

MR. WATTS: 

Y e s  

CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

I ' d  

MR. WATTS: 

R i g h t  about  

p rope r ty  t h a t  t h e y  c l a i m .  

d w e  please address the  p r e s i d i n g  o f f i c e r  of 

B o a r d  and  n o t  each o t h e r ?  

appreciate t h a t  v e r y  much. 

Y e s ,  s i r .  
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CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

If you would, rephrase the question. Be a little 

more specific. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

I ' d  be happy to. 

What does ECEP plan to do if it turns out that my 

clients own the property that they claim to own? 

If you're asking about your client DLX and if you're 

asking about the approximately 80-acre river pile or 

refuse pile tract or prelaw pile or whatever it's 

called, then, regardless of the ownership of that pile, 

ECEP can continue with the development and the 

construction of the power plant. 

I would add to that, because DLX, according to the 

documents in my face, claims the property, at present, 

has record title to where the plant will be built. 

What if that is the outcome and DLX has, as it says, 

record title to the property upon which ECEP plans to 

build the power plant? 

Well, sir, I'm not a lawyer, but, from what I read with 

the adversary proceeding, the claim was for the river 

pile tract only. 

That wasn't - that's not the question I asked. What if 

DLX is correct that it does have record title to the 

property upon which ECEP plans to build the merchant 
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power plant? 

A. If - you're asking me a theoretical question, that 

if . . .  

12 
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15 

Q. I'm just asking that question. 

A. I'm sorry? 

Q. I'm just asking that question. 

A. So, if the bankruptcy board or the bankruptcy court 

accedes the claim that was made by DLX and provides 

them with title to property that's outside the area 

that they claimed and that property includes the 

property that we will build the plant on and if all 

those theoretical things are true, then we can't build 

the plant there. 

Q. If you can't build the plant, then there will be no 

need for this certificate, will there? 

16 

17 

18 

A. I don't know if I would put it as an "if then," but 

it's true that, if the plant is not built, then the 

certificate is not going to be utilized. 

1911 Q. Well, if ECEP cannot acquire the rights in the property 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

necessary to build the plant, then there will be no 

need for this construction permit; correct? 

A. If, as I stated before when you asked the question, if 

the bankruptcy court were to accede the area that your 

client is claiming and somehow provide them with 

property rights that underlie the power plant, then, 
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yes, we won't build the power plant there. 

MR. COLLIER: 

If I might, this is why I wanted to ask about 

the exception, because he's giving his legal 

opinion about the bankruptcy proceedings and I 

want to ask him to look at the deed which he says 

he's examined, which ECEP has furnished everyone, 

and ask if he bothered to read that exception and 

understand, as best he could, what its implication 

was for ECEP. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Mr. Watts? 

MR. WATTS: 

If I may be heard, I believe the witness has very 

carefully listened to and answered these 

questions. What Mr. Collier would like to do is 

to expand beyond the ruling that you've already 

made and get into the guts of the title issue, and 

I object to it. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Well, I'm going to sustain the objection. I don't 

think it's appropriate for him to go into the 

specifics of the exception. He indicated that he 

didn't do any of the title work. 

l o o k  the deeds up and that sort of thing. 

He didn't go and 
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Certainly, as an engineer, he can look at a deed 

and at a legal description, I would presume, and 

know what it says. Certainly I think it's 

appropriate to ask him if he's looked at the 

exception and if he understands it, but I don't 

want to litigate, Mr. Collier, the . . . 
MR. COLLIER: 

No, I don't intend . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. 

MR. COLLIER: 

I just want to look - okay. Let's see. 

Q. There is attached to Staff Data Request No. 1, No. 10, 

a series - I'm sorry. I had the wrong one. The Staff 

made two data requests. The first one has several 

questions. No. 11 stated, "Provide deeds for each 

parcel shown." And I realize it says that Gerry Mack 

respond to those questions, but you said that you had 

reviewed the deeds, including the deed from DLX to KPC; 

correct? 

A. That's right. 

MR. COLLIER: 

If you will, turn to Pages 2 and 3 of that deed. 

MR. WATTS: 

Mr. Chairman, are we going to now go through these 
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deeds? Because I strongly object to this. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

I thought you had ruled on this point. 

MR. COLLIER: 

The . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I thought I had too. I mean, we're not . . . 
MR. COLLIER: 

All I'm going to ask is if he's - I want to 

point, so I'm sure that - I'm not talking about 

the whole deed - if he's read this part of it and 

if he's read the exception. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. You can ask him if he's read it. 

MR. COLLIER: 

That's all I'm trying to get to. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. What number or what data request are we 

on? 

MR. COLLIER: 

It was No. 11, . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. 
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MR. COLLIER: 

. . . Pages 2 and 3 that are attached. There's 

the deed and then there's the attached, the 

proverbial Exhibit A, Legal Description. I'll 

just wait until everybody has got it. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

You say Page 2 and 3. I see the deed here from 

DLX to Kentucky Processing. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Part of it is their deed may be out of order. In 

the copy I've got, the pages are shuffled a little 

bit. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. Let's try to . . . 
MR. TURNER: 

Your Honor, may I make an inquiry? Is it the 

deed itself or is it an attachment to the deed? 

MR. COLLIER: 

It's the exhibit. If you'll look, there's one 

at the bottom that says "Parcel I1 (Nellie Osborne 

Tract.)" That's the beginning of it, but it 

appears two pages after the actual description. 

They're out of order in this. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Two pages after Exhibit A, the description? 
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MR. COLLIER: 

Okay . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yeah, there's Exhibit A. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Exhibit A . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Uh-huh. 

MR. COLLIER: 

The page that follows actually occurs three pages 

later . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. 

MR. COLLIER: 

. . . with Parcel I, the Morris Elliott tract, and 
then Parcel I1 is the Nellie Osborne tract, and 

then the third page is the Osborne tract. They 

were just somehow copied and submitted by ECEP out 

of order. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. Show him what you want him to . . . 
MR. COLLIER: 

All right. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Ask him if he's read what you want him to . . . 
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MR. COLLIER: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

All right. 

Have you been able to follow us, what I'm referring to 

there? It begins, "Parcel I1 (Nellie Osborne Tract)" 

at the very bottom? 

Yes. 

All right, and then that description continues, does it 

not, on what follows two pages before and it's marked 

Page 3? 

Yes. 

And you have reviewed those? 

I have read these. 

Did you review the exception that follows on the bottom 

half of Page 3? 

MR. WATTS: 

He's just stated that he read it. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

He can ask him if he reviewed it. 

past that. 

A. I have read it. 

Q. Did you make any attempt to locate it, locate the 

We're not going 

exception? 

A. I'm sorry. I'm not following that question. 

Q. Did you make any attempt to locate the exception? 
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MR. WATTS: 

It's right here on the page. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I'm not sure what he means by "locate." On the 

ground or . . . 
MR. COLLIER: 

On the ground or understand to what property it 

applied. 

MR. WATTS: 

Well, once again, it seems to me we're getting 

into the title question here, the dispute that I 

thought we weren't going to get into. 

MR. COLLIER: 

I'm not asking the legal . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

I understood the question to be, "Have you read 

it?'' He's testified, yes, he did read it. I 

thought we weren't going past that. I hope we 

will not. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Mr. Collier? 

MR. COLLIER: 

I'm not asking whether the deeds are properly 

executed, acknowledged, or any of that. I just 

want to know if - he says he's reviewed the deeds. 
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He's looked at them. They've prepared property 

maps here. I just want to know if he made any 

attempt to find out to what property this 

exception applied. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Why don't you just ask him that question? 

MR. COLLIER: 

I did. 

Q. Did you make any attempt to find out what property this 

exception applied to? 

A. Y e s .  

Q. What did you do? 

A. I have looked at some of the very old maps from the 

transfer of the property from South-East Coal to DLX 

that had some of these different tracts and exceptions 

on them. 

Q. Did you plat it out to see what it might look like? 

MR. WATTS: 

I'm going to object. We had one question; that's 

going to be the last one. Then we follow with 

another one, and that's going to be the last one. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yeah. I think we need to move on, Mr. Collier, 

please, sir. 
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MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. 

Q. A s  t o  t h e  o t h e r  p r o p e r t y ,  d i d  you f i n d  any  d e s c r i p t i o n  

i n  t h i s  deed which a p p l i e d  t o  t h e  o t h e r  p a r t  of t h e  

r e f u s e  p i l e  t r a c t ?  

MR. WATTS: 

I ' m  s o r r y ,  s i r .  I d o n ' t  want t o  keep s t a n d i n g  up 

and  o b j e c t i n g  . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

W e l l ,  . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

I f e e l  l i k e  I have t o  do t h i s  b e c a u s e  e a c h  

q u e s t i o n  i s  b e i n g  a s k e d  one a f t e r  t h e  o t h e r ,  and  

w e  d o n ' t  seem t o  get  t o  where t h e  end  of i t  i s .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

W e l l ,  l e t  m e  s a y  f o r  t h e  t h i r d  o r  f o u r t h  t i m e  t h a t  

we're n o t  g o i n g  t o  t r y  t h e  t i t l e  t o  t h i s  p r o p e r t y .  

Now, I t h i n k  i t ' s  a p p r o p r i a t e  f o r  you t o  a s k  him, 

as  t h e  c o n s t r u c t i o n  manager and  as an  e n g i n e e r ,  

what he  d id  and what he saw and what he  obse rved ,  

b u t  we ' re  n o t  g o i n g  t o  t r y  t h e  t i t l e  t o  t h i s  

p r o p e r t y .  Okay? So l e t ' s  move on, p l e a s e .  

MR. COLLIER:  

A l l  I want t o  know i s  i f  he  made any . . . 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Let's move on, please. 

Q. Did you make any attempt to locate the remainder - to 

find out what the source was for the remainder of the 

refuse pile tract in this deed? 

A. No. 

MR. COLLIER: 

That's all the questions I have. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Thank you. Mr. FitzGerald? 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FITZGERALD: 

Q. Mr. Mack, I'm Tom FitzGerald. I'm representing the 

intervenor, Will Herrick. As I ask you these 

questions, I've tried to identify those where you were 

identified either in your direct testimony which has 

been prefiled or in the data requests as being the 

person responsible for the answer, but, if I ask you 

something that you're not comfortable answering, don't 

guess at it. If Dell or someone else is the more 

appropriate person, please feel free to tell me that. 

With that understanding, I'll assume that, when you do 

answer it, you're answering with authority on behalf of 

your client, ECEP. Let me first ask, what is your 

relationship with ECEP? Are you an employee or a 
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contractor with them? 

A. I'm a contractor. 

Q. Okay. To your understanding, - and I would like to try 

to flesh this out because I will admit to some 

confusion - ECEP, are they a limited liability company, 

to the best of your knowledge? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Who are the principals of that company? 

A. ECEP, LLC has a sole Member. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

I'm sorry. You need to speak up a little bit. 

None of us can hear you. 

I'm sorry. ECEP, LLC has a sole Member. That is Calla 

Energy Holding, LLC. 

Okay. Calla Energy Holding, LLC? 

And I believe this was the subject of one of the data 

requests. 

Right, and I'm just trying to flesh this out. 

Okay. 

And who is Calla Energy Holding, LLC? 

Calla Energy Holding, LLC has a sole Member who is Ms. 

Jacquelyn Yates. 

Okay. Fox Trot Properties, LLC is identified in your 

application as being the owner of the property. 

That's right. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

I want to clarify, are we talking about the 620 acre 

property that has been identified? 

Yes. 

Okay. So, to your knowledge, Fox Trot owns the entire 

620 acres? 

That's right. 

Okay. Who is, to your knowledge, Fox Trot Properties, 

LLC? 

Fox Trot Properties, LLC has a sole Member who is Fox 

Trot Corporation, and the sole shareholder of Fox Trot 

Corporation is Ms. Jacquelyn Yates. 

Okay. So Ms. Yates is then ultimately the sole Member, 

through Calla Energy, of ECEP and of Fox Trot 

Properties? 

That's correct. 

Okay. Do you currently hold a lease to the - when I 

say "the property," the 620 acres - does ECEP currently 

hold a lease to this property? 

No. 

Does ECEP have an option on the property? 

No. 

Does ECEP have any legal entitlement to the property by 

license, privilege, easement? 

Well, I don't know what you mean by "license" or 

"privilege. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Do you have any legal status - does ECEP have any 

ownership interests in the property, the Fox Trot 

properties? 

Not except to the extent that ultimately they're 

affiliated companies and the sole Member of ECEP and 

the sole member of - well, the sole shareholder of Fox 

Trot Corporation is Ms. Jacquelyn Yates. 

Okay. Who - you said Fox Trot Properties is listed as 

the owner, both in the application and on the maps. 

they hold a deed to the property? 

No, not yet. 

Okay. So is their ownership, do I understand that it 

is based on a contract? 

Yes. 

Okay. Is that a contract to purchase? If you don't 

know, just say, "I don't know." I'm just trying to 

understand the nature of - you've testified, correct me 

if I'm wrong, that ECEP, who is the applicant, doesn't 

own, doesn't lease, or have any legal interest in the 

property except to the extent that it's affiliated with 

someone who does. 

That's right. 

And that company that does is identified as Fox Trot 

Properties? 

Yes. 

Do 
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Q. Now, are you aware that they have filed a notice in 

this action that they're specifically disclaiming any 

part of this action, that they are not parties and do 

not wish to be served? Were you aware of that? 

MR. WATTS: 

I'm sorry. Could counsel restate the question? 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

Were you aware that Fox Trot Properties filed a notice 

in this action indicating that they are not parties to 

this proceeding? 

No. 

Okay. Okay. Let me try to go back. You indicated 

that you didn't have - that ECEP did not have an 

ownership interest except to the extent that it's 

affiliated with someone who does, Fox Trot Properties? 

That ' s right. 

Are they applicants with ECEP for the construction 

certificate? 

No. The applicant is ECEP. 

And that's the only applicant? 

That's correct. 

Jacquelyn Yates is not an applicant either? 

There's only the one applicant. 

Okay. Let me ask, if I could, about - and I will 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

apologize in advance. I'm going to be jumping around a 

little bit, because I'm trying to fill in some gaps. 

One of the requirements that ECEP was obligated to meet 

in the application was a summary of the efforts made by 

the applicant to locate the proposed facility on a site 

where existing electric generating facilities are 

located. Is the site that was chosen a site where an 

existing electric generating facility is located? 

NO, it's not. 

Okay. Were you the individual who responded to the 

data requests to describe those efforts in more detail? 

I was. 

Okay. You didn't identify any particular facilities 

that you considered locating at, and I was wondering if 

you could do that now. 

Well, . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

May I ask a procedural question, Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Certainly. 

MR. WATTS: 

The interests of Mr. FitzGerald's client that 

were expressed in this case in the motion to 

intervene and also in their testimony were very 

limited, and they certainly don't cover this 
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particular aspect of the application. Is it 

customary for the counsel to be able to go far 

beyond what the interests of his client are stated 

to be in the case? 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Chairman, if I could respond briefly . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Certainly. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Our standing interests are the requisite interests 

necessary to demonstrate that we are interested 

parties under the statute. We were granted the 

rights of full intervention, and I believe that we 

are entitled to ask about any and everything that 

has been submitted as part of the application. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I believe you are as well. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

You may proceed, and certainly what you're asking 

is, as I understand it, specifically the criteria 

that this Board must consider in ruling upon the 

certificate. 

85 

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



I 

I 

t 

: 

1( 

11 

1; 

1: 

14 

15 

1E 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Mr. Chairman, I don't intend to ask anything 

that's not within the scope of the procedure, 

and I'm sure that counsel will correct me if I 

try to. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

All right, sir. 

Getting back to the question, Mr. Mack, if I could, 

would you identify specific facilities that you did 

consider collocating? 

Well, I'm looking at Section 7. of our application on 

Page 15, and it says that the nearest existing 

generating facilities are located in Clark County. 

Those are the East Kentucky Power Co-op facilities. 

Did you - I guess - I'm sorry. 

collocating at that facility? 

We did. 

And what was the reason for rejecting collocation at 

that facility? 

Well, the reason for not attempting to collocate this 

facility at that one was because of the unique nature 

of this facility, the fact that we're burning on-site 

waste coal and that on-site waste coal, in my opinion, 

can't be economically transported, or it's not 

desirable to transport it also, to another facility. 

Did you consider 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

Okay. 

in your opinion, it cannot be economically transported. 

Have you run the numbers to determine when transport or 

to what extent transport is economically feasible? 

No. 

Okay. 

site in order to be combusted; is that correct? 

It will have to be picked up off the ground and 

transported to the hoppers, yes. 

Okay. So there are certain set costs, the cost of 

loading. 

before it's combusted? 

No. 

Okay. So it's just going to be the raw coal fines that 

are on the property will be collected. 

to be dewatered in any way? 

Well, it's more than just fines that are on the 

property. There's also coarse material. 

Okay. 

And, during the mining operation and during the storing 

of the material prior to putting it into the silos or 

the bunkers, we will let the material dewater. 

Okay. 

property because of the unique nature of the facility; 

it's burning on-site waste coal. 

If I could explore that a little bit, you say, 

This material will have to be transported on 

Will it have to be processed in any way 

Will they have 

You mentioned that you rejected this one other 

Did you consider 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

2. 

other facilities that have coal fines and coarse 

material available within the region in terms of 

locating this facility? 

Are you asking me did we look to see if there were 

other areas where waste coal was located that we could 

construct the facility on? 

That might be near a facility to collocate at. 

That might be near another electric generating 

facility? 

Uh-huh. 

No. 

Okay. 

East Kentucky facility, or were there others? 

Well, it was my determination that there was not an 

ability economically to transport the waste coal to the 

nearest electric generating facility, and so I didn't 

go further than that. 

Okay. 

was tied to the fact that you wanted to get rid of this 

waste coal on this property? 

It was tied to the fact that we wanted to use this 

So is the only facility you looked at this one 

So then your consideration of other facilities 

waste coal as a fuel. 

Okay. 

ing the ownership, how much of the waste coal would 

remain available out of the 620 acres? 

If DLX is correct in their assumptions concern- 
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MR. WATTS: 

Could counsel restate the question, please? 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

Yeah. 

There's 620 acres that were identified in your 

Exhibit B to your Data Request 9, I believe, of 

the Staff, and that was a map that showed, in purple 

dotted lines, the 620 acres subdivided by a number of 

different properties, all of which are owned by Fox 

Trot Properties, LLC, and you had indicated in the 

response that you were going to remove waste coal from 

all of those areas except where the plant would be 

located. My question is, assuming that DLX is correct 

regarding their ownership of portions of that property, 

how much of the acreage of waste coal remains to be 

used by your facility? 

Well, I can't answer that question directly, 

I can say is that their claims involve approximately 

80 acres. 

Okay. Do you know which 80 acres? 

Are you asking do I know the area that they've claimed? 

Yeah. 

Yes. 

Have you surveyed or taken sampling to identify how 

much waste coal is available on the property? 

but what 
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MR. WATTS: 

I'm going to object to this question which tracks 

a data request to which we also objected as 

getting into the proprietary project economics, 

project feasibility, which is beyond the scope of 

these proceedings, in our opinion, and not 

relevant to them. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Mr. FitzGerald? 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Mr. Chairman, let me see if I can do this 

cogently, which for me is always a challenge. 

They have represented that their efforts to 

collocate will not be availing because the 

economics will not support what they want to do, 

which is to burn on-site waste coal. That is the 

basis for not having gone out and collocated 

elsewhere. The Legislature has specifically 

identified collocation as a preferred option and 

they require a justification about why you don't 

do it. They have represented that no more than 

10 percent, on average, of coal will have to come 

in from elsewhere onto the site, because they will 

be, I would assume, using 90 percent on-site coal 

to burn. It is squarely within the scope of this 
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proceeding to inquire the basis for assuming, over 

the design life of this facility, that they have 

enough waste coal on site, both in terms of 

to submit that in confidence, 

for signing confidentiality agreements. 

be happy to adhere to them, but stonewalling and 

saying, "We're not going to provide it, period," 

is not an acceptable response. 

they're not going to disclose the facts concernin< 

their representation on waste coal availability, 

we must assume that the waste coal may not be 

available and that they have to go back and make a 

more earnest demonstration of why they have failed 

to collocate. 

there are procedures 

We would 

Otherwise, if 

They can't have it both ways. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

tonnage and in terms of BTU value. If they want 

Is it within the ambit or within the authority of 

this Board to make economic - or to make decisions 
with regard to the economic rationale of the 

applicant? 

4R. FITZGERALD: 

I think it is squarely within the ambit of this 

Board's jurisdiction. This Board is required to 

consider as part of the determination on whether 

to issue a merchant certificate - the Legislature 
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was concerned about a few things. One is that 

these facilities carry their own weight, both 

economically and environmentally. Second was 

looking at the economic impact on the affected 

region and on the state of these proposed 

facilities. 

that they can't collocate somewhere because the 

economics won't support it because of on-site 

coal. If, in fact, they intend to - you know, 

their representation is that they will use no more 

than 10 percent of off-site coal, but, if the 

reserves are not there to support this facility 

over its design life, I would assume they're going 

to bring more off-site coal in. Those are matters 

that we have a right to explore during this 

proceeding. 

The economics - they have representec 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Mr. Collier, do you have a dog in this fight? 

MR. COLLIER: 

I do, but Mr. FitzGerald is doing an excellent 

job. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Mr. Watts, do you want to respond? I'll get 

Staff's opinion last. 
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MR. WATTS: 

Thank you, sir. What the question was designed 

to get at is the criterion in 278.710(1)(e), 

"Whether the proposed facility . . . "  Excuse me. 
I'm sorry, (d), sub (d), "Whether the facility is 

proposed for a site upon which existing generating 

facilities, capable of generating ten megawatts 

(1OMW) or more of electricity, are currently 

located." He's asked questions about what 

investigation the applicant did with respect to 

this criterion. Those questions have been 

answered, and Mr. FitzGerald can certainly comment 

on the testimony, but it is absolutely not, in my 

view, within this Board's purview to get into the 

project economics of a proposed project. I don't 

think that's a criterion at all. I don't think 

you can find it in the statute, and we strongly 

object to it. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Mr. Turner, what's the Staff's position? I'd 

like to hear what you've got to say on this. 

MR. TURNER: 

Mr. Chairman, I believe that the amount of on-site 

coal that is going to be burned by the plant has 

ramifications above and beyond simply those that 
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Mr. FitzGerald was asking about. If there's not 

r 

- 

enough on-site coal, especially if part of DLX's 

claim is sustained and it does impact the amount 

of outside coal that's brought in, then it will 

impact noise levels; it will impact traffic 

levels; it will impact a variety of other 

considerations that the statute requires the Board 

to look at, and so, while I do agree with counsel 

that the information may well be confidential and 

then perhaps should be subject to a proprietary 

agreement, I believe the inquiry is appropriate. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

You believe what? 

MR. TURNER: 

The inquiry that Mr. FitzGerald is making is 

appropriate. 

MR. WATTS: 

Very briefly, sir, I think we need to be careful 

about what information is being requested. The 

question was directed to sampling, which is a very 

different question than what I understood Mr. 

Turner to be talking about, which is 'on-site/off- 

site coal, and so let's take it a question at a 

time if you're going to go down this path, but the 

concept of getting into sampling information with 
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respect to the coal on site is something I 

strongly, strongly object to. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, now, I didn't understand the question to be 

sampling of the quality or anything like that of 

the coal. The question went to the quantitative - 

it was a quantitative question; right? How much 

coal has there been projected is there to burn, is 

that essentially the question? 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Mr. Chairman, - and if my question was unartfully 

phrased, I will rephrase it and, as counsel 

suggested, go step by step, question by question - 

if there are those that are objected to that are 

objected to because they are business confidential 

information that relate to the presence and the 

volume of waste coal on this property, I would ask 

that that be made a data request and be subject to 

a proprietary agreement, but we can go ahead and 

take the questions one by one. I'll withdraw the 

one that I asked and go ahead and ask them in a 

more stepwise fashion. 

MR. WATTS: 

I have to say, sir, had he not used the word 

"sampling," I would not have risen and responded 
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as I did. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Well, I mean . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

He says he's going to rephrase it. Let's let him 

rephrase it and see where we are at that point. 

MR. WATTS: 

All right. Thank you. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Q- 

A. 

Counsel objected - they objected during the data 

requests to anything relating to the composition, 

volume, quantity. So let's see if, in fact, it's 

just sampling that triggered the nerve. 

Mr. Mack, what's the design life of this facility? How 

many years are you proposing to operate the plant? 

Well, there's really two ways of looking at that. The 

first, probably the only relevant question would be 

what would be the initial expected term of the 

financing, and the second part of the question is the 

design life on a power plant. As we all know, plants 

that are built have design lives that can be extended 

through maintenance and refurbishment, and, if you're 

asking - the first question that I think is more 

relevant is the initial term of the financing will 

probably be in the range of 15 to 20 years. 
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Q. Actually, it was more the second question that I have 

an interest in, because you have represented that the 

fuel mix will be 10 percent off-site coal and 90 per- 

cent on-site, and my question is, given what you know 

of the volume of on-site waste, how long will it take 

to exhaust those resources? 

MR. WATTS: 

I think this question gets directly into the 

project economics, and I object to it. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

I guess it wasn't just sampling after all, Mr. 

Chairman. It gets squarely into the question of 

why they have to justify being here as opposed to 

somewhere else. If you have a plant that . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I think it does too. I'm going to overrule the 

objection and let him answer. 

A. There's a number of assumptions that go into a 

calculation of the amount of reserves and the duration 

for burning those reserves. Today, we're looking at 

anywhere from 25 to 30 years of supply. 

Q. Twenty-five to thirty years of supply at a 90/10 ratio, 

90 percent on site, 10 percent off site, roughly? 

A. Well, the 10 percent assumption was made for the 

purpose of assuring ourselves that we were being overly 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

conservative in the traffic impacts and noise impact 

analyses. We actually expect, based on talking with 

other plants that are burning this type of material, to 

be somewhere in the neighborhood of 5 to 10 percent on 

an annual basis. 

So you're saying, then, that up to 95 percent will be 

on-site reserves that are combusted? 

That's right. 

Okay. At anytime in the life of this facility will you 

exceed 10 percent? 

Well, it's an interesting question. Obviously, the 

reserves are finite. 

Right. 

The life of a power plant can be extended through 

maintenance and refurbishment. 

Okay. 

So, given the fact that there's a inite amount of 

material on the site, then I would have to answer that 

there could be a period of time where that material is 

exhausted. 

Do you know how long that period of time would be after 

the material is exhausted that you would continue to 

operate the facility? 

No. 

So then the upward bound estimates of traffic, both 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

rail and road traffic, that are in the application may 

not, in fact, be upper bound during the later years of 

the facility's life once the on-site reserves are 

depleted? 

Once the reserves are depleted in 25 or 30 years, the 

facility will be securing a different supply of fuel. 

Now, given that the site is bisected by CSX Railroad, 

it's my expectation that whatever fuel would be burned 

after the initial period of operation would be coming 

in on the CSX Railroad. 

That's your expectation? Do you have a contract with 

CSX for that? 

No. 

Could it be brought in by road? 

Physically, yes. 

Okay. Thank you. If we could, there's a couple of 

other areas, and, if you need to take a break at 

anytime, just let me know. There are a couple 

o f .  . .  
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Mr. FitzGerald, my stomach is telling me it's 

lunchtime. Why don't we - if you're at a sort of 

in-between point, do you want to take a break? 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Mr. Chairman, I'm at your - you tell me when we're 
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t a k i n g  a break. Don ' t  a s k  m e ,  and  I ' d  be happy t o  

b r e a k  a t  any p o i n t  and  resume. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

W e l l ,  I mean, I d o n ' t  want t o  d i s t u r b  your  f low 

h e r e ,  b u t ,  i f  you 've  g o t  q u i t e  a b i t  more, l e t ' s  

go ahead  and  t a k e  a b r e a k  and  w e ' l l  come back  

a f t e r  l u n c h .  

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Tha t  would be f i n e ,  M r .  Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

A l l  r i g h t .  L e t ' s  go ahead ,  t h e n ,  and  b r e a k  f o r  

l u n c h .  W e ' l l  come back  a t  one o ' c l o c k .  Tha t  

g i v e s  everyone  an  hour  t o  go o u t  and  ge t  a 

sandwich,  and  w e ' l l  resume a t  one o ' c l o c k .  W e ' l l  

be o f f  t h e  r e c o r d .  

OFF THE RECORD 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Thank you. Please be seated. A l l  r i g h t .  We'll 

be back  on t h e  r e c o r d .  M r .  F i t z G e r a l d ,  I t h i n k  w e  

were f i n i s h i n g  up, o r  n o t  f i n i s h i n g  up,  b u t  I 

t h i n k  you had  t h e  f l o o r  when w e  b r o k e  f o r  l u n c h .  

So, i f  you would, s i r ,  go ahead  and  p r o c e e d .  

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Thank you, M r .  Chairman. 

Q .  M r .  Mack, a f e w  o t h e r  areas I ' d  l i k e  t o  a s k  you a b o u t .  
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A. 

Q. 

MR 

The application for the construction certificate for 

the merchant plant indicated the environmental 

compliance record of ECEP. Do you have available to 

you the environmental compliance record of the parent 

companies of ECEP, which you indicated was Calla and 

then Ms. Yates? 

There would be no difference in the data that was 

provided in the application for Calla Energy Holding, 

LLC or Ms. Yates. 

Okay. So she has no equitable or other interests in 

any other companies that would have had an 

environmental compliance history that you could 

disclose? 

WATTS : 

I object to the question. That's not the question 

that was asked before. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Well, that's the question I'm asking now. 

A. I have specifically asked her that question and she has 

told me that the answer . . . 
COURT REPORTER: 

And she's told you what? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

You need to speak up, please, sir, if you don't 

care. 
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A. I'm sorry. Let me lean forward a little bit. Yes, 

I've asked her that question and the answer wouldn't 

change with the information she provided me. 

Q. Okay. Would you be willing to provide that information 

for the record? 

A. Yes. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

I would ask that be a data request, if that's 

possible, Mr. Chairman, to get the same environ- 

mental compliance information up the ownership 

chain from ECEP. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, let's be specific. Let's be . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

I'm sorry. Please feel free. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I was just going to say let's be speci ic as to 

who you're asking for, or what entities you're 

asking for. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Certainly. As I understand, ECEP is entirely 

owned by Calla which is, in turn, entirely owned 

by Ms. Yates, and so I would ask f o r  both Calla 

and Ms. Yates that the environmental compliance 

information be provided. 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

You're talking about Calla Energy Holding, LLC? 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Yes. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Ms. Yates, ,ndividually, an( Estill County Energy 

Partners, which has already been disclosed? 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

They've already provided that, Mr. Chairman, yes. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. Okay. Did you have an objection? 

MR. WATTS: 

I'll just state for the record that I do object 

to it. Jackie Yates I do not object to. I do 

object to Calla Holding, and I just want to state 

that for the record. We'll provide the 

information, subject to the objection. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, what's the basis for your objection? 

MR. WATTS: 

Well, if I understood it correctly - well, let 

me state it a different way. The statute 

contemplates the applicant and anyone with an 

ownership interest in the applicant. 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

All right. 

MR. WATTS: 

And so that's who we would provide that for. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

But Calla Energy Holding, LLC is the sole Member 

of Estill County Energy Partners. 

MR. WATTS: 

I'm sorry. You're correct about that, and 

obviously we'll provide that. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

Okay. 

MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. Go ahead, Mr. FitzGerald. 

Q. Along that same line, to your knowledge, does any 0th c 

entity have an ownership interest in ECEP or Calla, the 

parent company of ECEP, other than Ms. Yates? 

A. No. 

Q. Are there other employees or agents of ECEP, to your 

knowledge, aside from Ms. Yates? 

A. I'm sorry. I don't know that she's an employee. 

Q. Who do you communicate with? Is there an officer or an 

agent, a principal for ECEP with whom you have com- 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

municated? 

I would have communicated with Ms. Yates, yes. 

Okay. To your knowledge, are there any other employees 

or agents of ECEP other than Ms. Yates? 

I don't think that I'm an employee. I'm a contract 

consultant. 

Okay. To your knowledge, does ECEP have any employees? 

No. 

Where is ECEP's office located? 

The address, as stated on the application, is 

6000 Sulphur Well Road. 

Okay. Is that an office building or an office? 

It's an office. 

I'm sure this will also - you might want to wait to 

answer this, because your counsel may need to impose an 

objection on this, but, my question, how does ECEP 

intend to finance the construction of this merchant 

power plant? 

MR. WATTS: 

Well, I do object to it, Your Honor. It's not a 

criterion that is included in the statute for the 

Board to consider, and I think - I hope that the 

Board will address the criteria that are laid out 

for it by the Legislature. 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

What is the relevancy, Mr. FitzGerald? 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Well, let me more specifically ask, Mr. Chairman, 

the extent to which any public financing will be 

obtained for the facility, and the reason it's 

relevant is because the economic impact of the 

facility on the affected region and the state is 

one of the criteria . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I think that's appropriate. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

. . . that they're required to address. So . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

If your question is limited to that, I think it's 

appropriate. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

I'm sorry. I should have limited it. 

Q. To what extent will any public financing be - has any 

public financing been obtained or will it be obtained 

for this facility? 

A. Well, no financing for the facility has been obtained. 

Q. Okay. I should have probably asked this first. What 

relationship does ECEP and this proposed facility have 

to the earlier Calla power plant that was proposed for 
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this same general location? 

A. There is no relationship. 

Q. Okay. Do you recall the principals of the Calla 

project? 

A. That was well before my time. 

MR. WATTS: 

I'm also going to object to this line of 

questioning. I don't think it's relevant to this 

proceeding at all. He said that there's no 

relationship between that project and this one. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yeah, he just answered that. I assume Mr. 

FitzGerald is going somewhere with this. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

I have one other question. 

In, I believe it was, the year 2000, a Charles or Chuck 

Yates, who is the husband of Jacquelyn Yates, as I 

understand, and correct me if I'm mistaken on that, 

secured a $105 million loan, I believe, guaranty. It 

was in industrial revenue bonds from Estill County, and 

my question is, is that part of your financing, part of 

ECEP's financing, to your understanding? 

I don't know anything about a $105 million Estill 

County bond financing that was closed. 

That was closed? 
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A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Isn't that what you asked? 

Are you aware of one that was unclosed? 

No. 

Okay. 

expectation of securing loan guaranties or financing 

from County Government? 

At this time, I can't rule out any source of funding or 

financing. 

Have you had any communications with Estill County 

towards that end? 

I have not. 

Okay. Has anyone in ECEP, to your understanding? 

So you're not - at this point, you have no 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Thank you for your indulgence, Mr. Chairman. 

Is the proposed exhaust stack for the facility 1,000 

feet or more from all the adjoining property 

boundaries? 

I think that's probably a question for Mr. Jaggers. 

Okay. I'll ask him that. Just a couple of others, 

and, again, this may be questions that you want me to 

direct to him, and feel free to tell me. Do you know 

the status of the various environmental permits that 

will have to be obtained by the facility? 

Generally, yes. 

Okay. Have any of them been obtained yet? 

108 

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

1: 

1 L  

1: 

1C 

1; 

I t  

1: 

2( 

2' 

2; 

2: 

24 

2! 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

No. 

Okay. Have any been applied for yet? 

Yes. 

What have you applied for? 

We've applied for our water discharge permit. 

Okay, and, at this point, have you made application 

your air permit? 

No. 

Okay. Do you know what the time frame is when you 

intend to do that? 

We are intending to file that very shortly. 

Very shortly, within the next month? 

Yes. 

Okay. Can I assume, then, that you've done what you 

believe is the necessary modeling to support that 

application? 

No. 

You haven't done that? 

We are in the process of finalizing the modeling. 

Okay. You mentioned also that you're in the process of 

having a survey done of the property? 

Yes. 

Okay. When might that be concluded? 

I don't know. 

Okay. 
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MR. FITZGERALD: 

Mr. Chairman, I'd like to make that a second data 

request, is to have the official survey be made 

part of the record. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, I guess we have a problem, we may have a 

problem, in that, as I said earlier, data request 

responses are to be provided within seven days 

following the close of this hearing. Certainly, 

if the survey is going to be completed in the next 

seven days, I think it's appropriate. If not, 

then I think we've got a problem. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Mr. Chairman, I would assume at that point they 

would say it's not available . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

. . . and then we will argue whether it is 
required or not. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. All right. 

Q. The last question I had in that regard was - well, 

actually I'll direct that to Mr. Jaggers - is what 

basis you used for determining the location of the 
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adjoining properties in the absence of a survey, but 

I'll ask him. He can think about that now and I'll ask 

him later. Let me ask you just a couple more 

questions. Have you done any sort of analysis of, a 

quantitative or qualitative analysis, of emissions from 

the proposed power plant? 

MR. WATTS: 

I'm going to object to the question. 

struction certificate contemplated by the statute 

is expressly subject to obtaining permits with 

respect to air, water, waste disposal, mine 

reclamation, and so forth, and it's our position 

that the statute contemplates that those will be 

obtained and can be obtained at a point in time 

after this proceeding is concluded and an Order is 

issued - there's a period of time provided for in 

the statute to obtain those - and that this Board 

should not address the specifics of those permits 

or what goes into them. 

The con- 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I agree with you. I don't think Mr. FitzGerald 

is asking specifics. I think he's merely asking 

him if the emissions data or information has been 

completed. Is that basically the question? 
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MR. FITZGERALD: 

Yes, Mr. Chairman, and I'll go ahead and let her 

do the tape and then I'll clarify further. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Mr. Chairman, I am aware that the Siting Board's 

jurisdiction does not extend to matters of choice 

of technology and whether or not the particular 

permit limits for the Environmental Public 

Protection Cabinet have been met. Clearly, they 

are allowed to come in and get this permit or this 

construction certificate before they make appli- 

cation. In fact, there's a two-year window from 

the last permit by which they have to construct it 

or the construction certificate lapses, but this 

is, out of the first four that have come before 

the Board, this is the first time that this 

construction certificate was applied for prior to 

the air quality permit, the Title V permit, being 

obtained and all of the other permits, and what I 

am attempting to do is to find out the extent to 

which they've analyzed the potential impacts of 

the facility, because, in my estimation, it's hard 

to identify the affected region and the economic 
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consequences, positive and negative, unless you 

know what the potential footprint of the facility 

is, and a facility's footprint is larger than just 

the area that it is sited on. I think this Board 

in the Thoroughbred case has recognized that and 

has recognized that, for example, to the extent 

that they are going to consume air quality 

increments, there are potential economic 

consequences, and I'm merely trying to identify 

the extent to which they have quantified or 

considered these matters. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

You're asking if they've done it or if they've 

started doing it, not specifically what the data 

is; is that correct? 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

That's right. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I think that's - Mr. Watts? 

MR. WATTS: 

Well, I'd just like to state for the record that 

I would have made the same objection regardless of 

whether the air permit had been applied for before 

this application was submitted or not, because I 

think the statute covers both eventualities, and 
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there was a reference, I think, to the Thorough- 

bred case. We can argue about the vast 

differences in the facts in that case and in this 

one. I don't necessarily want to do that now, 

but, if we get into it, that's something to be 

discussed later. I don't object to the question 

as to whether or not it's been done, but the door, 

in my view, needs to be shut at that point. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, I think it will be shut. 

MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Can you answer the question, Mr. Mack, or do you 

want - why don't you just rephrase it, Mr. 

FitzGerald? 

Have you performed any analysis of the quantitative and 

qualitative emissions from this proposed facility? 

Yes. 

Have you performed any economic analysis of the impact 

of those emissions? 

No. 

Okay. The Economic Impact Estimate that you provided 

in your application was prepared, according to the 

document, by a Staff Economist with the Economic 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Development Cabinet. 

document? 

Yes. I think that was Tab K in the application. 

It is, in fact, at Tab K. Who requested that estimate, 

Economic Impact Estimate, be conducted? 

Estill County Energy Partners did. 

Okay, and was that done under contract with Estill 

County Energy Partners? Do you know, is there a 

contract? Did they hire or contract with the agency to 

perform this, or is this a study that was done in the 

usual course of business for the Cabinet? 

I don't know. 

Okay. The study, as I understand it, looked at the 

impact of 35 direct electric utility service jobs, 

8 coal mining/coal transportation jobs, and 3 building 

services jobs. Is that your understanding of the 

assumptions that were made in this study? 

Actually, it's not. It's 46 jobs at the plant 

categorized into those three groups. 

Okay, and I guess my question is, do you understand 

that study to be limited to the impacts of the 

additional employment, or did it look at the potential 

negative impacts, if any, of the facility? 

The study is what it is. 

Okay. To your knowledge, will this facility be 

Are you familiar with that 
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considered a major source, under the Clean Air Act, for 

criteria air pollutants? 

MR. WATTS: 

I'm going to object to that question as being 

beyond the door having been shut. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Would you repeat the question? 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

I was asking whether it would be considered a 

major source, under the Clean Air Act, for 

purposes of criteria air pollutants. 

MR. WATTS: 

The witness has testified that the application is 

going to be filed, and Mr. FitzGerald can 

participate in that proceeding if he chooses to, 

and he can examine these issues if he'd like to. 

This is not the forum for it. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

That's a gracious offer, Mr. Chairman, but, in 

truth, the consumption of air quality increments 

is an economic matter that has, as this Board has 

found in the Thoroughbred case, a potentially 

significant economic consequence on the region and 

on the state. They're required by statute to 

consider the impacts on the region. It may, to 
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the extent that it consumes air quality increment, 

foreclose other jobs in the county or in the 

affected region, and I'm merely asking if they're 

going to be a major source. They've already 

acknowledged they haven't done any economic 

analysis of the potential impacts of it. I'm just 

trying to get that fact on the table. It is 

relevant. It is an economic matter of significant 

consequence, potentially, to the extent that they 

are going to consume air quality increment. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

MR. 

I take it you would - well, I won't take anything. 

You tell me. 

WATTS : 

Well, just for the record, Mr. FitzGerald has his 

own interpretation of the statute, which he's just 

expressed to you, and he believes that his 

position should be examined in this case. I don't 

think it should be. I don't think it's within the 

purview of this proceeding at all, and, to the 

extent that he bases it on what he considers to be 

the result in Thoroughbred, it simply doesn't 

apply here. I think this is an issue for briefing 

to the extent that he's got a legal position that 

he wants to express, but I don't think he should 
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take - be allowed to take this proceeding into the 

air permitting process. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. I'm going to sustain the objection. I 

think it's probably going a little far afield, Mr. 

FitzGerald. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Your Honor, I appreciate that. Just I'd like to 

note for the record Page 14 of the Thoroughbred 

Order in which this Board has previously 

determined that these are significant issues 

related to unfavorable economic consequences. 

It's remarkable. I've not met an applicant as 

closed lipped as this applicant is regarding these 

matters. I appreciate your ruling and obviously 

will defer to it, . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Thank you. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

. . . but please do note our concern. 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right, sir. Thank you. 

Q. Mr. Mack, you may be o f f  the hook here. Hold on one 

second. This may be a question you want me to ask Mr. 

Jaggers, because I think he did answer the data 
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request. Do you know if any of the property is 

currently under a surface mining permit? 

A. That's definitely a question for Mr. Jaggers. 

Q. I'll ask him, then, and I have no further questions. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the Board. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Thank you, Mr. FitzGerald. Mr. Turner, do you 

have questions? 

MR. TURNER: 

Unfortunately, I do, Your Honor. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. TURNER: 

Q. Mr. Mack, I'm A. W. Turner. I'm with the Staff, and, 

unfortunately, I have to plod you through some more 

mundane questions, I'm afraid. There are several 

recommendations that the Brighton report made that you 

contested and that's going to be the primary focus of 

my questions. First of all, and this may be similar to 

Mr. FitzGerald's last question and, if so, I'll ask Mr. 

Jaggers. Do you know when this facility - I believe 

you address, actually - I think this is yours, because 

you address, on Page 3, Lines 21 through 22, that . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Page 3 of what, Mr. Turner? 
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MR. TURNER: 

Of his testimony. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Okay. 

Q. Of your testimony. 

MR. TURNER: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

I apologize, Mr. Chairman. 

At the bottom of Page 3, you say that the Brighton 

report incorrectly states that the site has not been 

active since the early ' 9 0 s  and that it was last used 

for coal processing in ' 9 8  and ' 9 9 ;  is that correct? 

That's my understanding, yes. 

And what company did the coal processing in ' 9 8  and 

' 993 

I don't know that I know that for a fact. 

Okay, and do you know if the permit that whoever this 

was in ' 9 8  and ' 9 9  was operating under, do you know if 

that permit is still valid? 

N o ,  I don't. 

Okay. Are those questions that I should ask of Mr. 

Jagger s? 

Yes. 

Okay. Mr. Mack, I need to ask you a very, very few 

questions, I hope, about the property issue, because 

we've already beat that one pretty good. Do I take it 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A.  

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

that the total size of the project that you're 

proposing is 620 acres? 

Yes. 

Okay. Now, there's been reference to the "28 acres," 

quote/end quote, and I take it that that's the area 

where the turbine is going to be, the stack, that type 

of thing. 

That's correct. 

How is that 28 acres defined? Is it defined on the 

maps by the perimeter fencing? 

The 28 acres is best defined by the fence line that 

shows up in our Exhibit G, which was revised in - oh, I 

don't even want to guess - one of these data requests. 

Okay, but it's Exhibit G as revised; is that correct? 

Yes, sir. 

Okay. Now, your counsel passed out, early today, a 

proposal for a survey, and I note that it is somewhat 

similar to one of the recommendations that we're going 

to talk about in a minute, but it doesn't have an 

acreage noted on it. The document that I'm talking 

about, I don't know that it was ever identified as a 

particular exhibit, but do you know the document that 

I'm talking about? 

I do, and I would ask for a copy of it. 

And really what I'm asking is, what is it that you are 
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A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

proposing be subject to the survey? 

you proposing be surveyed by this proposal? 

The proposal for the boundary survey condition 

contemplates that the survey would be done for the 

28 acres on which we're going to construct the facility 

and the areas that we're going to mine the on-site 

waste coal. 

And does that constitute the 620 acres? 

If Fox Trot Properties prevails in the adversary 

dispute that's in front of the bankruptcy court, then 

yes. 

And, if DLX prevails, then you're proposing that a 

smaller area be surveyed, only that portion that Fox 

Trot is determined by the bankruptcy court to own; is 

that correct? 

That's correct. It would not include the 80 acres 

that's in front of the bankruptcy court. 

All right. So, just for rough numbers, then, we're 

either talking about 620 acres or 540 acres being 

surveyed? 

If we're talking roughly, yes. 

Okay. Thank you. Now, I believe that - and I don't 

remember who at this point; I could check back in my 

records - I believe someone asked and you answered a 

couple of questions similar to what I'm going to ask 

What size area are 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

now, but I'm a long ways away from you and I had some 

trouble hearing your answers, so I hope your counsel 

won't get on "Asked and answered" too quickly, and I'll 

try to be as brief as possible. What impact on the 

project will it have if DLX prevails on the 80 acres of 

the refuse pile? I believe someone asked you that, and 

I don't remember - you used the word rrcan't," and I 

don't know whether it was rrcan'l or "cannot." 

It was definitely rrcan." 

"Can. I' 

And the facility can, can, will be constructed even if 

the 80 acres that's under dispute is not part of the 

site. 

Okay. Now, how will the exclusion of this 80 acres, 

which I assume is a fair amount of the refuse coal, how 

would that impact the 90/10 ratio or 95/5 ratio that we 

have discussed earlier? 

It would not impact that ratio. 

Okay. Then would it impact the projected life of the 

plant? I know, with Mr. FitzGerald, we talked about 

25 to 30 years being the life of the plant based on the 

coal that's available to be burned, the refuse coal. 

Would it impact that 25 to 30 years and, if so, to what 

degree? 

I can't tell you exactly how it would impact that, 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

because there's a number of assumptions, but the range 

of 25 to 30 years that I mentioned previously takes 

into account consideration of do we have material 

available to us from that portion of the site or not. 

Is it fair to say, then, that, if DLX prevails, the 

25 years is more likely to be the lifespan and, if Fox 

Trot prevails, the 30 years is more likely to be? 

Oh, I don't know that I would put that fine of a point 

on it. 

Would it tend in that direction? 

Well, certainly. 

Okay. 

I mean, there's waste coal on that site, so taking that 

waste coal away from the plant inventory would have an 

effect. 

Okay. Now, the next questions that I was going to ask 

you related to impact on truck traffic and impact on 

train traffic, but I take it from your earlier answer 

that, regardless of the title to that, the 90/10 or 

95/5  ratio is going to remain the same, so I take it 

that truck traffic and train traffic would be no 

different . . . 
That's correct. 

. . . whether DLX prevails or not. 
That's correct. 
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Okay. 

And maybe I could explain. I know my counsel will tell 

me not to do this, but the 5 percent off-site coal that 

we're considering burning at the plant has no require- 

ment other than to make sure that we have enough 

material readily available to operate the plant. The 

waste coal that's on the site can get wet; it can 

freeze up in the wintertime; it can have handling 

problems. 

stockpile of off-site coal. That way, we can assure 

our customer, we can assure our financiers that we're 

going to be operating a reliable power plant. So, 

under normal circumstances, we're not going to be 

burning coal from off-site sources. We'll have some 

available to us and, if conditions warrant, we might 

have to burn some. 

Okay. 

I'm sorry, Mr. Watts. 

I'm not asking you to speculate here. I'm asking you 

if you actually have knowledge. I understand from 

questions that you were asked earlier by Mr. Collier 

that this matter before the bankruptcy court has been 

fully tried and briefed. Does the applicant or Fox 

Trot have any expectation as to when an Order might be 

forthcoming in that case? 

So what we plan to do is have a very small 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

I have no idea. 

Okay. Can we go back to your testimony again, Mr. 

Mack? 

in a page by page order so you don't have to be 

flipping back and forth. 

Thank you. 

Okay? The first recommendation that you have a problem 

with appears on the middle of Page 4 of your testimony, 

beginning at Line - well, actually, the survey we just 

talked about. The next one is Recommendation Number 4 

at the bottom of Page 4, Line 20, and that deals with 

access control to the site; correct? 

Yes. 

Okay. In your response, and I know it was Mr. Jaggers 

who responded to the question, but, in your response to 

Staff Data Request No. 1, Question 13, there's a map 

indicating gates and access points to the property. 

Yes. That was Exhibit G before the revision. 

Okay, and so you're familiar with that? 

Yes. 

Okay. Are the number of access points, the number of 

gates, on that map the same as Brighton recommended in 

its recommendation? 

I don't know. I believe that the recommendation was 

for two controlled access points. We did have some 

And I'm going to proceed through your testimony 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

discussion and some additional data requests concerning 

the number of gates and access points and roads, but 

I've not matched the two documents up. 

Okay. At this point, how many gates and access points 

will you have? 

I'm sorry. I can't answer that question. I would have 

to open up the drawing and count. The point that I was 

trying to make, however, is that limiting it to two 

access points is the current design of the facility. 

However, in the final design of the facility, there may 

be a need for a third access point, depending on the 

construction of the new access road from Highway 499, 

as an example, and it would be difficult to limit us to 

two unless there was a compelling reason for that. 

Is it possible that the railroad might impact how many 

access points you have, or is that already factored in? 

That is already factored in. 

Okay. Would you accept the recommendation of Brighton 

if it simply reflected the number of access points that 

you thought you might need, so, instead of saying two, 

if it said two or three, depending on final design of 

the project? 

MR. WATTS: 

Before the witness speaks, I would just like to 

say that this is really Mr. Jaggers' primary area. 
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You know, if you insist on asking the questions of 

this witness, he'll try to answer, but Mr. Jaggers 

- it's his field. 

MR. TURNER: 

If Mr. Jaggers is the right person, Your Honor, 

I'll be glad to ask him. 

disagreement was in Mr. Mack's testimony, and so I 

didn't know which way I was supposed to go. 

The recommendation 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, I . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

Mr. Mack says he's pleased to answer the question. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

A. 

Q. 

I was going to say let's let Mr. Mack tell us 

if he's capable or not capable of answering it, 

and, if he isn't, why, we'll ask it to Mr. Jaggers 

when he gets on the stand. So go ahead and answer 

the question if you can, Mr. Mack. 

I think that the remainder of the recommendations in 

Number 4 can be generally considered to be industry 

practice. So, with the exception of the limitation to 

two gates, I think it would be acceptable. 

Thank you. Okay. Now, the last questions I have 

relate to - let's see - it's on Page 5, Line 9, 

and your disagreement with Brighton Recommendation 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Number 6, and that deals with the moving of the Jackson 

Electric line. Are you going to receive any 

electricity from Jackson? 

No. There will be no interconnection between the 

project and Jackson Electric Cooperative. 

Okay, and so you won't be providing any electricity, 

any electrons, to Jackson's lines either, will you? 

No, we will not. 

Okay, and then that differentiates Jackson from, for 

instance, KU, and the water company, the phone company, 

others that would be providing essential services to 

the plant? 

It's a difference. I don't know that it, in our mind, 

makes a difference. 

The Jackson line provides electricity to Jackson's 

customers; is that correct? 

That would be my understanding. 

Okay. Assuming that Jackson has an emergency on that 

line that could impact those customers, could impact 

trees or structures underneath the line, whatever, and 

the emergency were at the location of the plant, if the 

line is located within the barrier, within the secure 

area, how will Jackson get to that line? 

Well, first of all, in response to your question, the 

plant is going to be manned 24 hours a day, seven days 
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Q. 

A.  

Q. 

a week, s o  t h e r e  w i l l  be p l a n t  p e r s o n n e l  who would be 

t h e r e ,  able  t o  a l l o w  J E C ' s  crews t o  e n t e r  i n t o  t h e  

i n t e r n a l l y  s e c u r e d  f e n c e .  Beside t h a t ,  i t ' s  cus tomary  

i n  t h i s  t y p e  of a s i t u a t i o n  f o r  J E C ' s  crews t o  have  

t h e i r  own independen t  means o f  e n t e r i n g  i n t o  t h a t  area.  

They would have a key card t h a t  would open t h e  gate;  

t h e y  would have a s e p a r a t e  l o c k  on t h e  gate.  I can  

t e l l  you t h a t  I ' v e  worked i n  a number o f  power p l a n t  

s i t u a t i o n s  where u t i l i t y  l i n e s  have  c r o s s e d  t h r o u g h  and  

o v e r  t h e  s i t e  and  t h e s e  a r r angemen t s  are t y p i c a l .  

Okay. But ,  i f  J ackson  did n o t  have  t o  go t h r o u g h  t h a t  

s e c u r e  area,  t h e y ,  t h e o r e t i c a l l y ,  c o u l d  ge t  t o  t h e  l i n e  

q u i c k e r ,  c o u l d  t h e y  n o t ?  

Well, o f  c o u r s e ,  i f  t h e y  d i d n ' t  have t o  open a gate ,  

t h e y  c o u l d  ge t  t o  it q u i c k e r ,  b u t  t h e  J E C  l i n e  a c t u a l l y  

g o e s  q u i t e  a d i s t a n c e  a c r o s s  o u r  p r o p e r t y .  I t  g o e s  a l l  

t h e  way up t o  Coal  Wash Road and  t h e n  o f f  t h e  p r o p e r t y  

and  t h e n  o n t o  Highway 8 9 .  So, t o  t h e  e x t e n t  t h a t ,  

w h i l e  i t ' s  n o t  t h e  in t e r -power  p l a n t  s e c u r e d  f e n c e ,  t o  

t h e  e x t e n t  t h a t  w e  have,  s a y ,  a f e n c e  a round  t h e  e n t i r e  

p r o p e r t y ,  t h e y ' l l  s t i l l  need  t o  go t h r o u g h  t h a t  f e n c e .  

Okay. Do you have a n  estimated t i m e  t h a t  you would be 

r e a c h i n g  agreement  w i t h  Jackson  as t o  where t h e  l i n e  

w i l l  be r e l o c a t e d ?  I h e a r d  you s a y  e a r l i e r  t h a t  you 

had  n o t  y e t  r e a c h e d  a n  agreement .  
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A. No. We've had the Jackson Electric Co-op engineers out 

to the site, and we've walked the line and we've looked 

at it and provided them a copy of the Exhibit G showing 

where the line is today and asked for some of their 

suggestions on how do you think it could be best 

relocated, and that's pretty much the status. I can 

honestly tell you that I haven't pushed it with them. 

Q. Okay. Thank you, sir. 

MR. TURNER: 

No more questions, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. Do any members of the Board have any 

questions? 

EXAMINATION 

BY SECRETARY WILCHER: 

Q. I just, for clarification, wanted to understand whether 

the coal that you intend to burn wou d come from two 

separate stockpiles, potentially, and be consolidated 

during generation or whether you would use the waste 

coal and then use the other coal, the 5 to 10 percent, 

as a backup when the refuse pile is not dried out 

enough to use for generation. 

A. The off-site coal would be commingled with the waste 

coal from the site and they would be commingled in the 

crusher building. So it wouldn't be a question of 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

turning one on and the other one off. It would be a 

blending process and that blending would be 

accomplished in the crusher. 

And I guess it's been asked and I'm still a little 

uncertain about the potential impact of having 80 less 

acres available on the economics of the plant and 

particularly therefore the impacts on the economy of 

the region and of the state, and, in terms of whether 

that is available or not, that 80 acre part of the 

site, to you, what do you predict the economic impacts 

would be? 

Well, as I said before, if the 80 acres were carved out 

of the site, we could still construct the facility. 

Now, there's material on that 80 acres which, if it 

were not available to the project, would, of course, 

reduce the period of time that the project would have 

before it exhausted the available waste coal on the 

site. Now, my personal belief is that there's probably 

no better use for a pile of waste coal than a power 

plant right next door that burns waste coal. So I 

don't know if that material, you know, wouldn't be sold 

to the project, wouldn't be available to be sold to the 

project. I just don't know. 

Thank you. 
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EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Is there a difference between what your understanding 

was of what DLX claimed before you walked in here today 

versus what you understand they claim now? 

No, sir. 

So the 80 acres that you understand they claim today 

and claimed before they walked in here was what you 

understood? 

That's right. 

Okay. What about the location of that 80 acres? 

No difference. 

No difference. All right. Because I had - I thought I 

had understood that you were surprised when Mr. Collier 

indicated, on behalf of his client, that part of the 

80 acres involved where the actual turbine and the 

stack were to be placed, the actual plant was to be 

built, but that doesn't surprise you? I mean, you 

recognize that that's their claim? 

I don't agree that that's the claim that's in front of 

the bankruptcy court. 

Okay. Well, if you don't care, articulate for me what 

you believe their claim is, as you, as ECEP understands 

it. 

The claim is for the perimeter of the pile that's on 
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the map up there on the wall. 

All right, which does include the site where the plant 

itself is to be constructed? 

Q. 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. All right. Who are the - I think Mr. FitzGerald 

asked you who the employees and agents of ECEP were, 

and I want to ask you a further question. Who are the 

officers of ECEP? 

A. The sole Member and, I believe, Manager of ECEP is 

Calla Energy Holding, LLC, and the sole Member and 

Manager of Calla Energy Holding, LLC is Ms. Jacquelyn 

Yates. I don't . . . 
Q. All right. Does . . . 
A. I'm sorry. 

Q. I'm sorry. Go ahead and finish your answer. 

A. I don't know that there are other officers. 

Q. Would it surprise you if you were told that Mr. C. E. 

Yates signed the interconnection agreement with the 

MISO, dated April 8, 2004, as Vice President and CEO of 

Estill County Energy Partners, which is Exhibit . . . 
A. M. 

Q. . . . 0, I think, 13 0 to the application? 
A. Mr. Yates was made Vice President and CEO at that time 

in order, in my understanding, to sign that agreement. 

Q. Well, what do you mean "at that time"? Is he no longer 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

Vice President and CEO of ECEP? 

He is not. 

Okay. Well, if you don't care, give us a little 

history, then, about - I mean, quite frankly, Mr. Mack, 

ECEP is a little bit - it's a little bit fuzzy in my 

mind as to who ECEP is. I understand who the sole 

Member is, and that sort of thing, but, if you know, 

take us from the beginning of when ECEP, LLC was formed 

and tell us who the principals were right on up to 

today. 

I can't tell you that. 

Who would know that? 

Probably Ms. Underwood, 

request. 

Okay. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I don't know. 

but that might be a data 

Well, let's make t,,at a data request, Mr. Turner, 

please. 

MR. WATTS: 

Just for the record, sir, could you restate the 

re quest ? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yes. Essentially, what I'm interested to know 

is, from the inception of Estill County Energy 

Partners, LLC, who formed the LCC and some history 
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as to who the Members have been and history as to 

who the officers of that limited liability 

corporation have been. 

MR. WATTS: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

All right. Yes, sir. 

Do you know when Mr. C. E. Yates ceased to be Vice 

President and CEO of ECEP? 

I think he was Vice President and CEO in April and, I 

believe, May. 

Do you know why he was only an officer for those two 

months? 

It's my understanding that he was made an officer in 

order to sign the interconnection agreement. 

Do you know why that was necessary? I mean, I 

understand you're not an attorney. I'm not holding you 

to that standard, but I'm a little curious as to why 

that transpired that way. Do you know? 

No, I don't. 

Besides being a Member of ECEP, is Ms. Jacquelyn Yates 

an officer of that entity? 

I don't know the answer to that question. I believe 

that Calla Energy Holding is the Member and Manager. 

MR. WATTS: 

Just for the record, sir, I want to point out 

these are LLCs as opposed to corporations. 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, I understand that. 

MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

And I appreciate that, but that's why my interest 

is piqued that Mr. Yates would sign in his 

capacity as an officer of a limited liability 

corporation. 

Do you know why that was? 

No, sir, I don't. 

All right. Now, on Page 2 of your testimony, starting 

at Line 15, you indicate, and actually it would start 

at Line 17, you state, ' I . . .  it should be noted that 

only a small portion of the Site, only a refuse pile 

tract, is subject to an adversary proceeding before the 

. . .  Bankruptcy Court . . . I '  When you say "a small 

portion of the Site," is that the 80 acres that you're 

speaking about? 

Yes, it is. 

All right. Okay. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Those are all the questions I have. Let's turn 

it over to you, Mr. Watts, then, for redirect. 
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MR. WATTS: 

Thank you, sir. If I may have just a moment. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Sure. 

OFF THE RECORD 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

While you're doing that, Mr. Watts, there was 

one other question, Mr. Mack, that I had and 

forgot. 

As I understand it, Firststar Bank had a mortgage, or I 

guess - was it a mortgage or a judgment lien, or what 

did Firststar Bank have against Kentucky Processing? 

Do you know? 

No, I don't. 

All right. Are you aware that Fox Trot Corporation was 

an assignee of Firststar Bank in terms of whatever debt 

obligation Firststar Bank enjoyed with regard to 

Kentucky Processing? 

No, I'm not. 

All right. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Okay. Mr. Watts, that's all I have. 

MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. Just one second. 
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BY 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

MR. WATTS: 

Mr. FitzGerald asked you a question about consider- 

ation you had given, the project had given, to 

collocation at an electric generating site; is that 

correct? 

Yes. 

Okay. Are there any other reasons for choosing this 

site compared to that site in terms of unique 

attributes that this site offers? 

Well, there are. Development of this site with the 

power plant is going to a1 ow us to replace the old 

wash plant structures that most of you have seen on the 

site. It's going to allow us to reclaim the site after 

the removal of the waste coal by putting the coal 

combustion by-products back, and it's ideally suited 

for industrial development, with the river and the 

railroad and the fact that the surrounding community, 

you know, has already been aware that there's been 

industrial development on this site. 

MR. WATTS: 

No further questions. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Mr. Collier, recross? 
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RECROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COLLIER: 

Q. Some of the questions to which ECEP had responded had 

to do with the impact of this particular project upon 

adjoining landowners, both financial and otherwise. 

Did ECEP conduct any analysis with respect to the 

interests that DLX and the Trust own? 

A. ECEP . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

Well, before you answer that question, the 

question was argumentative. 

that his clients own. We disagree with the claim 

that they own them. So I want the record to 

reflect that. 

It said interests 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I assume you mean alleged interests. 

MR. COLLIER: 

I know that they disagree. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. 

sustained. Just go ahead - just rephrase it in 

terms of alleged interests, I suppose. 

That objection is noted for the record and 

Q. Did ECEP perform any analysis as to the impact, 

financial and otherwise, with respect to the property 

interests that are claimed by DLX and the Trust? 
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A. ECEP performed, or had performed, an economic 

evaluation of the impact of the power plant on the 

surrounding community. We did not specifically look 

only at the properties that DLX is claiming an interest 

in. 

I didn't ask about - I just want to know about those 

particular properties, because the plant is proposed to 

be built on or adjacent to properties they claim, 

depending on your viewpoint. 

Q. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

I think he answered your question. 

Did you consider the impact of moving, or the ability, 

whether you'll even have the ability to move this 

Jackson Electric power line, for instance, should DLX 

end up owning the property, or should I say that Fox 

Trot fails in the litigation? 

If Fox Trot fails in litigation, then Fox Trot would 

only be responsible for relocating the portion of the 

JEC line that would go across our site. If JEC wanted 

to relocate the line that went across a DLX pile, that 

would be an arrangement between them and DLX. 

So it's not necessary to relocate the line? 

It's necessary to relocate a portion of the line as it 

crosses our facility, and we would be responsible for 

that portion of it. If you're asking me would we 
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relocate the line off our property, the answer to that 

one is no. 

Q. But is it necessary, if the plant is built, to relocate 

Jackson's power line? 

A. Again, as it goes over our site, yes. 

Q. The question had been asked earlier as to whether there 

were any financial arrangements or negotiations with 

public entities concerning this particular project, and 

I believe one of the data requests or one of the 

responses to the data requests indicated that ECEP 

and/or Fox Trot had reached an agreement with Estill 

County concerning property taxes. 

A. I don't believe that's correct. 

Q. 

A. Yes. I've been made aware that there are some property 

Are you aware of a problem relating to property taxes? 

taxes. 

Q. Has ECEP or, to ECEP's knowledge, Fox Trot made an 

arrangement to remove whatever lien may be represented 

by those taxes? 

A. Well, I don't necessarily know that there is a lien 

associated with those taxes, but no final arrangement 

has been made. 

Q. Have discussions been held to solve that issue? 

A. I don't know. I'm not involved in that issue. 

J 142 

CONNIE SEWELL 



3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. COLLIER: 

If I might allow someone else - I would rather 

just find it. 

and waste your time, if someone else wants to ask 

a question, I'll be happy to pass until I can find 

it. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Rather than to sit here and flip 

Well, that's fine. That prompts a question of 

mine. 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Q. I understood you to say, when we were in Irvine the 

other night for the public hearing, I understood you to 

tell the public that ECEP intended to satisfy all the 

outstanding county property taxes in Estill County once 

this project was closed. 

A. And I believe that that the statement I made was that, 

prior to closing the project, either Fox Trot 

Properties or ECEP would settle and pay whatever taxes 

it was determined were due and owing. 

Q. Okay. All right. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. Mr. FitzGerald, do you have anything on 

recross? 
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MR. FITZGERALD: 

Just a couple. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

BY 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Fools rush in. I should probably not even go 

here, but I will. 

RECROSS EXAMINATION 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

On redirect, you indicated that it was not merely the 

presence of on-site waste coal that made you choose 

this site and you indicated two additional reasons 

which were not part of your response to my question why 

did you not look at collocating elsewhere. The only 

answer here was that because on-site coal is available 

and can be economically transported. You also 

indicated that you'll also reclaim the site and it 

gives you an opportunity to replace old buildings and 

potentially to create an industrial park. Is that a 

fair summation of your response to the redirect? 

I think that my response was describing other benefits 

to having this plant on that site. 

Oh, okay. Do you intend to reclaim the entire 

620 acres or rather those areas that you redisturb 

to remove waste coal? 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A.  

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. 

That's an either/or. 

I'm sorry? 

You intend to reclaim all 620 acres? 

We intend to reclaim the areas that we remove waste 

coal. 

And will you be removing waste coal from the entire 

620 acres? 

No. 

Okay. So then your statement that reclaiming this 

site, you will actually only reclaim those areas that 

you redisturb? 

There are areas on the site that were not disturbed 

when the waste coal was placed there, so we're not 

going to disturb them further. 

How many acres would that consist of? 

I don't know. 

Roughly, you don't have . . . 
I wouldn't even want to guess. 

Are you going to be removing all of the buildings that 

are currently there on site? 

No. 

Okay. So, in the statement "replacing old buildings,'' 

you are going to remove some of the buildings? 

That's right. 
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Q. 
A .  

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

Okay, and how many buildings will you be keeping? 

There was a data request on this topic, and I believe 

that our statement was we're going to be removing the 

big old rusty buildings that are down by the river and 

that some of the, I'll call them, outbuildings, some of 

the maintenance shops, that aren't directly on that 

site that are still in fairly good condition and can be 

recovered may be kept and may be used as maintenance 

facilities for the plant. 

Okay. Do you know whether those, as you put it, rusty 

old buildings down by the river are under a mining 

permit now? 

I don't know the answer to that. 

Okay. Mr. Jaggers might? 

He might. 

Okay. I'll ask him, then. The last question I had - 

I'm a little confused, and I'll admit my confusion. I 

asked you to describe the relationship, in Data Request 

20, and you responded to this, between ECEP and any of 

its owners, principals, or agents and Calla Energy 

Partners, The Institute of Gas Technology, Chuck Yates, 

Donnie LaViers, Kentucky Processing, and DLX, Inc., in 

that order. You responded regarding Charles (Chuck) 

Yates that he is the husband of Ms. Jacquelyn Yates but 

didn't note that he was, for a two-month period, the 

Are they part of a permitted area? 

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Vice President and CEO of ECEP, and I'm curious - did 

that slip your mind? 

I answered the question to the facts that were correct 

at the time that the question was answered. 

Well, I mean, you told me that he was an officer of 

Kentucky Processing under e. Why didn't you tell me he 

was an officer of ECEP for a two-month period? 

We answered the question based on the facts that were 

correct at that time. 

You didn't know at the time that he was the Vice 

President and CEO for a two-month period? 

I knew at the time that he had been the Vice President 

and CEO to sign the interconnection agreement. 

Okay. Was he the Vice President and CEO only for that 

purpose, or was he the Vice President and CEO of ECEP 

generally for that two-month period? 

I don't know that there was any exclusion. 

Okay. Is there a document that indicates the 

termination of his employment as Vice President and CEO 

of ECEP that we could make a data request? 

I assume that there is. I don't have that document. 

Okay. Could we make that a data request? Because, as 

of June llth, if he was not a former Vice President and 

CEO of ECEP, there should have been an environmental 

compliance and disclosure, and I'd like to just verify 
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t h a t ,  i n  f ac t ,  h i s  brief p a r t i c i p a t i o n  ended before  

t h a t  t i m e .  

A .  ( N o  verbal  response.  ) 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

T h a n k  you, M r .  C h a i r m a n .  T h a t ' s  a l l  I have. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

W e ' l l  t u r n  i t  back over t o  you, M r .  C o l l i e r .  

D i d  you f i n d  what you needed? 

MR. COLLIER: 

I d id .  I t  was i n  one of the o t h e r  data  requests. 

COURT REPORTER: 

J u s t  a moment. I have a q u e s t i o n .  When he sa id  

could  he make t h a t  avai lable ,  there  w a s  no 

response,  o r  somebody might  have shook t h e i r  head 

A. Y e s .  

COURT REPORTER: 

T h a n k  you .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Have you got  t h a t  on your  l i s t ,  M r .  T u r n e r ?  

MR. TURNER: 

I w i l l .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

A l l  r i g h t .  

MR. TURNER: 

I t h i n k  t h a t  probably i s  already encompassed i n  
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your data request, is it not, asking about the 

history of officers and directors? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yeah, I think it probably is. 

MR. WATTS: 

I thought it was, but I also mn't objec to 

covering it this way, whichever is easier for you. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I think it's probably encompassed in that prior 

request. Let's get the information either way we 

go, because I think Mr. FitzGerald is entitled to 

get it. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. That's all 

RECROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COLLIER: 

Q. ' 2u responded, on behalf of ECEP, to Mr. H 

I have. 

rrick's Dat 

Request No. 2, and, under subheading e., you indicated 

that, "ECEP also understands that the total amount of 

outstanding (taxes, penalties and interest) is 

approximately $350,000. Those taxes which survive the 

bankruptcies of these companies and transfer of the 

properties to Fox Trot Properties, LLC . . .  will be 
settled in connection with development of the Site." 

What assurance do you have that they will be settled? 
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A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

What discussions has ECEP had to assure itself that it 

can make this statement? 

The assurance that we can make to ourselves is that I 

know that Fox Trot Properties is working on this. The 

assurances that we can provide to Estill County is 

that, without sett ing the outstanding taxes, there's 

going to be a lien on the property and we're not going 

to be able to close financing. 

Do you know with whom Fox Trot is negotiating? 

No, I don't. 

Have any promises been made - I noticed the name of 

Estill County Energy Partners is in the plural and, as 

I understand it, there's but one Member at this point 

in time. Have any agreements, discussions, negoti- 

ations been had concerning the induction of additional 

Members into Estill County Energy Partners upon closing 

of the deal to get the lease, to purchase the plant, 

etc.? 

Not to my knowledge. 

Has anyone expressed an interest in becoming one of 

those partners or a Member of ECEP? 

MR. WATTS: 

He just answered the question before. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, I think he - restate the question. I was 
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handing Secretary Wilcher her coffee and I didn't 

hear the question. I apologize. 

MR. COLLIER: 

That's quite all right. 

SECRETARY WILCHER: 

It's my fault. It's my fault. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

I can remember it. 

Has any person or entity expressed interest in becoming 

a Member of ECEP? 

Not to me. 

The final question has to do with the coal that the 

plant burns. In a rough way, isn't it true that, when 

coal is burned, the desire is to achieve a certain 

level of BTU? I mean, the coal has to be capable of 

putting out a certain amount of energy to make the 

plant run? 

Well, actually, no. To make the plant run, the boiler 

has to receive a certain amount of energy. 

That's BTUs, is it not? 

It's measured in BTUs, yes. 

Right. So that waste that has a higher BTU count, less 

is required to produce the desired level of output than 

would be of coal that doesn't have as high a BTU 

content? 
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A. To the extent that a fuel has more BTUs per pound, you 

would need to put in less pounds. 

Do you know whether the waste on this property varies Q. 

A. 

in BTU content? 

Yes. 

Q. 
MR. WATTS: 

Which is the best waste coal that you propose to durn? 

I'm going to object to that. This proceeding, in 

large part, has been, at least in my view, an 

exercise on the part of Mr. Collier and his 

clients to try to gain information about this 

project which they believe will be helpful to them 

in their litigated position, and we're trying to 

get now into project economics, and I object to it 

that you will sustain my objection. and hope 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, I hink the amount of waste coal vis-a-vis 

the amount of clean coal it must be blended with 

is an issue as it relates to noise, potentially, 

as it relates to dust, as it relates to traffic, 

and those sorts of things. So, if the question is 

meant to ascertain whether or not the percentages 

of blended coal will change as the BTU changes in 

a particular location on the waste site is being 

mined, in my estimation, is an appropriate 
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question. Now, I don't know if that's what you're 

asking. I think that's what you're asking. 

MR. COLLIER: 

There are additional factors that attend the BTU 

content of the coal. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, certainly I don't think it's appropriate for 

you to ask him specific questions as to the BTU of 

the coal from a quantitative standpoint. 

Certainly I don't think it's inappropriate for you 

to ask him if, at various points on the 620 acres, 

the waste coal is a better quality than it is in 

other locations, but let's not get real specific 

for proprietary reasons. 

MR. COLLIER: 

I don't mean to get into calorific, ash, and 

sulphur, and all that. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. 

MR. COLLIER: 

I don't mean to do it at all. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. I'm going to overrule the objection on 

that limited basis, but let's try to keep it 

pretty limited. 
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Q. My question, Mr. Mack, are there particular areas in 

general that have a higher BTU value, this waste coal 

that's on the site that you propose to mine, if you 

will, and burn, than others? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Which sites have the highest level as compared to the 

others? 

MR. WATTS: 

I'm going to object to that question. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Overruled. You can answer the question. 

Which sites on the property have a higher BTU content 

relative to the others? 

Generally, the river pile has a higher BTU per pound 

content and a corresponding higher sulphur content. 

And what you mean, that is the property that DLX claims 

to own, when you say the river pile? I've called it 

the refuse pile tract, but I just want to make sure 

we're talking about the same property. 

It is. 

If that's true and if the DLX coal were not available 

and you had to burn more coal of a lesser BTU content 

from other areas, would not that mean that you would go 

through that coal, on a tonnage basis, more quickly 

than you would the higher calorific content coal from 
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t h e  r e f u s e  p i l e  s i t e ?  

A.  I f  you b u r n  a lower  BTU p e r  pound c o a l ,  you have  t o  

b u r n  more pounds.  

Q .  So t h a t  would p r o p o r t i o n a l l y ,  once a g a i n ,  s h o r t e n  t h e  

p e r i o d  of t i m e  from which you c o u l d  e x p e c t  t o  b u r n  c o a l  

s o l e l y  from t h a t  s i t e  i f  DLX owns t h a t  c o a l ?  

A .  That  s r i g h t .  

MR. COLLIER:  

T h a t ' s  a l l  my q u e s t i o n s .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. M r .  Tu rne r?  

MR. TURNER: 

No q u e s t i o n s .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

Does anybody have  a n y t h i n g  e lse? 

MR. WATTS: 

I do have  one .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

Okay. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. WATTS: 

Q.  Regard ing  t h e  q u e s t i o n  you were j u s t  a s k e d  and  a n  

e a r l i e r  q u e s t i o n  t h a t  you were asked by  M r .  Tu rne r  i n  

which t h e r e  w a s  d i s c u s s i o n  a b o u t  t h e  impac t  of h a v i n g  

t h e  DLX c o a l  n o t  b e i n g  ava i lab le ,  and,  as I r eca l l ,  you 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

testified, in the range of 25 to 30 years, was that 

your estimate of that range would not be affected by 

the loss of the DLX coal; correct? 

I think my testimony was that it's impossible to say, 

you know, 25.2 years, because there's a range of 

assumptions that go with the period of time that you 

would exhaust a finite inventory that's on site but 

that not having a portion of that inventory would move 

you towards the lower range. 

And, when you answered Mr. Turner, did you include in 

your analysis the BTU content of the river pile coal 

vis-a-vis the other coal on site? 

No, I didn't make a differentiation. 

Okay. Thanks. 

MR. COLLIER: 

That's all I have. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Any of the Board members have any other questions? 

As they say in an auction, all in, all done. 

Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Mack. I'm a 

little bit concerned. It's twenty minutes after 

two and we've just gotten finished with the first 

witness. You have Mr. Jaggers as your only other 

witness; is that right? 
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MR. WATTS: 

Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. Does anybody have any idea - will Mr. 

Jaggers take a similar amount of time, or no? 

see some head shakes "NO," so that's good. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Mr. Chairman, we just have a handful of pretty 

straightforward questions. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I 

Okay. Well, let's go ahead and get Mr. Jaggers up 

here and see how far we get, and we'll take a 

break here in just a few minutes. Mr. Jaggers, 

would you come forward, please, sir? 

WITNESS SWORN 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Have a seat. 

MR. WATTS: 

Do you need some water or anything? 

MR. JAGGERS: 

Yes, I do. 

MR. WATTS: 

Mr. Chairman, before we do this, I neglected to 

ask, at the conclusion of Mr. Mack's testimony, 

whether the proposed Condition that we presented 
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CHAIRJ! F! 

at the beginning of the hearing had been 

identified, and, if not, I wanted to be sure that 

it was. I think I read it. So it's in the 

record, but I thought it would be good to have it 

identified. 

J GOSS: 

Yeah, I'm not sure it has been identified. Do you 

wish to make it an exhibit? 

MR. WATTS: 

Yes, I think that would be appropriate. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Is there any objection to that? 

MR. COLLIER: 

I don't mind that it is made an exhibit, but DLX 

and the Trust do not agree to the portions of the 

proposal that are expressed therein . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Certainly. Okay. That . . . 
MR. COLLIER: 

. . . and, if that should be addressed later, 
that's fine. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, I think everyone understands what it is. 

It's the applicant's proffer. That's what the 

applicant wants. 
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MR. COLLIER: 

I can be specific and it's brief, is that clearly 

they're going to produce a boundary survey at some 

point. Whether it's within the time frame that 

you all will get to look at or not is another 

question. On the other hand, seeking the Siting 

Board's approval and direction to record it in the 

Estill County Clerk's Office has legal impli- 

cations vis-a-vis my clients' property interests 

and also as to whether it would conform with 

Kentucky regulations governing surveys, and I 

certainly would like to weigh in on that, if 

that's going to be something that the Siting Board 

wishes to get into. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, I mean, the Siting Board is certainly not 

going to rule on the proposal at this point. If 

it's something that you think you want to argue in 

your brief, since it's going to be of record, then 

I would recommend that you do that, . . . 
MR. COLLIER: 

Okay. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

. . . and we'll consider it at that time. 
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MR. COLLIER: 

That will be fine. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

So that will be Applicant 2. Is that right, 

Connie? 

COURT REPORTER: 

I don't have it. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

One was . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

The TVA book. 

MR. TURNER: 

Yeah, I think so. Applicant 1 was the big thing 

from TVA, exactly. 

APPLICANT EXHIBIT 2 

MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. 

The witness, DELL JAGGERS, after having been first 

duly sworn, testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. WATTS: 

Q. Would you please state your name, position of 

employment, and business address? 

A. My name is Dell Jaggers. I work with CBC Engineers, 

112 Dennis Drive, Lexington, Kentucky, as Vice 
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Q. 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 
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A. 

President and General Manager. 

Now, do you have with you a document consisting of six 

typed pages of questions and answers with, I guess, a 

verification and certificate of service, and so forth, 

that is entitled, "Direct Testimony of Dell Jaggers on 

Behalf of Estill County Energy Partners, LLC"? 

Yes. 

All right, and was that prepared by you or under your 

direction? 

Yes. 

Do you have any corrections or additions to it? 

No. 

All right, and, if you were asked the questions 

contained in it, would you provide the same or 

substantially the same answers? 

Yes. 

All right, and you wish to sponsor it as your direct 

testimony in this proceeding? 

Yes, I do. 

MR. WATTS: 

Okay. Thank you. Mr. Jaggers is available for 

cross. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Thank you, Mr. Watts. Go ahead, Mr. Collier. 
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CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COLLIER: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

What is your exact relationship to ECEP? 

an independent contractor? 

We're a consulting engineering firm, and we're acting 

as a consultant. 

So you hold no position or any member of your firm with 

ECEP? 

No, sir, do not. 

And don't own a financial interest? 

No, sir, do not. 

Your involvement - I've looked at your - yours has more 

to do, I guess, with more engineering related issues 

and not so much all the financial and other issues that 

have been involved. I looked on Page 2 of your 

testimony, and you said that "CBC has prepared mapping 

for the Siting Application and is responsible for . . . , ' I  

and then you listed a variety of different things that 

have been prepared. 

direction? 

Yes. 

So who works under your direction at CBC? 

We have a total of nine people in my office. 

Does that include engineers and surveyors, other 

employees who are members of your team? 

Are you also 

Were these done under your 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Yes. 

Are you a surveyor as well? 

qualifica ions and didn't see any LS number there. 

I am not a registered land surveyor. 

As part of your supervisory duties with CBC, do you 

review surveys that are being performed in conjunction 

with the project that you are managing? 

Typically not. 

You don't review them? 

I'll look at the maps, . . . 
Okay. 

. . . but, in terms of actually preparing the surveys 
and preparing that . . . 
No. When I say "review," I mean did you look at it and 

read it and, you know, you might ask questions or that, 

but I realize you can't sign off on it. 

That's correct. 

Your firm, then, prepared all of what I guess a lay 

person might refer to as the maps that are attached as 

exhibits to both the application and the responses to 

all the data requests? 

Your question was ''all,'' and I'm trying to think 

through. 

Well, . . . 
If not all, pretty close to. 

I looked at your 

We did most of the 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

mapping and a lot of the data responses. 

say all of it. 

When it comes to a map as opposed to, let's say, a 

survey, and a survey does have a legal meaning - I 

understand that - in Kentucky, did anyone at your firm 

sign off on any of these maps? 

In terms of signing off with some sort of professional 

engineering stamp or . . . 
Some sort of certification. 

. . . registered land surveyor stamp, no, they were 
not. 

In particular, let me direct your attention to what's - 

it's been referred to as Exhibit B. Do you know the 

one I'm talking about? I think it's called the site 

boundary map. 

connection with your Response 10 to the Staff's First 

Data Request, if you want to pull that out, because I'm 

going to ask you a question about that particular . . . 
And it's in No. lo? 

Yes. Typically, if a survey is done, it's reported in 

courses and distances; is it not? 

If a survey is done? 

Yes. It's required by law to be in courses and 

distances so that there's a legal description that 

accompanies the survey. 

I hesitate to 

I hope I can - I think it was revised in 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

If it's to be recorded. You can do a survey but it not 

have to be specified. I guess I'm not sure what your 

questio is. 

Well, in other words, there's the graphic repre- 

sentation, the layout, what I might call a map, that 

shows where the lines are, outbuildings, whatever it is 

that have been located on the diagram, but also, for a 

quote, "survey" that a surveyor would sign, it would 

have a legal description in a box or an inset that was 

the courses. In other words, north so many degrees, 

east X number of feet to whatever point is referred to, 

and so forth and so on, until it closes; correct? 

If you're asking me if a registered land surveyor is 

going to put his stamp on there, that it have distances 

and directions, . . . 
Yeah. 

. . . then the answer to that question is yes. 
All right. This map does not have that, does it? 

No, it does not. 

In fact, . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Let's identify - I know you said "10" . . .  
MR. COLLIER: 

Okay. I will. 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

L e t ' s  i d e n t i f y  t h e  map a l i t t l e  c learer ,  p l e a s e ,  

a s  t o  date.  

MR. COLLIER:  

I t h i n k  i t  was r e f e r r e d  t o  as E x h i b i t  B i n  t h e  

a p p l i c a t i o n ,  b u t  t h e n  it was m o d i f i e d  i n  some way, 

and  I ' m  n o t  s u r e  what it i s  a t  t h i s  p o i n t ,  b u t  it 

was a t t a c h e d ,  a g a i n ,  t o  S t a f f  Reques t  . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I have one dated J u l y  1, and  I have  one dated J u l y  

13. Now, which one are you t a l k i n g  a b o u t ?  

MR. COLLIER:  

W e l l ,  i f  you 've  g o t  one dated J u l y  13, I d o n ' t  

know why m i n e ' s  J u l y  1. 

Responses  t o  S t a f f ' s  Data Reques t  1, Tab 10. 

I ' m  l o o k i n g  a t  t h e  

MR. WATTS: 

The one I have  i s  dated J u l y  1. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

A l l  r i g h t .  T h a t ' s  f i n e .  I j u s t  wanted t o  make 

s u r e  we're a l l  l o o k i n g  a t  t h e  same map. 

MR. COLLIER: 

A l l  r i g h t .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. 

Q. I n  o t h e r  words,  t h e r e ' s  a k i n d  o f  p u r p l i s h  b l u e  l i n e  on 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

the legend that says "Property Line. 'I 

Yes. 

I'm trying to figure out, in absence of a complete 

survey, that's not necessarily accurate, is it? It's a 

representation? 

Probably best characterized as a representation of the 

property. 

Okay, and right under the "Property Line," there is - 

in fact, it says, "Boundary Disclaimer." Why is the 

boundary disclaimer on this? 

There are rules and standards for registered land 

surveyors putting property boundaries, and, if it is a 

registered survey, then it needs to have a surveyor 

stamp and recognized as such. This would make it 

recognizable that, in fact, this was not a 

survey document for a courthouse. 

Well, somewhere between a full survey and 

recordable 

omething 

that is useful for trying to locate boundaries or 

buildings or physical objects or something like that, 

would it be fair to characterize this boundary 

disclaimer as stating that anything represented on it 

is not worthy of reliance? 

That's what the parties believe, Estill County Energy 

believes, that it owns based upon the boundary 

descriptions in some deeds. 

167 

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

a 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

But it says, "NO certification is made or implied as to 

the correctness or authenticity of any information 

re1 tive to the property boundaries as shown." That 

exception seems to consume the entire statement that 

this is a site boundary map. I mean, who can rely on 

this? Can I rely on anything that I see on this map? 

I guess it is an opportunity - and this is done in 

surface mining permit applications and different things 

- to try as best you can to reflect the property 

boundaries as you believe them to be and as the owner 

believes them to be, but they are not surveyed to the 

accuracy so that they could be placed with a deed in 

the courthouse, and, in order to be fair about that, as 

a registered land surveyor, which I am not - we do have 

them in the company which I am not one of them - in 

order to do that, one must place a disclaimer on there 

or jeopardize placing themselves in a bad position. So 

that's the reason that disclaimer is added. 

Okay. Well, you've got surveyors at your office; why 

didn't one of them sign this? 

As earlier testified to, the survey is not complete. 

All right. In that case, if my clients, when reviewing 

your data requests, can't rely on it, how can the 

Siting Board rely on it? In other words, why is it 

even here if it can't be relied upon for any of the 

168 

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q .  

A. 

data that's shown on it? 

It's because the applicant has done its best to 

describe to the Siting Board what they believe the 

property boundary is. 

I understand, and we've talked earlier - you were here 

during Mr. Mack's testimony where we referred to 

various statutes about boundaries and discussions of 

the surveys, and all these things are presented for a 

purpose, and that's to secure this certificate, but I 

ask you again; is the Siting Board authorized to rely 

on this? It doesn't say so here, at least the way I 

read it. Is CBC telling the Commission, "Well, no, 

that's not quite right. You can rely on this"? 

I'm really not in a position to tell the Board what 

they are and are not authorized to accept. 

tell you what I believe is represented on this map. 

Well, is it fair to say that CBC is making no 

certification, is made or implied, to the Siting Board 

as to the correctness or authenticity of any 

information relative to the property boundaries as 

shown? I've added "to the Siting Board" because this 

was submitted to the Siting Board. You're telling me 

that CBC is not certifying or implying to the Siting 

Board that the boundaries can be relied upon? 

We are certifying to this Board that this is not an 

I can only 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

exact survey boundary of that property. 

Then are you all prepared to remove the disclaimer so 

that they ca rely on it? 

Am I prepared to remove the disclaimer? 

Yeah. 

Not until the boundary of the survey has been 

completed. 

All right. Well, let's talk about the survey. When 

was CBC first asked to conduct a survey on this 

property? 

Do I need to fold this up now? 

You can. I'm through with it. 

Okay. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Why don't we stop right here and take about a 

15 minute break. We've gone a little more than an 

hour and a half. Let's come back about five 

minutes to three. 

OFF THE RECORD 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. We're back on the record. Mr. 

Collier, I think you were examining. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Yes. 

Q. I had asked you a question out of ECEP's Responses to 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

the Staff's First Data Request, and I would like to 

refer you again to that volume. Particularly, under 

Tab 1, there is a - and it's going to be - I've asked 

you a similar series of questions about the accuracy of 

the lines and there's the same disclaimer, and it 

appears to be very similar lines on that one as well. 

It's called "Adjacent Property Owners" . . . 
Yes. 

. . . map, if you will. 
Okay. 

All the questions I asked you before about the other 

one are going to be true about this one and your 

responses as well in terms of the disclaimer and the 

boundaries; correct? I mean, I don't need to - if you 

want to look at it . . . 
Let me state that by saying that the disclaimer was 

added to this map for the same reason that it was addec 

to the other map. 

It just has more lines on it as to boundaries? 

Correct. 

Is it also fair to say that that map does not represen 

any of the properties claimed by the LaViers Trust or 

DLX? 

I believe, I mean, if I understand your question, . . 
Right. 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

Let me tell you what it shows. 

All right. Go right ahead. 

I guess. 

time? 

Do you have it? 

and have you . . . 
Just tell me what you want to know and I'll try to help 

you. 

I'm looking at it, . . . 
Okay. 

. . . and I don't see anything on there that - in terms 
of the map index to the adjacent landowners, it doesn't 

list either DLX or the LaViers Family Trust. 

That is correct. 

All right. Now, in terms of certification, had it been 

a proper survey, had it been a survey that not only met 

the standards but was capable of being signed by the 

surveyor, would it have not been required to show 

encroachments or items which indicated competing claims 

on the survey if they were known to the surveyor? 

The surveyor would have taken the deeds as they were 

recorded at the courthouse . . . 

Why don't you shoot your question one more 

I don't intend to ask you a question 

Uh-huh. 

. . . and recorded them as they believed that they fit. 
Okay. What you said is a true statement, but that 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

wasn't an answer, I don't believe, to the question that 

I asked, if there were encroachments. An encroachment 

could be a building overlap, could it not? I mean, to 

those of us who live in the city, if somebody built 

their garage over my property line, if I had my 

property surveyed, it ought to show that somebody has 

got a building on my property; right? 

If you're asking me if an encroachment were made on the 

property by another building, then property surveys 

typically do show a building on there; not always. It 

depends on the level of the survey and what you're 

doing it for. If it's an ALTA survey, you'll have a 

building on there. If it's not an ALTA survey, it 

won't have a building on there, or it doesn't have to. 

If land were in the adverse possession of another, it 

might be shown on there? 

But, when you're saying "in adverse possession,'' . . . 
Uh-huh. 

. . . you know, if something is in the courthouse that 
is shown that another property belongs to another 

person that's within a boundary that you're surveying, 

then, yes, you would be required to do that. You would 

be required to show that as it was deeded and shown in 

the courthouse. 

I thought - but to complete a survey, you actually go 
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to the property, don't you? 

A. You have to have something to survey. 

Q. Yeah, right. You go out to the land, and, if an 

encroachment is visible when you see it, you have to 

show that too, don't you? 

Okay, and tell me what you mean by "an encroachment." A. 

Q. It could be a number of things, but I used the . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Mr. Collier, I'm going to interrupt you, sir. I 

think it has been well established that this is 

not a survey that has been signed off by an RLS. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Right. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Everyone recognizes that, and, in fact, this 

gentleman himself has indicated in his 

qualifications that he is not a registered 1 

surveyor. So I guess I would ask you to move on 

to something a little bit more relevant with 

regard to what this particular witness can answer 

to, if you would, sir. 

MR. COLLIER: 

All right. 

Q. Now, I had asked you earlier if CBC was in the process 

of performing a survey of the entire premises, as you 
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a 

understand them. I can't remember the 600 - is it 640, 

620? I can't remember the approximate acreage of the 

site. Is CBC doing that? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When was it first asked to begin a survey? 

A. The leaves weren't on yet. So it was probably 

somewhere about February, March, April, something like 

that time. 

Q. Of? 

A. This year. 

Q. This year? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. How long has CBC been retained by ECEP? 

A. CBC started working on this sometime about February of 

2002. 

Q. All right. 

A. Excuse me; 2003. 

Q. All right. That's fine. 

A. Pardon. 

Q. Has the survey been completed in terms of the field 

work? 

A. No, it has not. 

Q. Have any surveys been completed . . . 
A. Have any surveys been completed? 

Q. . . . as to any portion of this property? 
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8 

A. The survey of this entire property has not been 

completed. 

I would like to direct your attention to Tab 13 of 

ECEP's Responses to Staff Data Request No. 1. 

A. In fact, that's the same one we were looking at, 

Q. 

Exhibit . . . 
Q. No. Tab 13. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Is this one on an easel, on a hard board or 

something? 

MR. COLLIER: 

Pardon? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Is this one mounted on a board that we can put it 

on an easel or something where . . . 
A. Yes. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Is it? 

A. We have one. 

MR. WATTS: 

We have one. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Why don't we do it that way? 

A. Sure. 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I don't want to take over your examination, but it 

seems like - there's seven of us up here and 

there's no way we can look at seven maps. They're 

too big. You're welcome to approach the exhibit 

or whatever you want to do, Mr. Collier, and, Mr. 

Jaggers, you're welcome to come down off the 

witness stand and refer to the exhibit as 

Mr. . . . 
MR. COLLIER: 

Unfortunately, the part I'm about to refer him to 

is the, quote, "fine print." 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Okay. Well, that's fine. 

MR. COLLIER: 

So I hope you can bear with me. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Sure, whatever you need to do. 

Q. This map was prepared by your office; correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. All right. It shows a date of July 1, '04. Is that 

simply the date of preparation, or was it prepared 

before that time? 

A. I would have to go back and check, but there was an 

original submittal with the . . . 
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Q. Application. 

A. . . . application. Then there was an additional data 

request. We made the additional data request, and I 

believe this was finalized with that additional data 

request. 

Q. All right. I'm looking at some of these things. For 

instance, it says "Perimeter Fence." It's the exterior 

kind of purplish blue line, and it's got some circles 

on it. While this is not signed off, and I realize it 

does not constitute, quote, "official survey," are 

those corners, representative corners, those circles? 

It says "Perimeter Fence." Do you know? 

A. No, they are not. 

Q. What are they? 

A. It's the location of where we would place the perimeter 

fence around the boundary. 

Q. The circles? 

A. Yes. The circles just are in there to designate the 

different kind of a line. 

Q. All right. 

A. So it represents the perimeter fence. 

Q. Now, if you'll look towards the signature block and 

then immediately to the left of it, it says "Prepared 

from survey by CBC Engineering & Affiliates, LLC . . .I1 

A. Uh-huh. 
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Q. 
A. The location of the perimeter fence there. 

Q. Okay. What about the facility itself and the topo- 

What on this map was prepared from a survey? 

graphic lines of elevation? 

A. Well, that's really - I take that back. Let me explain 

that. The topographic features and the locations that 

are shown in black, the information that's shown in 

black, such as the railroad tracks or the existing rail 

unloading shed, . . . 
Q. Okay. 

A. . . . those were surveyed by us in the field . . . 
Q. All right. 

A. . . . as opposed to the perimeter fence. Excuse me; 

that's not correct. 

Q. So whatever is in black is what was surveyed and 

whatever the other c o l o r s  are was not? 

A. The other colors, which are in purple, are what is just 

overlaid with the map in terms of the location of the 

proposed facilities that are yet to be constructed. 

Q. So, in fact, this says the survey has been done. Could 

you explain that? 

A. We went out and conducted a survey, located facility 

structures and topographic features for that area. 

Q. But the survey is not complete, and why is it not 

complete? 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

There's a difference between a survey and a survey that 

you're going to record at the courthouse. Okay. This 

was done for purposes of locating all of the features 

of the property and understanding the lay of the land 

so that you can plan best where the facility should go. 

Okay. Now, have you, in the course of your review - 

you oversee the survey crew that is doing this, I 

guess. They're under your direction, but you're not 

the surveyor who is actually performing the work, if I 

understand it. 

I am not a registered land surveyor nor do I do 

surveying work myself. We have those in our firm, and 

they have been out to the site. 

But all I'm interested in, they work at your direction. 

In other words, you're in charge of the project, but 

the surveyor is the one that's going to sign off? 

That ' s correct. 

He's in charge of the survey? 

That's correct. 

Did you see to it that the survey crew was provided 

with the information that DLX and the Trust have both 

provided in this matter and in the bankruptcy case? 

What information? 

There has been information that DLX and the Trust have 

filed in response to data requests and has attached to 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

their testimony. Was that provided to the survey crew? 

No. This survey that we've done on this property right 

here has nothing to do with the property boundaries. 

No. That's not my question. I'm not even referring to 

that map at this point. 

Okay. Well, I need to understand, because, . . . 
Right. 

. . . if what you're asking me is did we provide our 
surveyors information about the property dispute for 

this map, no, . . . 
No. That wasn't my . . . 
. . . we didn't. 
I am on to a general question at 

Okay. 

Sorry to confuse you. 

Okay. 

Did you provide, or see that it 

this point. 

as proT ided, the 

information that DLX and the Trust have furnished or 

filed in the record in this matter to the survey group? 

Yes. 

Did you furnish information from - when I say "the 

bankruptcy case," do you understand what I'm referring 

to? This is the dispute between DLX and Fox Trot. 

I'll have to say I understand pretty much what's going 

on, but I do not know all the intricacies of it. 
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Q. Fair enough. 

A. Okay. 

REPORTER: 

Mr. Collier, when you're speaking, would you move 

up to the mike because that map being moved over 

there is on your mike also. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Mr. Jaggers, if Mr. Collier has left questioning 

about this exhibit, . . . 
MR. COLLIER: 

Yes, for the moment. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

. . . go on back up to the witness stand, please, 
sir, so she can hear you. 

MR. COLLIER: 

I'm sorry. I had a map over the mike. 

A. Take this down? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Take it down so the two end members there can see 

you. Thank you. 

Q. All right. So you have a general understanding what I 

mean when I refer to the bankruptcy case? 

A. Yes. 

Q. All right. Did you furnish the survey crew or direct 

that they be furnished with materials from the 

182 

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

bankruptcy case relative to the claims of DLX? 

Yes, I believe I did. 

Or, I guess, did you instruct them to go obtain those 

materials? 

I wouldn't have known where to tell them to obtain them 

from. 

Have you reviewed any of the maps that DLX has 

submitted and the Trust have submitted in this 

proceeding? 

Yes. 

Okay. Have you overlaid them with your own to see what 

the differences in those maps are? 

MR. WATTS: 

I think we're at a point now where I need to 

object, because it's clear we're getting into the 

boundary and property dispute, and I object to 

this line of questioning. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, it sounds like that's where we're going, Mr. 

Collier. Tell me if Mr. Watts is wrong in that 

regard. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Well, the reason is, is they were permitted to 

explain, at least Mr. Mack was, upon questioning 

as to his opinions about the case, his under- 
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standing about what property was claimed and what 

was not, and they've reviewed these documents, and 

I think it's fair, especially since it's been 

stated in the application and all the documents 

filed in connection with it what they believe it 

is, but I can't seem to get just to say, "DO you 

understand that that's where DLX claims the 

boundary line is?" and show a map, and I think 

that it's important to show that they have 

examined it; they do understand what it is that 

DLX and the Trust have gone into. I'm not going 

to produce all of these deeds and argue about all 

the intricacies of deeds, and granting clauses, 

and addendum clauses, and all that. That is not 

it. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Well, that's fine. I'm going to give you some 

leeway on that, but try to get to the point, if 

you can, with regard to what he did and what he 

directed his surveying crew to do and that sort of 

thing. Let's try to leave it there and not get 

into the nuts and bolts of the title issue. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Well, the statute is clear that adjoining land- 

owners are supposed to be identified and located, 
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and this does present a little bit of an unusual 

situation in that it's not just adjoining; it's 

right on top of. You know, it's the property, but 

I think that it's going to be hard to have a 

survey that doesn't show boundary lines, and I'm 

just asking him a question about the boundaries 

which is something they're already agreeing that 

they're going to provide. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, and I just indicated to you that I'll permit 

you to do that. So go on and let's get to it. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

I don't remember what my question was. 

I think you had just said that you had reviewed 

materials that DLX and the Trust had submitted, 

least insofar as the maps were concerned. 

I have seen a map of the disputed property bounc 

at 

ary . 
All right. Have you compared that map to the maps that 

CBC has prepared . . . 
Yes. 

. . . to see where the lines were relative to one 
another? 

Yes. 

Have you had a chance to examine the maps that the 

Staff has placed along the wall over here? 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

Briefly, when I walked in. I saw some maps I didn't 

recognize. I took a look. 

All right. Are those similar to the exercise that you 

undertook in comparing the maps? 

We did it a little differently, but similar to that. 

A similar exercise. One of those maps, I believe, is 

the Hall survey that was submitted in connection with 

DLX' documentation. You did look at that one. That's 

the one on the wall in the middle. I can go point to 

it. I realize you may or may not recognize it. 

I didn't remember that it was Hall, . . . 
Okay. 

. . . but I have seen a survey boundary of the disputed 
area in the last couple of months. 

All right, and you've seen the Calla Subdivision maps 

near that back corner, in fact, the very back corner? 

I saw a representation of what somebody put down as the 

Calla Subdivision in the back corner; yes. 

All right. 

That's not our map. 

I understand that. 

Okay. 

I totally understand. What I have in my hands is a 

copy of the site boundary map that we talked about 

earlier that's been referred to as Exhibit B. Do you 
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have it? I have a photocopy of it. If I could, I 

would like you to just look at it first. 

i 

MR. COLLIER: 

May I approach? 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

You referred to it as Exhibit B. I'm not too 

sure. 

A. Which book are you in and what . . . 
Q. Well, it was the one . . . 
A. Oh, okay. 

MR. WATTS: 

I'm going to have to make a preemptive attempt at 

an objection here, because what's going to happen 

is he's going to show this map to this witness and 

try to take him through comparisons of their 

claims versus our claims, and I think that would 

be a big mistake and also contrary to your earlier 

ruling in this case. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, I don't know if that's what he's getting 

ready to do or not. If it is what he's getting 

ready to do, I would admonish him not to do that, 

because we all, as we sit here, understand there's 

a dispute as to ownership and as to boundaries, 

and I don't really know what benefit it would be 
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MR. 

to the Siting Board to . . . 
COLLIER: 

Well, it's just this. This is not about - it's 

where the boundaries are, and Mr. Mack testified 

that, in his opinion, and he's neither a surveyor 

nor a lawyer, that he had read the - his review of 

the litigation in bankruptcy court was that DLX 

did not claim any interest or its deeds didn't 

describe the 28 acre portion where the plant is 

supposed to be sited. Now, he got to say that 

and, if they have reviewed data which shows to the 

contrary, that's impeachment. That's the very 

essence of cross examination. 

MR. WATTS: 

Well, . . . 
CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Well, I don't thin,, you can impeach what Mr. Mack 

says through Mr. Jaggers. You can impeach what 

Mr. Mack says through Mr. Mack. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Well, except for the fact that they are testifying 

as representatives of an entity, ECEP. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, why don't you just - I mean, I don't want to 

tell you how to continue with your examination, 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A.  

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A .  

M r .  C o l l i e r ,  b u t  why d o n ' t  you j u s t  a s k  him t h e  

same q u e s t i o n  t h a t  you a s k e d  M r .  Mack w i t h  regard 

t o  t h e  28  acres and  t h a t  might  save u s  from h a v i n g  

t o  spend t h e  n e x t  30  o r  4 5  minu te s  o v e r l a y i n g  

maps. Why d o n ' t  you t r y  t h a t ?  

You sa id  t h a t  you had rev iewed t h e  maps t h a t  we 've  j u s t  

r e f e r r e d  t o .  Obvious ly ,  y o u ' r e  f a m i l i a r  w i t h  C B C ' s ;  

t h a t  you had rev iewed them i n  c o n n e c t i o n  w i t h  t h o s e  

t h a t  have  been  produced  by  DLX and  t h e  T r u s t ?  

A t  some p o i n t  i n  t i m e ,  I have done t h a t ;  y e s .  

A l l  r i g h t ,  and  t h e i r  claims a re  i n  t h e  area o f  t h e  

r e f u s e  p i l e  t r ac t  and  t h e  s i t e  where t h e  p l a n t  i s  

p roposed  t o  be c o n s t r u c t e d ;  c o r r e c t ?  

No. 

Not i n  t h e  area of  t h e  r e f u s e  p i l e ?  

You sa id  r e f u s e  p i l e  and  where t h e  p l a n t  i s  t o  be 

b u i l t .  

Yeah. T h e y ' r e  n o t  i n  t h e  area o f  t h e  r e f u s e  p i l e ?  

They are i n  t h e  area o f  t h e  r e f u s e  p i l e ,  b u t  t h e n  you 

carr ied it  f u r t h e r  and  s a id  and  where t h e  p l a n t  i s  t o  

be b u i l t .  

Okay, and  how d id  you conc lude  t h a t  D L X '  claims, based 

on t h e i r  maps, d i d n ' t  i n c l u d e  t h e  area where t h e  p l a n t  

i s  t o  be b u i l t ?  

You have  t o  o v e r l a p  t h e  map, o v e r l a y  t h e  maps. 
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Q. And you did? 

A. That's what you asked me previously . . . 
Q. Right. 

A. . . . and that's what I answered you; that, . . . 
Q. That's how you did it. 

A. . . . yes, I did, or someone under my supervision ~ ~ d .  

MR. COLLIER: 

What I would like to do at this point is overlay. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I think it's appropriate at this point. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Okay. Thank you. Excuse me. 

Q. Now, you'll see that there are yellow markings, but, 

notwithstanding the yellow markings, is this a true 

copy of your Exhibit B? It's down there in the . . . 
A. Yes, as best I can tell, it is. 

Q. All right. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Let me spread it out for you. 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. And the Hall survey that was attached to DLX' . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I think it's appropriate, Mr. Watts, if your 

witness is . . . 
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MR. WATTS: 

Yes, sir, we're now doing exactly what you said 

was not appropriate 

you to say it. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Well, your witness 

to be 

ias in( 

done, as I 

icated tha 

understood 

he arrived 

at his conclusion by virtue of an overlay of the 

maps, and, in light of his testimony in that 

regard, I think it's totally relevant and totally 

appropriate for Mr. Collier to ask him what he did 

in that regard. 

MR. WATTS: 

Well, sir, you've ruled, apparently, but I 

strongly object to it. We now have gone past the 

slippery slope, and we're into territory that I 

understood the Board to have ruled that we were 

not going to get into. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

And how are we past that point? How does that 

ruling indicate that we've gone past what our 

prior ruling was? 

MR. WATTS: 

Because we're now going to be comparing. The 

questions were asked, "What did you look at? What 

did you look at? Did you look at this? D i d  you 
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look at that?" and I understood that those 

questions were fair game in your interpretation of 

your ruling but that we weren't going to start 

making actual comparisons of claims on the map, 

and that's what we're now getting into, as I 

under-stand the line of questioning, and I thought 

we were not going there. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, the line of questioning Mr. Collier is 

asking your witness is what did he do; did he 

overlay the maps. He indicated that he did in 

arriving at these various exhibits that his 

company, CBC Engineers & Affiliates, LLC, has 

prepared, and I think, in my estimation, it's 

appropriate for Mr. Collier to impeach Mr. Jaggers 

with regard to how the maps were produced. I 

think that's the extent to which Mr. Collier is 

going to be permitted to ask Mr. Jaggers, is how 

were these maps produced. They're exhibits in 

this hearing, and so I don't intend to - I'm not 

going to permit him to get into the title issues, 

but I think it is appropriate for him to ask the 

witness how he prepared the maps. So go ahead. 

MR. COLLIER: 

If I might approach the witness again. 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Certainly. 

I'll also show ou Jhat was filed as Response No. 1 to 

the Staff's Data Request to DLX and the Trust which is 

this document. 

Uh-huh. 

You have seen that document before? 

I do not remember seeing that document, no, but I 

remember seeing the survey. 

Not the document? 

I do not remember seeing that specific document. 

Okay, but you've seen the survey they submitted? 

Yes. 

All right. Are the lines in yellow, in the far left- 

hand side that have been marked, do they correspond 

roughly? Now, this is the survey, roughly. 

No, they don't. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Mr. Collier, ask him, sir, what he overlaid. 

That's the issue at hand. 

Q. Did you overlay . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

What did he overlay in preparation of these maps. 

Q. . . . this description? 
A. First of all, you know, we had nothing to do with the 
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yellow markings on this map. 

Q. Oh, I understand. I'm not saying that you did. 

A. These are markings somebody else has put on here and 

not us. Secondly, the survey boundary that you have is 

not depicted by the boundaries you've got shown on this 

map. They are not the same. 

Q. I hadn't finished my question but . . . 
A. Well, that's what you asked. 

Q. Now, did you overlay the DLX survey on your maps? 

A. Not that survey but what we believe the disputed 

boundary was. That survey, I'm not sure when it came 

into play, but we did overlay what we thought was the 

disputed boundary. 

Q. Was that, then, a map that CBC prepared perhaps of the 

disputed boundary? 

A. No. It was what some attorney had provided us. 

MR. WATTS: 

Okay. I have to object now on the grounds of 

attorney/client privilege, because we're getting 

into matters of litigation. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I think your objection . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

. . . in that regard should be sustained. 
MR. COLLIER: 

I don't intend to ask him any question about . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

You didn't ask him that question. I understand. 

MR. COLLIER: 

. . . what the attorney said. 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

He offered that, but let's not go into that. 

MR. COLLIER: 

But I ' m  trying to figure out what map it is. I 

mean, they did one and I brought DLX' survey, and 

he's telling me he used another map, and I want to 

know what it is that he overlaid, and he doesn't 

have to tell me a word that any attorney said 

about that map. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Tell him if you know, Mr. Jaggers. 

A. I do not remember overlaying that particular map with 

the boundary of our site. I do remember an earlier 

map. I don't even know when that was provided to us, 

but I do remember having an earlier map and overlaying 

that with the surveyed area that we had out there, and 

what you have depicted on this map is overlaid with 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

where we have the power plant, and this isn't even the 

same survey on this map that you've got on that map. 

These are two separate . . . 
You mean those lines that are in yellow on the left 

side aren't on this map? 

They are on that map, but they are not the same. TLLe 

survey boundary on that map is not the boundary on this 

map. Those are two different things. 

I understand that, but you're saying that there are 

lines on this survey that aren't on there? 

This boundary here is not this boundary on this map. 

That's correct, in part. 

Well, . . . 
That's right. 

Well, it's really not even close. 

Right, but are the lines that are in yellow on that one 

on this map? I didn't ask if they were survey 

boundaries. 

Well, the survey boundary on that map is the disputed 

boundary. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Well, now, if he's going to get into the legal 

description . . . 
CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Well, I want us to move on. We're getting way 
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beyond t h e  scope  h e r e  o f  what t h i s  Board needs  t o  

c o n s i d e r .  I t h o u g h t  you were g o i n g  t o  a s k  

him . . . 
MR. COLLIER:  

I ' m  n o t  t r y i n g  t o  ge t  . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

L e t  m e  f i n i s h ,  p l e a s e ,  s i r .  I t h o u g h t  you were 

g o i n g  t o  a s k  him which maps o f  D L X '  d i d  he  o v e r l a y  

on t h e  CBC maps, . . . 
MR. COLLIER:  

I d id  and  he  . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

. . . and I t h i n k  you a s k e d  him t h a t ,  and  I ' m  n o t  

s u r e  he  gave you a n  answer.  Tha t  i s  t h e  answer 

t h a t  t h i s  Board would l i k e  t o  receive from M r .  

Jaggers, and,  once w e  receive t h a t  answer ,  t h e n  

we're g o i n g  t o  move on .  

MR. COLLIER:  

Okay. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

So do you have an  answer t o  t h a t  q u e s t i o n ,  M r .  

Jagge r s ? 

A. E a r l y  on, w e  had  a map, and  I do n o t  know who it w a s  

p r o v i d e d  t o  m e  by,  b u t  one of t h e  a t t o r n e y s  p r o v i d e d  a 

map t h a t  had  what t h e y  b e l i e v e d  t o  be t h e  d i s p u t e d  
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boundary .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

But d o n ' t  t e l l  u s  what an  a t t o r n e y  said;  okay? 

A .  W e l l ,  I r e c e i v e d  a map of  what w a s  communicated t o  m e  

t o  be t h e  d i s p u t e d  boundary .  

p l a n s  o u t  t h e r e  on t h e  p r o p e r t y  f o r  where t h e  power 

p l a n t  w a s  t o  go, and,  yes ,  w e  d id  t h a t .  

W e  o v e r l a i d  t h a t  w i t h  o u r  

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

D o  you have  t h a t  map i n  your  p o s s e s s i o n ?  

A.  No, I do  n o t .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Do you know - can  you i d e n t i f y  t h a t  map as you s i t  

h e r e  today?  

A.  No, I c a n n o t .  I t ' s  n o t  h e r e  w i t h  m e  t o d a y .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. L e t ' s  move on, t h e n .  L e t ' s  move on .  

Q .  You sa id  t h a t  you had p r o v i d e d  t h e s e  . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

Hold on j u s t  one second.  Can w e  o b t a i n  - h e  s a y s  

h e  d o e s n ' t  know, c a n ' t  i d e n t i f y  t h e  map, b u t  can  

t h a t  map be o b t a i n e d  by  a p o s t h e a r i n g  da t a  

r e q u e s t ?  Is t h e r e  some way of  i d e n t i f y i n g  i t? 

MR. WATTS: 

S i r ,  I ' m  g o i n g  t o  o b j e c t  t o  t h a t .  

w a s  p r o v i d e d  t o  him by  a l awyer  who w a s  working 

H e  j u s t  sa id  i t  
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with my client with respect to this matter or the 

other litigation. 

MR. COLLIER: 

He said it was provided by a lawyer. 

him whose lawyer it was before . . . 
Let me ask 

MR. WATTS: 

That's privileged also. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, I had understood that it was a DLX map. 

Maybe I'm wrong about that. 

MR. COLLIER: 

It's public . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

I don't know whose map it is at this point. 

MR. COLLIER: 

It's a public record. I mean, I'm not asking for 

any testimony about what was said again, and you 

can tell him not to say anything about what the 

lawyer said. That's fine, but perhaps that is 

necessary. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Do you know who prepared the map, Mr. Jaggers? 

A. No, I do not. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Do you have any way to identify that map as you 
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sit here today? 

A. It is not here with me. In terms of identifying it, 

you mean putting my hands on it? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yes. 

A. I believe I can, but I don't know for sure. It was 

something that we did some time ago. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, let's go ahead and make it the subject of a 

data request. If it is work product, if it is 

subject to a privilege, then I presume, Mr. Watts, 

that you'll let us know about that. 

MR. WATTS: 

I will. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. So, if it's not subject to some 

privilege, then we're to receive it. If it is, we 

would like to hear what the privilege is, and 

we'll make the determination at that point. 

MR. WATTS: 

Yes, sir. I would like to state my objection for 

the record. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Certainly. Certainly. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

WATTS : 

Thank you. 

Okay. 

furnished in connection with this application by DLX 

and the Trust, have you gone back and overlain any of 

the maps or reviewed the boundary situation? 

I have not. 

Do you deem it important to do so? 

Do I deem it important? 

Yes. 

Quite honestly, this has been going on for some time, 

Since you provided the materials that were 

I 

guess, and we've done that and understand that there's 

a dispute of the boundaries, and so, to do it again, I 

guess I didn't feel the need to do it over again; no. 

Then why did you give them the additional material if 

they're not going to use it? 

MR. WATTS: 

I'm going to object to that, which clearly is 

getting into the - when he said this has been 

going on for a long time, he's talking about the 

dispute, and so he's asking a question about 

motivation for action that a litigant either took 

or didn't take, and I object to that as, first, 

beyond the scope of this, and, second, part of 

that dispute may well be privileged also. 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, I'll tell you folks, I think we've about 

beat this hoss to death. 

MR. WATTS: 

I have to agree with you about that, sir. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I think we need to move on, Mr. Collier. 

MR. COLLIER: 

That's my last question in that area and if I 

could look at this matter here. 

Q. Have you been asked to prepare a survey in connection 

with the closing, the anticipated closing? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you been informed that a survey will be required 

in connection with title insurance? 

- 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Yes. 

Have you been asked to certify - has your firm, not you 

personally but your firm, whoever signs off, been asked 

to certify at any particular title insurance company or 

lending institution? 

No. Could you rephrase that again? Let me back up. 

Ask me that question again to make sure I understood 

what you're saying. 

In connection with that, has your firm, and that being 

whoever signs off on the survey, been asked to certify 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
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a survey to any particular title insurance company or 

body that will lend money in connection with this 

transaction? 

MR. WATTS: 

Sir, I'm going to object on the grounds that the 

financing of this project is beyond the scope of 

this proceeding. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I'm going to overrule the objection. I think he 

can answer as to whether or not he intends to do 

survey for title insurance purposes. 

A. At this point in time, we have not been asked to 

certify any map for purposes of financing. 

MR. COLLIER: 

If I could just review some of my notes here, I 

believe I may be done. 

Q. In connection with the engineering services that your 

firm has provided, has it done - you heard earlier 

questions about the calorific content. Did you all 

perform any of those tests? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

He's not asking you what they are. He's asking 

you if you performed them. I'm not going to let 

him get into what they were. 

A. Did we perform the calorific tests? 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 

- 

A.  

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

A. 

Q .  

A.  

Q .  

A.  

Q. 
A.  

Q .  

Y e s .  

N o ,  w e  d id  n o t .  

Have you per formed any t e s t s  as t o  t h e  r e l a t i v e  

u s e f u l n e s s ,  BTU, o r  o t h e r w i s e ,  o f  t h e  c o a l  on t h e  

p r o p e r t y ?  

W e  had  t h e  p r o p e r t y  d r i l l e d .  

do  t h e  t e s t i n g .  

Oh! So whoever you h i r e d  o r  s u b c o n t r a c t e d  h a s  r e p o r t e d  

t o  you? 

Our f i r m  i t s e l f  d id  n o t  

Y e s .  

And M r .  Mack s ta ted  e a r l i e r  t h a t  t h e r e  were areas on 

t h e  p r o p e r t y  t h a t  have h i g h e r  BTU c o n t e n t  r e f u s e  t h a n  

o t h e r s ?  

Y e s .  

Is h i s  t e s t i m o n y  c o r r e c t ,  t h a t  t h e  h i g h e s t  BTU c o n t e n t  

c o a l  r e f u s e  i s  on t h e  c o a l  r e f u s e  t r a c t  t h a t  DLX 

c l a i m s ?  

N o ,  h e ' s  n o t  c o r r e c t .  

And where i s  it? 

I t ' s  i n  t h e  C h a r l i e  ( s p . )  Pond and  C a l m e s  Pond. 

T h e y ' r e  b o t h  h i g h e r  BTUs t h a n  t h e  r e f u s e  p i l e .  

Is t h e  r e f u s e  p i l e  one of  t h e  h i g h e s t ?  

The areas w e  t es ted ,  it would f a l l  p r o b a b l y  t h i r d .  

D i d  you a l s o  pe r fo rm estimates as t o  tonnage  r e l a t i v e  

t o  t h e  v a r i o u s  areas s o  you would have  a n  idea what 
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t onnage  you had  on v a r i o u s  BTU c o a l  r e f u s e ?  

A.  W e  t o o k  samples, d r i l l  samples, a n d  had  them t e s t ed  and  

a n a l y z e d ;  y e s .  

Okay. 

measure it by  t o n s  o f  c o a l  r e f u s e  on t h e  p r o p e r t y .  D o  

you have  a n  idea as t o  what p e r c e n t a g e  of it i s  on t h e  

c o a l  r e f u s e ,  t h e  r e f u s e  p i l e  t r a c t ?  

Q. I n  t e r m s  o f  a l l  t h e  - I g u e s s  y o u ' r e  g o i n g  t o  

MR. WATTS: 

I ' m  g o i n g  t o  o b j e c t  t o  t h a t .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

S u s t a i n e d .  

MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. 

MR. COLLIER:  

The p e r c e n t a g e ?  

CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

Y e s .  

MR. COLLIER:  

I have  no f u r t h e r  q u e s t i o n s .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Thank you. M r .  F i t z G e r a l d ?  

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Thank you, M r .  Chairman. 
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CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FITZGERALD: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Mr. Jaggers, the same point I made with Mr. Mack, if 

there's anything that I ask that's unclear, tell me 

it's unclear. Don't try to answer a question that you 

don't fully understand. If there's anything that you 

don't know, don't try to guess at it. Just say, "Irm 

not familiar with that." Okay? I just have a 

relative handful of questions. Do you know how much of 

the property - by "the property," I mean the 620 acres 

that are roughly identified on the Exhibit B site 

boundary depiction - do you know how much of that area 

is currently under a surface mining and reclamation 

operations permit? 

Yes. 

Could you tell me how much area it is? 

There are two permits: one 375.18 acres; one 46.73. 

46.73? 

Correct. 

Okay, and do you know who holds those permits? 

Those permits are presently held by Kentucky Pro- 

cessing . . . 
Okay. Are they . . . 
. . . with the exception of - yes, they are both held 
by KPC. 
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Q. Okay, and do you know who is the principal in Kentucky 

Processing? Do you know who are the owners? 

A. There is . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

I'm going to object to the relevancy of this 

question. I wanted to see where it was going, but 

this line of questions is, . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, I . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

. . . in my view, beyond the scope of the 
proceeding. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I'm not too sure what, at this point, Mr. 

FitzGerald, who the principals of Kentucky 

Processing are relative to the application filed 

by ECEP. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Your Honor, Kentucky Processing currently has 

these areas under a mining permit. First of all, 

it is not a former coal processing site; it is a 

current coal processing site. Second, the 

representation that a public benefit will be 

gained by the reclamation of this site from use as 

a coal-fired power plant, when it's already under, 
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at least 421.91 acres are already under, the 

reclamation obligation has relevance. The fact 

that Kentucky Processing is or at one time was 

managed as one of Mr. Chuck Yates' companies, and 

Chuck Yates, for two months, was CEO and Vice 

President of ECEP, I think has direct relevance 

when it comes to his environmental compliance 

history. So I would like to be able to at least 

identify or get on record who the principals in 

Kentucky Processing are, because it may have 

relevance with respect to the environmental 

disclosure. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

These are permits that are currently still in 

force? 

A. Let me clarify. It's going to be a little difficult to 

explain to you on one of them, but the larger of the 

two permits is currently in force. The second one, the 

Puckett impoundment, actually the renewal had lapsed. 

So the applicant is in the process of overlapping that 

permit at this point in time. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

And these are permits, I assume, that will have to 

be dealt with by ECEP if this project goes 

forward? 
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A .  Yes, t h e y  w i l l .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

A .  

Q .  

A.  

Q. 

I t h i n k  t h e  q u e s t i o n s  t h e n  are  r e l e v a n t .  G o  

ahead .  G o  ahead ,  M r .  F i t z G e r a l d .  

D o  you know who t h e  p r i n c i p a l s  are  o f  Kentucky 

P r o c e s s i n g ?  

The best  I can  t e l l ,  t h e r e  are  no o f f i c e r s  and  

d i r e c t o r s  f o r  Kentucky P r o c e s s i n g .  

Now, i s  t h a t  based on a rev iew o f  t h e  S e c r e t a r y  o f  

S t a t e ' s  r e c o r d s ,  o r  i s  t h a t  based on o t h e r  documents? 

Based upon t h e  f a c t  t h a t ,  on t h e  r e c o r d ,  t h e r e  are no 

o f f i c e r s  and  d i r e c t o r s  f o r  KPC. When w e  went t o  ge t  

s i g n a t u r e s ,  t h e r e  w e r e  none. 

Okay. Well, t h e r e  i s  a document i n  h e r e  t h a t  you 

p r o v i d e d  which i s  a deed t o  o r  from KPC, and  I assume 

t h e r e  i s  an  o f f i c e r  o r  d i r e c t o r  i d e n t i f i e d  i n  t h e  f i l e  

t h a t  you - i n  t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n  on t h a t  deed f o r  Kentuck] 

P r o c e s s i n g .  

You ' r e  a s k i n g  m e  a q u e s t i o n  who are  t h e  o f f i c e r s  and  

d i r e c t o r s  t o d a y ,  . . . 
Yeah. 

. . . and  I ' m  t e l l i n g  you t h a t ,  i n  o u r  s e a r c h  t o d a y ,  I 

d o n ' t  believe t h e r e  are any o f f i c e r s  and  d i r e c t o r s  f o r  

KPC.  

H a s  t h e  c o r p o r a t i o n  been d i s s o l v e d ,  t o  your  knowledge? 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

I know it's in bankruptcy, . . . 
Okay, but do know whether it's been dissolved? 

. . . but I do not know the exact status of the 
bankruptcy. 

Okay. That's fine. Then I won't go any further on 

that. 

reclamation bond, the acreage that you identified? 

Yes. 

Okay. The fact that a permit has lapsed for purposes 

of renewal does not prevent it from being reactivated? 

That ' s correct. 

Okay. 

That's correct. 

Okay, and they don't need a permit for reclamation any 

longer under the mining program, do they? 

They don't need a permit for what? 

To conduct reclamation. You don't have to keep a 

permit in . . . 
In an active status. 

. . . an active status for reclamation? 
That's correct. 

Okay. So, out of the 620 acres, there are some 421.91, 

if my calculations are correct, that are currently 

under mining permit or bond. Of the acreage that is 

not under permit right now, do you know which acreage - 

Do you know whether these areas are still under 

They simply cannot operate during the meantime? 
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A .  

Q. 

have you plotted on a map which acreage is or isn't 

under permit currently? 

Yes. 

Okay. 

area where coal waste and coal fines that ECEP has 

identified as potential resources exist? 

As best I understand your question, there are some coal 

waste resources that fall outside of the boundaries of 

what is currently permitted. 

Okay. 

That's correct. 

Do you intend to recover those areas, the ones that are 

beyond the current permit? 

Yes. 

Okay. 

lapping. Now, for the Board's understanding, over- 

lapping, am I correct that that is when a subsequent 

permittee comes in and will file a new permit and 

assume responsibility for a currently permitted site? 

What I meant by that, on the smaller of the two 

permits, . . . 
Okay. 

. . . there's a current permit in the works to overlap 
that one in its entirety. 

Okay, and who, to your knowledge, has applied for that 

The area that is not under permit, is that area, 

You had indicated you're in the process of over- 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

new permit to overlap the . . . 
Kentucky Processing. 

Okay. So Kentucky Processing is in the process 

currently? 

Yes. 

Okay. The company, ECEP, had indicated that it planned 

to file for a mining permit in order to recover the 

waste coal and the coal fines. Do you know how much of 

the area ECEP intends to permit? 

I don't know the exact acreage at this point. 

They've applied for an overlap? 

Roughly? 

I mean, I could make a guess, . 
No. Don't guess. 

. . . but I just . . . 
Don't guess. 

I don't have it down. 

Is it fair to say tha, you're n 

entire 620 acres? 

Yes. 

. .  

Okay. Is it fair to say that there 

the coal fines or waste coal are of 

ing to permit the 

will be areas where 

a quality that you 

will not seek to recover them for use in the combustion 

process? 

No. 

So you intend to get it all? 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Let me caveat that. There will be probably some of it 

that has been oxidized near the surface that you won't 

be able to use, but, in terms of recovering the waste 

coal that's on the site, the intentions are to try to 

recover all of it. 

Okay. The last couple of questions deal with the 

property boundary, but I'm not going to get into any of 

the questions that you all have discussed so far. To 

your knowledge, will the proposed exhaust stack be 

1,000 feet or more from all of the adjoining property 

boundaries? 

No. 

Okay. Which boundaries will it be closer to and what 

will the distance be? 

The closest boundary that's adverse is CSX Railroad. 

Okay, and how close is CSX? 

Not too darn far. 

Okay. 

You know, a few hundred feet. 

Are there properties that are currently occupied for 

residential purposes where you are not at least 1,000 

feet away from the property boundaries? 

The nearest residence is 2,100 feet. 

Right, but where is the nearest residence's property 

line? 
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A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q .  

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

I don't know exactly what the distance is from the 

stack. 

Is it less than 1,000 feet? 

I would say it is; yes. 

Okay. 

property lines that are depicted on t e site boundary 

or I guess the adjacent property owners map which was 

supplied, . . . 

The last question I have deals with how the 

Uh-huh. 

. . . which I believe is one of the ones also that's on 
the wall there. How were the - in order to certify 

compliance with the 2,000 foot requirements regarding 

dwellings and their relation to the exhaust stack and 

also the property lines, how were those property lines 

determined? We know you didn't do a survey of the 

property boundaries, but what did you use to identify 

where those lines were for purposes of certifying that 

they were a certain distance away from . . . 
Are you asking me how we identified adjacent property 

owner boundaries? 

Yeah. Yeah. 

Okay. 

In an unartful way, that's exactly what I was asking. 

Okay. Good. Okay. Most of the boundaries that we've 

got up there that are marked in red, those boundaries 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

were taken from the PVA map in the courthouse. 

From the tax map? 

The PVA, yeah, the Property Valuation Administration; 

yes. 

Do you know whether that map is based on surveyed 

boundaries? 

Typically, that is not. 

Okay. 

Let me back up and just say . . . 
Sure. 

. . . the boundary itself that's on there, though, we 
did more work on that. The adjacent - the red lines on 

there were done from the PVA maps. 

Okay, but you're saying that the purple boundary, the 

site boundary that was around the outside of it, was 

done based on more work? 

Yes. 

Okay, but short . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Which map are we referring to, gentlemen? 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

I'm sorry. There's two maps. One is the adjacent 

property owners map and that is the red-lined map 

that I was asking how those lines were derived. 

Q. And I believe you were referring to the site boundary 
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A. 

- 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

map, which is identified as Exhibit B and dated . . . 
There are two maps. One of them shows adjacent 

property owners as well as the site boundary. 

Okay. 

The site boundary map, I believe, is B, and then 

there's an additional map that's been added that also 

shows adjoining property owners. 

That's the revised map that was done to add CSX; is 

that correct? 

I .  . .  
Well, don't worry about it. It's not important. 

Okay. 

Just going back to the permitting issue, the current 

status of the smaller of the two permitted areas is 

that the permit has lapsed, but do you know are the 

bonds in forfeiture? 

No, they're not. 

Okay, and is the structure, the facility, the coal 

processing plant that's on site now, is it still 

operational? 

At this present day, it is not operational. 

Okay. What would it take to make it operational? 

You would have to go in and do some retrofit work to 

get it operational again. 

Okay. So it could not be operated for crushing, 
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loading, or wet processing of coal? 

A. Now, let's back up. There's part of it that could be 

utilized, and we intend to utilize a portion of the 

facility on a going-forward basis with the power plant. 

Q. Okay. So it could be used for coal processing? 

A. There are some portions of it that could be. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Yes. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Okay. That's all I have. Thank you very much, 

Mr. Jaggers. Thank you, Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

One question before I forget, before I turn it to 

Mr. Turner. 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Q. You indicated that the bonds were not in forfeiture. 

Who are the sureties on those bonds, those reclamation 

bonds, if you know? 

They are - and I'm not sure whether they are bonded 

with Linden or directly with Cumberland Surety, but 

A. 

Cumberland Surety has been involved. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I would like to back up . . . 
Q -  What are the . . . 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

BY 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

. . . and address the last question that Tom asked me. 
Before you back up, what are the amounts of those 

bonds, if you know? 

The smaller permit is $137,500. 

What about the other one? 

The larger one is somewhere arounc 

Okay. You wanted to back up? 

$800,000. 

Yeah. 

position to process any coal. 

be revamped to process coal, but you could not process 

any coal in that plant today. 

In terms of processing, that plant is not in a 

It is in a position to 

CROSS EXAMINATION CONTINUED 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Okay. By way of clarification, when you say 

"processing," are you referring to processing as 

distinct from crushing and loading which is defined as 

preparation? 

I'm saying those facilities, even for crushing and 

loading, are not available for use today. They're just 

not operational. They've been sitting idle, and it 

would take a good deal of work to get them back into 

shape to operate. 

Okay, but the equipment hasn't been removed? 

Well, I can't say that none of the equipment, but most 

of the equipment is still intact. 
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Q. Okay, and it's still under an active permit? 

A. It is still under an active permit. 

Q. And Kentucky Processing would not need additional 

regulatory approval to resume operations? 

A. That's correct. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Okay. Thank you very much. I appreciate that 

clarification. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

BY 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Mr. Turner? 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

MR. TURNER: 

Mr. Jaggers, I think I'm going to rehash some ground, 

but I want to make sure we're talking about the same 

thing. Mr. Mack ducked some questions for you, and are 

those the same questions that Mr. FitzGerald was just 

asking you about? The question that I asked him was, 

when was the facility last used for coal processing, 

and I believe Mr. Mack's testimony thought that 

Brighton was in error in saying it was the early ' 9 0 s  

and said that it was ' 9 8  and ' 9 9 .  

I believe that it was ' 9 8  and ' 9 9 .  

Okay. Are we talking about the same operation that Mr. 

FitzGerald was just asking you about? 

I'm not following your question. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Okay. You say the facility was last used for coal 

processing in '98 and '99, and is the permit that 

allowed that processing, is it still viable? 

Yes, it is. 

And is that the same permit that Mr. FitzGerald was 

just asking you about? 

Yes, it is. 

Okay. So was it Kentucky Processing that did the 

processing in '98 and '99? 

I don't know who actually operated the plant. The 

permit was, at that time, Kentucky Processing. 

Okay, and one of those permits, now, you said is still 

active, and the other one Kentucky Processing is 

attempting to revive through an overlap process; is 

that right? 

That's correct. 

Okay. Okay. I hav to take : 3uI unfortun tely, 
through the Brighton report and ask you questions about 

the various and sundry disagreements that you have with 

the Brighton recommendations. So that's where we're 

going next. This is . . . 
So you're going to be looking at which document? 

I'm going to be looking both at the Brighton report and 

at your testimony, and, as I did with Mr. Mack, I'll 

try to go through your testimony in the same order that 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

you presented your testimony. Okay? 

Okay. 

First, sort of as a preliminary question, a lot of the 

objections that you have to the Brighton recom- 

mendations relate to your objection to the Board having 

a sort of continuing jurisdiction after construction is 

completed and after operation of the plant has begun; 

is that a fair statement? 

Yes, sir. 

Okay. I have the statute in front of me. Do you have 

a copy? Can your counsel provide you a copy, or may I 

just read you a particular provision? 

You may read it to me. I do not have one in front of 

me. 

Okay. In particular, I'm reading 278.708, which is 

what is included in the Site Assessment Report, (3)(d). 

Okay? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Mr. Turner, let's be fair to the witness. 

MR. TURNER: 

I thought it would 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Go ahead. 

Q .  278.708(3) (d). Okay? If you'll notice (3) says, "A 

completed site assessment report shall include:" and, 
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if we drop down to (d), it reads, "An evaluation of 

anticipated peak and average noise levels associated 

with the facility's construction and operation at the 

property boundary." Have I read that correctly, Mr. 

Jaggers ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Does that not explicitly give the Commission 

jurisdiction over operations? 

MR. WATTS: 

I'm going to object to that on the grounds it 

calls for a legal conclusion. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

I'm going to sustain the objection. 

MR. TURNER: 

May I be heard on that, Your Honor? 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Certainly. Uh-huh. 

MR. TURNER: 

If you will look at Mr. Jaggers' testimony, and, 

in particular, I am looking at Page 3, Lines 8 

through 10, "Such a condition would exceed the 

Board's jurisdiction and would be inconsistent 

with the conditions established for prior 

developers . . .I1 He's opened the door, because 

he has explicitly said you don't have 
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jurisdiction. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

I think I ruled too quickly. I think you're 

correct. He did open the door. Go ahead and 

answer. 

As I read this, it's asked to evaluate the anticipated 

peak and average noise levels during construction and 

operation and not what's going on after the con- 

struction has been completed. So we're to anticipate 

what we believe the noise levels will be during 

construction and operation and evaluate those during 

the siting report and not follow up with noise 

monitoring and further work afterwards. That's the way 

I read this and that's the way we approached it. 

Mr. Jaggers, do you believe that you could put in place 

some sort of noise dampering equipment, and then, as 

soon as you file your last report with the Siting Board 

indicating that construction is finished and that 

you're starting operations, you can remove the dampers? 

I don't understand why we would want to do that. 

I understand. Let's take a different plant, some 

operator of a plant; not you. Do you believe that they 

could simply remove the dampers and suffer no 

consequences whatsoever from the Siting Board? 

I'm going to respond to you again and say, if they've 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

spent the money and the capital to put them in place, I 

don't know why anyone would want to take them out of 

operation. Could they? Yes. 

You believe they could? 

Sure. I don't know why they would want to after 

spending the money to put them in place, is my answer 

to you. 

What if they broke; would they have to replace them or 

not? 

Would they have to replace them or not? 

Yes, sir. If the Siting Board conditioned the 

construction and operation of the plant on the use of 

noise dampers, if the dampers subsequently broke a year 

after operation, would they be under any obligation to 

replace them? 

I don't know of any obligation that's provided by this 

Board or by anybody else that would require them to do 

so. 

Mr. Jaggers, have you reviewed the prior Orders of the 

Siting Board, for instance, the Thoroughbred case, the 

Kentucky Pioneer case, and the Kentucky Mountain Power 

case? 

Let me say to you I have done some limited review. 

Okay, and are you aware that numerous Orders in each of 

those deals with operations of the plant? For 

224  

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

1s 

2c 

21 

22 

2: 

2L 

2: 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

instance, I'm reading from the Thoroughbred, the last 

requirement, "Thoroughbred shall utilize Kentucky coal 

as represented in its application." 

like something for construction or operation? 

That would be during operation. 

Okay. 

jurisdiction to require that? 

What I did was to simply read what was put before me in 

the statute and evaluate that for myself and go on that 

basis, and that's what we tried to do, is literally 

read what was put before us, and it said " .  . . 
anticipated peak and average noise levels . . .I1 

Okay. 

The first one that you disagree with begins on Page 2, 

Line 19, is that correct, Recommendation Number 11? 

Okay. 

And that's the noise requirement, is it not? 

I'm not sure. 

Okay. 

Does that sound 

Do you believe that the Board did not have 

Let's move on to the specific recommendations. 

Do you have the Brighton report there in front 

of you? 

Okay. 

No, sir. I'm talking about the Brighton consultant's 

report. 

Okay. 

Are you talking about the First Data Request? 

Uh-huh. 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

I do now. 

And the recommendations are very near the end. 

a section marked "Section D." 

Okay. 

And Recommendation 11 is on Section D, Page 4. 

Okay. 

And it's dealing with steam blows. 

Okay. 

It's in 

If the recommendation about how the plant operates is 

not acceptable to you because of your belief about the 

Board's jurisdiction, then how does the company intend 

to ensure that it continues to comply with the noise 

commitments that you made after operation if this Board 

has no jurisdiction? 

I guess we've agreed to do it. 

Yes, sir. 

My word is good. 

Okay. Let's assume you're not around in two years or 

five years and neither am I. 

Okay. 

How does the company intend to comply with the 

commitments? 

Other than it has agreed to honor them, I don't know of 

another way. 

Thank you. Okay. On the next page of your testimony, 
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A.  

Q. 

- 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A.  

Q. 

A .  

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Page 3, you're addressing Recommendation Number 12, 

and, if you'll look at that very same page in the 

Brighton report again - I told you we were going to be 

going back and forth between the two documents - Recom- 

mendation . . . 
Yes. 

. . . 12 is also a noise monitoring recommendation, is 
it not? 

Yes, it is. 

Okay. Now, on Line 21 of your testimony, you used the 

phrase "arbitrary and unsupported." Do you see that? 

Yes. 

"NO basis has been shown for adopting an arbitrary and 

unsupported noise standard . . .I' I assume that's the 

65 decibel level that . . . 
Yes. Yes. 

. . . is discussed at length in the Brighton report and 
is based on an EPA study; is that right? 

What's based on an EPA study? 

The 65 decibel level as being bothersome. 

I don't know exactly why Brighton chose that particular 

decibel level to establish as a criteria. 

It's not based on a federal standard? 

I don't know why they chose 65 decibel. I don't 

understand why they did. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q .  

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Okay. Okay. What does the company intend to do during 

operations if the noise level reaches a stage that it 

generates complaints? 

I think what we've - I don't think - what we have tried 

to do is to demonstrate, based on information provided 

by previous monitoring at other sites and by a model by 

a company that constructs power plants, studies that 

would indicate what they are, and then correlate those 

to the nearest residences to demonstrate, in fact, that 

those would not be in a high decibel level. 

This plant that you used was in Burbank, California; is 

that correct? 

One of the plants we used was in Burbank, 

Okay. Was it in a valley, a river valley 

the geography that's at this plant? 

No. 

California. 

similar to 

Okay. On Page 4 of your testimony - and t is is where 

we have some double numbering. We have two Recom- 

mendation 13s and two Recommendation 15s. So the first 

of the two 13s is shown on the bottom of Section D, 

Page 4, in the Brighton report, and it's addressed in 

your testimony on Page 4, beginning at Line 4. Do you 

see that? 

Yes. 

Okay. In your testimony, at Lines 16 and 17, you seem 
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A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

to indicate that, if you wind up making local truck 

deliveries, if there are appropriate conditions, that 

you could develop them with Estill County officials. 

Do you see that? 

What line are you referring to? 

It's Lines 16 and 17 of your testimony on Page 4. 

Yes, I see that. 

Okay. Have you reached an agreement with Estill County 

on those? 

No, sir. 

Okay, and we don't know whether you ultimately would or 

not; is that correct? 

I guess . . . 
Okay. 

. . . make your own judgment about that. 
I understand, and you don't believe that the Board 

would have any jurisdiction once construction is 

finished and operation has begun? 

Not the way I read the statute. 

Okay. 

No, I don't. 

Okay. You refer in your testimony on this part to a 

solid waste disposal facility. Do you know how many 

truck deliveries that solid waste disposal facility 

makes and when they occur? 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

No, I do not. 

Okay, and do you know if they occur during peak hours 

for school bus traffic or not? 

No, I do not know that. 

Okay. So how does the company intend to deal with 

potential peak hour traffic problems if the Board has 

no jurisdiction? 

Work with the County. 

The second Recommendation Number 13 you address on that 

same page of your testimony, Page 4, Line 20, and it is 

on Section D, Page 5 of the Brighton report. Do you 

see that? 

Yes. 

Okay. Now, this one is going to apply only if you 

dispose of ash off site; is that correct? 

That's correct. 

Okay, and the recommendation simply is that, if you 

decide to dispose of it off site, that you do a study, 

an analysis. Is that the recommendation? 

Yes. 

Okay, but you don't believe that you ought to have to 

do that analysis; is that correct? 

I believe that what the statute asked us to do we've 

done. 

Okay. How do you determine if those deliveries are 
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A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

going to create traffic problems if you don't do the 

analysis? 

Well, let me specify to you at first; there is not 

anticipated that we're going to be disposing of ash off 

site. 

I understand. 

So that's not anticipated or planned. 

I understand. If you do and you don't do the analysis, 

how will you know the extent, if any, of traffic 

problems that it creates? 

You would not. 

Okay. Now, we're to the first of two Recommendation 

15s, and it's addressed in your testimony on Page 5, 

beginning at Line 8, and it's on the same page that 

we're already on in the Brighton report. 

At the beginning of Page 5, Line 8 . . . 
Yes, sir. 

. . . or Line lo? 
Let's see. On your testimony, on my copy, it's Page 5, 

Line 8, where the question that's posed to you is, "DO 

you have any comments on Brighton's first Recom- 

mendation Number 15?" 

Okay. In mine, it's on Line 10. So I just wanted to 

clarify that. 

Okay. 
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A.  

Q .  Supe r .  Okay? 

A.  Okay. 

Q .  

Okay, b u t  t h a t ' s  e x a c t l y  what it s a y s  on my L ine  1 0 .  

Do you s t i l l  have  t h e  s t a t u t e  t h a t  your  l awyer  gave you 

a moment ago? 

A .  Y e s .  

Q .  Wonderful .  Would you l o o k  a t  - we're a t  t h e  same 

s t a t u t e  - 2 7 8 . 7 0 8 ( 3 )  ( e ) ?  I ' l l  read t h a t  t o  you, and  

you t e l l  m e  i f  I ' v e  read it c o r r e c t l y .  

t h i n g  t h a t  h a s  t o  be i n  t h e  comple ted  S i t e  Assessment  

R e p o r t ,  and  it s a y s ,  "The impact  of  t h e  f a c i l i t y ' s  

o p e r a t i o n  on r o a d  and  r a i l  t r a f f i c  t o  and  w i t h i n  t h e  

f a c i l i t y ,  i n c l u d i n g  a n t i c i p a t e d  l e v e l s  o f  f u g i t i v e  d u s t  

created by  t h e  t r a f f i c  . . . "  D o  you see t h a t ?  

T h i s  i s  a n o t h e r  

A .  Y e s .  

Q .  Okay. Have I read t h a t  c o r r e c t l y ,  e x c e p t  f o r  l e a v i n g  

o u t  t h e  l a s t  p a r t ?  

A.  R i g h t .  

Q .  Okay. 

A.  And t h e  l a s t  p a r t .  Okay? 

Q .  Uh-huh. Once a g a i n ,  d o e s n ' t  t h e  s t a t u t e  e x p l i c i t l y  

address f u g i t i v e  d u s t  created d u r i n g  p l a n t  o p e r a t i o n  

and  give t h e  Board j u r i s d i c t i o n  o v e r  t h a t ?  

A.  Again,  you know, I ' l l  go back  t o  my i n t e r p r e t a t i o n  o f  

t h a t  and  what i t  s a y s  i s  " a n t i c i p a t e d  l e v e l s  o f  
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

fugitive dust," such that we're expected to predict and 

plan for what might happen at the site. 

Okay, and, once again, and we already discussed this, 

if you mispredict, then you don't believe the Board has 

any jurisdiction to try to correct the problem? 

If I mispredict what? 

The fugitive dust. 

To be honest with you, the fugitive dust standards will 

be addressed both by the Division of Air Pollution and 

by the Department for Surface Mining Reclamation and 

Enforcement. 

Okay. 

Mr. Jaggers, I believe is the second Recommendation 

Number 15, and that's where Brighton has said, "TO the 

extent that it is financially feasible, Estill County 

Energy Partners, LLC should utilize rail delivery of 

coal, lime, and limestone." Do you see that? 

Yes. 

Okay. If rail is cheaper, wouldn't the company want to 

use rail? 

If the rail is cheaper, . . . 

The last recommendation that you disagree with, 

Uh-huh. 

. . . would the company want to use rail? I'll clarify 

this for you. In terms of cheaper, there are different 

types of product that would be delivered, . . . 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

I understand. 

. . . and some would go to who's supplying it, how 
good - you know, are they going to be a reputable 

supplier; can we count on them. So will we necessarily 

go with the cheapest supplier just because it's by 

rail, no, not necessarily, but, all economically 

speaking, probably, - you know, there's quality of 

lime; there's quality of coal, and all that - then, 

yes, we would probably want to use rail. 

And the use of rail would reduce truck traffic on the 

roads used by the school buses and commuters, would it 

not? 

Well, let me back up and say to you that, you know, on 

the one hand, we're being asked to try to use local 

suppliers for fuel and for limestone, and, on the other 

hand, you want us to use rail and, quite honestly, 

those don't go hand in hand. So, you know, I'm not 

exactly sure where you might be trying to push me, but 

I can tell you that we're going to try to find the best 

product we can, and we would like to use local as best 

we possibly could to the extent that we're able to do 

that, but we also have to find people who are 

reputable, and, to narrow ourselves down at this point 

to say we would or would not use rail over truck simply 

on the basis of economics, from my standpoint, we're 
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limiting ourselves both on the local supplier 

standpoint, reputability, and quality, all of which are 

very important things that we've got to focus on in 

terms of supplying fuel and limestone to that plant. 

Q. Thank you, sir. 

A. Okay. 

MR. TURNER: 

No more questions. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

Redirect, Mr. Watts? 

MR. WATTS: 

Yes, I do have some. I hope you'll permit me to 

approach the witness with something that I need 

for him to read. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yes, sir. Yes, sir. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. WATTS: 

Q. Mr. Jaggers, I'm going to hand you a copy of the 

Board's Order in the Kentucky Pioneer case and ask you 

to read for me Condition No. 3 with respect to noise. 

A. "KMP shall instruct its contractors to include 

enclosures and baffling for the boiler pumps and the 

water pumps to reduce noise impacts to the extent 

practicable, following industry standards." 
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Q. Thanks. Now, . . . 
MR. TURNER: 

Your Honor, may I 

from? 

MR. WATTS: 

k wh t page we were reading 

Yeah. 

So it may not be - it's the noise standard that 

was adopted by the Board. 

Actually it's from the Lexis version of it. 

Q. Now, let me refer you to Kentucky - I'm sorry. That 

was Kentucky Mountain. Forgive me. 

MR. TURNER: 

Oh ! 

A. Kentucky Mountain Power. 

MR. WATTS: 

It was Kentucky Mountain Power; not Kentucky 

Pioneer. 

A. KMP . 
Q. I'm now referring to Kentucky Pioneer, and I would ask 

you to read Condition G. with respect to noise. 

A. "Kentucky Pioneer shall instruct its contractors to 

design the turbine and gasifier buildings to meet 

established noise criteria and minimize offsite noise 

impacts to the extent practicable, following industry 

standards. " 

Q. Okay. Could you read Condition K. regarding dust? 
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A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

"During the construction phase of the proposed project, 

Kentucky Pioneer shall implement dust control measures 

consistent with industry standards." 

And now Thoroughbred, would you read Condition F.? 

"Thoroughbred shall instruct its contractors to design 

the relevant facilities to meet established noise 

criteria and minimize offsite noise impacts to the 

extent practicable, following industry standards." 

And then, finally, Condition J. with respect to dust. 

"During the construction phase of the proposed project, 

Thoroughbred shall implement dust control measures 

consistent with industry standards." 

Thank you. If there were noise issues with respect to 

the project after it's constructed, that is, during 

operation, would those who complained about the noise 

have access to the government of Estill County? 

Yes. 

Okay, and I think - did you testify - I just want to be 

sure I'm correct. Did you testify that there is state 

level regulation of - what state level regulation is 

there with respect to dust? 

In terms of a level, not a level, but there will be two 

agencies who, in fact, are regulating this site from 

the standpoint of fugitive dust, and that would be the 

Department of Surface Mining Reclamation and 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Enforcement and the Division of Air Quality. 

Okay. Now, Mr. Jaggers, were you overseeing the effort 

to assure compliance of the project with the applicable 

statutory setbacks? 

Yes. 

Okay, and, based on that review and the analysis and 

including the maps that have been associated or 

provided by the company, are you confident that those 

setbacks, to the extent they're applicable, have been 

complied with? 

Yes. 

And why do you say that? 

Because the statute has a provision that is for former 

coal processing facilities and, based upon that, then 

this site meets all the applicable setback require- 

ments. 

All right. As you heard, Mr. Collier's clients hav 

claimed that a portion of the project on which the 

proposed facility would be built - they've claimed that 

they have an ownership in the property on which the 

facility would be built; do you understand that? 

Yes. 

And is it your understanding that that - or do you 

understand that claim to be before the bankruptcy 

court? 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, I do. 

You do? The claim that the portion of the property on 

which the facility would be located? 

Oh, no. 

Thank you. 

No, I do not. 

All right. In order to restart the former coal washing 

operations which have been discontinued at the 

facility, would Kentucky Processing be required to 

obtain a water permit to do that, that it does not 

currently have? 

No. 

Okay. All right. Let me refine my last question. How 

about a water intake permit? I don't think I was clear 

enough in my question. 

It would have to go back and get a 

a water withdrawal permit is what 

would have to go back and do that. 

permitted for water withdrawal. 

All right. 

water intake permit, 

t's called; yes. It 

It's not presently 

MR. WATTS: 

May I have just a moment, sir? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Certainly. 
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MR. TURNER: 

Your Honor, while he's pondering, may I inquire 

when we will be taking our next break? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

As soon as we get finished with Mr. Jaggers. 

MR. TURNER: 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Is that a hint, Mr. Turner? 

MR. COLLIER: 

Pardon? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I asked Mr. Turner if that was a hint. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Oh ! 

MR. TURNER: 

We1 , it's quitting time for some of us, and we 

need to make arrangements. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. 

Q. Mr. Jaggers, are you familiar with a finding by the 

Staff of this Board that the application met the filing 

requirements of its regulations and the statutes? 

A. Say that again. 

Q. Are you familiar with a letter that was filed on 
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June 17, 2004 by the Board Staff, specifically Ms. 

O'Donnell, the Executive Director, stating that the 

Staff had reviewed the filing and had determined that 

the application meets the minimum filing requirements 

of its regulations? 

A. Yes. 

MR. WATTS: 

Okay. That's all I have. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. I failed to ask if any of the Board 

members had any questions of Mr. Jaggers. All 

right. Recross limited to the scope of redirect? 

MR. COLLIER: 

I only had one question, but now I'm trying to 

figure out whether it . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, why don't you ask it and, if it's outside 

the scope, I'm sure Mr. Watts will tell us, and 

we'll rule on the objection. 

MR. COLLIER: 

All right. It had to do with the KPC permits. 

RECROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COLLIER: 

Q. Is your firm handling - you called it an overlay. I 

can't remember the terminology that you used. Is CBS 
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handling the overlay permitting for KPC? 

MR. WATTS: 

I don't believe that was covered by the direct 

examination - excuse me - the cross examination. 

I'm sorry, by my redirect. I know it wasn't 

covered by my redirect. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

BY 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

I agree with that unless you tell me differently. 

I don't remember that. I'm going to sustain the 

objection. 

RECROSS EXAMINATION 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

In response to a question on redirect, you indicated 

that, yes, citizens would have access to the government 

of Estill County if there was a noise complaint during 

the operation of the facility? 

Yes. 

Okay. Do you recall the data request answer that Mr. 

Mack filed in response to my question concerning 

ordinances? I asked specifically, "Are there any 

ordinances dealing with noise control," and the answer 

was, "Estill County indicates that there are not." I 

then indicated, "Are there any general nuisance 

ordinances that presumably could be used to address 

nuisance noise?" 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Uh-huh. 

Your client objected but then indicated that there are 

no general nuisance ordinances. 

Uh-huh. 

So, lacking a noise control ordinance and a general 

nuisance ordinance, access to Estill County government 

to address noise grievances would not seem to be a very 

effective remedy; would it? 

Well, I think you made the statement. That may be the 

way you feel. 

people of the citizenry. 

no local ordinances regarding noise. 

And nuisance? 

As far as I know, nuisance as well. 

Okay. Let me ask the last question. 

within the scope of redirect. Is it your client's 

position and you as an agent for ECEP that the Board 

lacks the authority to impose mitigating measures 

controlling dust and noise and the ability to enforce 

those orders after construction and during operation of 

this facility? 

It is my opinion that what I read out of the statute is 

for us to predict the anticipated levels of noise. I 

do not read anything in the statute, from an engineer's 

perspective, that would grant authority on a going- 

The local government is there to hear 

I would agree that there are 

I believe this is 
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forward basis. 

Including the language that specifically says that they 

have the authority to impose mitigating measures to 

address operation of the facility? I'm sorry. I don't 

Q. 

mean to badger you. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

These are matters of law and not a matter of . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

Yeah. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

We will address them in the posthearing brief. 

A. Tom, it wouldn't be the first time you badgered me 

but . . . 
MR. FITZGERALD: 

So I'll strike that one myself. 

A. Okay. 

MR. WATTS: 

S i r ,  I have just - well, I'm sorry. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

That's the last question I have. Thank you, Mr. 

Jaggers. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Anything else, Mr. Turner? 

MR. TURNER: 

No questions. 
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MR. WATTS: 

BY 

Q. 

A. 

One very brief redirect, if I might. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

MR. WATTS: 

Your previous answer to me, Mr. Jaggers, with respect 

to access to Estill County, did you mean to include or 

did you contemplate in your answer the prospect of 

getting ordinances or laws passed within Estill County 

that could address noise? 

I think there's one that - potentially two things could 

happen; one is access to have something worked out 

where reasonable people meet and discuss the 

opportunity to be responsible neighbors, one which is 

usually the best way to handle those matters. 

would be the first opportunity for those things to be 

corrected. Secondly, there could be something adopted 

on a local basis if that, in fact, were a problem. 

There are other communities in the United States who 

have adopted standards for noise and nuisance; yes. 

That 

MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. That's all I have. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

All right. 

We'll come back at twenty minutes till. That will 

Let's take a break of six minutes. 

give everyone an opportunity to go to the rest- 
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room and get a drink of water, and we'll be right 

back. 

OFF THE RECORD 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. We'll be back on the record. All right. 

Mr. Watts, from what I can tell, sir, that 

completes your client's proof. 

MR. WATTS: 

That's correct. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. Thank you, sir, very much. Mr. 

Collier, would you like to call around one of the 

Messrs. LaViers? 

MR. COLLIER: 

Yes, I would. I would like to call Donald 

LaViers, please. 

WITNESS SWORN 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. Mr. Collier? 

The witness, DONALD GREGORY LAVIERS, after having 

been first duly sworn, testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COLLIERS: 

Q. Please state your name, address, and occupation? 

A. My name is Donald Gregory LaViers and I am an engineer 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

by trade. 

What is your connection with DLX, Inc.? 

I am the President of DLX, and I started DLX, and I'm 

President and owner of DLX. 

All right. Have you previously filed direct testimony 

in this matter? 

Yes, I have. 

At that time, prior to filing, did you have an 

opportunity to either prepare it or direct its 

preparation? 

Yes, I did. 

So that you reviewed what has been filed? 

Yes, I've reviewed what's been filed. 

Do you have any corrections, or additions, modifi- 

cations to make with respect to that testimony? 

Not that I'm aware of. 

And, if I were to ask you those questions again, would 

you give the same or substantially the same answers? 

I would try to; yes. 

You would agree to its being used as evidence in this 

proceeding? 

Yes, I do. 

MR. COLLIER: 

If you please, there is the matter of a small 

amount of rebuttal that I would like to present 
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in response to some of the things that came out 

during the applicant's portion, if I could. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, let's go ahead and why don't you do that 

on redirect. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Redirect? That will be fine. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

BY 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

All right. We'll turn it over to Mr. Watts 

and let him cross your client. Mr. Watts? 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

MR. WATTS: 

Mr. LaViers, on Page 2, I think, Line 7 to 9 of your 

testimony, I understand you are President of DLX; is 

that correct? 

Yes, sir, I am. 

Okay, and you and your wife own 100 percent of it; 

right? 

Yes, sir. 

Okay. What does DLX do? What business is it engaged 

in? 

DLX was formed to buy the assets of South-East Coal 

Company out of bankruptcy. It operated those assets 

for approximately two years, and then DLX ceased 

operation and DLX sold the assets that were saleable to 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

various people, and DLX, as far as I know right now, 

own some surface in various counties in the state and 

own some mineral in various counties in the state, 

that's about it, that I know of. 

Okay, and were you always, you and your wife, always 

the only owners of DLX? 

Yes, sir. 

Okay. From the beginning? 

Yes, sir. 

Okay. On Page 3, Lines 2 to 4, you state that you were 

employed by South-East Coal for many years; correct? 

Yes, sir. I was employed with South-East Coal Company 

from approximately 1976 through whenever it shut its 

doors. I think it was in January of '93. 

And were you ever an owner of South-East Coal? 

My grandfather had a Trust for me and I owned, 

Trust, 10.1 percent of South-East Coal Company. 

Whether I was ever the owner, or shares or that, I do 

not know, but I do know that there was a Trust formed 

by my grandfather in which that Trust owned 10.1 per- 

cent of South-East Coal Company. 

Okay, and were you ever an officer of it? 

I do not believe I was ever an officer of South-East 

Coal Company. 

and 

in the 

2 4 9  
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MR. WATTS: 

That's all I have. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Thank you. Mr. FitzGerald? 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Nothing, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

BY 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Mr. Turner? 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

MR. TURNER: 

Mr. LaViers, I do have one question, and I don't want 

to get into the property questions deeply here. 

think it's clear both that you challenge ownership of 

the 80 acres of waste coal area but also the 28 acres 

I 

on which the plant is going to be built even though the 

28 acres is not part of the bankruptcy litigation, but 

I think it's clear that you challenge the ownership of 

that on other grounds. The question I have is, assume, 

for the sake of argument, that it's ultimately 

determined that you do not own the 28 acres, any part 

of the 28 acres, on which the plant is going to be 

constructed but that you do own the 80 acres of the 

waste coal area. Okay? 

Yes, sir. 

How would you have access to that waste coal area? Do 
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you have access other than a road that, I believe, 

currently runs through the 28 acres, or would your 

access have to be through the 28 acre tract? 

A. Well, in bankruptcy court, we've asked for that access, 

but the access can be granted, I guess, basically 

anywhere they want to grant it. 

that it has to be through the 28 acres. I don't know, 

you know. 

mately 3,400 feet long. So, as long as you have access 

to that 3,400 feet somewhere, either the south end, 

north end, or whatever, as long as access is granted, I 

don't have any problem with it. 

I mean, I don't know 

It is - I think the 80 acres is approxi- 

Q. Okay. Thank you. 

MR. TURNER: 

No further questions. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. Let me ask the Board. Does the Board have 

any questions of Mr. LaViers? All right, Mr. 

Collier. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COLLIER: 

Q. We've heard some testimony earlier about whether the 

28 acres, as it's come to be known, is the site for the 

proposed merchant power plant, and the questions have 

been, "NO, we don't understand that that is an issue 

U 251 

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

1s 

2c 

21 

22 

22 

24 

25 

within the bankruptcy action that's pending before 

Judge Lee." 

My understanding is, if you go to the courthouse this 

day, DLX owns, has the deeds, doesn't claim, it owns 

the property outlined in those deeds, and, if you plot 

those deeds, as Richard Hall did on his survey, there 

is a survey map, if you plot those deeds according to 

the way the deeds read, the plant site lies on property 

that I currently own a deed for. 

What is your understanding? 

A. 

Q. Have you undertaken to compare some of the maps 

prepared by ECEP with the Hall survey to see where the 

boundaries are? 

A. Yes, I have. 

MR. WATTS: 

Your Honor, I'm going to rise to object to getting 

into what is clearly the property dispute in this 

case. 

MR. COLLIER: 

All I'm going to do is ask him if he's done it, 

the fact, of course, he has, and I have two 

exhibits that he's prepared and I intend to 

introduce them, and that's the extent of it. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, what are the exhibits? 
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MR. COLLIER: 

They just show - there's a delineation to show an 

overlay between the Hall survey, which has been 

introduced as part of his testimony, and the maps 

that have been supplied by the applicant. The 

applicant has stated, "NO, it's not in there." 

He's a party to the bankruptcy action, and all 

he's saying is, "Yes, it is, and here's just an 

overlay." That's it. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Go  ahead and ask him. I think we need to reserve 

ruling on the exhibits until we see them. 

MR. COLLIER: 

That will be fine. First, if I may approach him, 

I'll ask him if these are the ones he prepared. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Has Mr. Watts seen these maps? 

MR. COLLIER: 

No, but I've got copies that I can hand out, 

if you'd like. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Well, let's let Mr. Watts take a look at them 

while you're - and Mr. FitzGerald and Mr. Turner 

too, if you'd be so kind. 
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MR. COLLIER: 

Yeah. 

panel? 

Would you like me to provide one for the 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

If you have an extra one. 

MR. COLLIER: 

I've got several. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, why don't you let us have a couple of them 

and we'll share them. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Okay. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

Why don't you go ahead and mark these for identi- 

fication and go ahead and question the witness, 

and let's see where we are on this. I'm not sure 

we're going to let these in, but we'll hear what 

you've got to say. 

DLX EXHIBITS 1 and 2 

(MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Mr. Collier, are you ready to proceed? 

MR. COLLIER: 

Yes, sir. 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Have you got these marked for identification? 

MR. COLLIER: 

Yes. The one that says "B" is No. 1, and the 

one marked ''G" is No. 2, or DLX 1 and DLX 2. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

For identification, Connie. 

MR. TURNER: 

Your Honor, which one is DLX 1 and which is DLX 2 ?  

MR. COLLIER: 

is DLX 1. "G" is DLX 2. I1 B I1 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. 

A. Which one do you want me to open up? 

Q. Start with "B." That's been marked as No. 1. 

A. Okay. 

Q. 
A. You want me to explain what? 

Q. What you did to . . . 
A. To prepare this map? 

Q. Yes. How you overlaid this, yes. 

MR. WATTS: 

I just want you to explain to the Board what you did. 

Before the witness answers, I'd just like to state 

for the record this is precisely where we did not 

want to be and where I thought we were not going, 
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which is to have maps showing claims and somebody 

saying, "I own that"; ''NO, you don't. You own 

that." That's what I thought the Board had ruled 

it was not going to do. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Well, . . . 
MR. FITZGERALD: 

Mr. Chairman, if I could wade in the middle of 

this, if I recall, the Order of the Board was that 

you're not going to adjudicate the title dispute, 

but the statement had been made that Fox Trot 

Properties, LLC owns the entire property, the 

620 acres, and that the parties were entitled to 

demonstrate that the title was in dispute, and, to 

the extent that all they're doing is identifying 

the extent to which there is a dispute, I think 

that that is relevant, because, you know, one of 

the contingencies that the applicant has to 

address is, if they can't access these reserves, 

how is that going to change, as we've already seen 

in testimony, the truck traffic, the rail traffic, 

how might it change the impact that this facility 

will have on the adjacent properties, as well as 

the economic impact of it, potentially. So it 

seems to me that, if all they're doing is docu- 

- ~~ 
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menting the extent rather than arguing the merits, 

you know, clearly, who has stronger claim of title 

is something that gets beyond the scope of this 

proceeding, but the extent of the dispute, if 

that's all they're documenting, we certainly have 

no objection and think it is relevant. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. 

MR. WATTS: 

Well, I must say, sir, if this goes the way I 

believe it's going to go, I'm going to have to put 

a witness on to refute what this witness says 

about what the disputed areas are. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, your client has offered maps of various 

kinds, various descriptions, and various dates 

as to boundaries, and certainly it's been 

established that those boundaries are not 

boundaries that were arrived by virtue of a survey 

of a registered land surveyor, and I'm not saying 

that the statute requires that. All I'm saying is 

that that's been established, and I think it's 

certainly appropriate, since your client has 

offered maps of record that tend to establish, in 

your client's opinion, where boundaries are, and 
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who owns what, and who the adjoining boundary 

owners are, and that sort of thing, that it is, at 

the very least, only fair to permit the 

intervenors to do the same thing. Now, certainly 

the Board will take these various maps that have 

been placed of record and give them the weight, if 

any, they are entitled to. It doesn't appear that 

this is a survey by a registered land surveyor 

either. So the Board may not give any of these 

maps any weight. I can't tell you that. That's 

something that we'll have to consider in our 

deliberations. I think that Mr. FitzGerald is 

probably correct that the July Order that we 

entered indicated that this Board will not 

consider or will not render a decision with regard 

to title because we simply don't have juris- 

diction, but it is appropriate, I think, for the 

parties to at least set out before the Board what 

their claims are, especially in light of the maps 

which the applicant has already filed with its 

application and in response to the data requests, 

and so I'm going to permit Mr. Collier to ask Mr. 

LaViers what he wants to ask him about how he 

arrived at whatever he arrived at in this exhibit, 

and certainly, Mr. Watts, if you think that you 
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need to call another witness to address what Mr. 

LaViers has said, I'll permit you to do that. 

MR. WATTS 

Thank you, sir. I just wanted to state my 

objection for the record. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Q. 

A. 

Yes, sir. Thank you very much. Okay. All 

right. Go ahead, Mr. Collier. 

Mr. LaViers, would you please explain what you did and 

how you prepared this exhibit? 

Okay. 

land surveyor. 

the bankruptcy court gave me permission to hire a land 

surveyor, enter the property and survey the land. We 

did that. His name is Richard Hall, and I'm also a 

registered engineer in the state of Kentucky and my 

registration number is 14521. So I do know a littl 

bit about what I'm doing here. We went and we surveyed 

the property in 2001, I believe, and, for the court, 

there's actually two maps back there on the PSC wall 

that's almost identical to this map except they use an 

aerial photograph and I use a map, but I went to 

Whitesburg where Richard Hall lives. 

computer. We plotted our map, our survey, in the same 

scale that this map is in, one inch equals 400 feet. 

The first thing I did was I hired a registered 

By the Order of the bankruptcy court, 

We got on his 
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After we plotted that, I brought that drawing to Lynn 

Blueprint. They ran me a clear copy of it, a clear 

copy of it. I cut it off to where it would fit on this 

map. I lined it up with the railroad, the river, the 

rail marker 230 that's on this map - it's also on my 

map - and it fits extremely well. I then had Lynn 

Blueprint run me copies of this map. Wayne told me to 

get 20 copies, so I had 20 copies, and then, after we 

ran the copies, the yellow line here, all the yellow 

line is is the way the deed is written today. The deed 

is in front of the bankruptcy court. I asked for 

reformation of the deed. In other words, the deed, in 

my personal opinion, could have been written wrong, and 

that is one of the lines - that line is not on this 

map. That reformation line is not on this map, because 

it is not legally in existence yet. The Judge has not 

said that is what it is, but, the way it is right now 

today, these deeds are owned by DLX. We don't claim 

them; they're ours. I have a court Order from the 

Honorable Judge Lee saying that this property is mine, 

and those deeds, to the best of my ability, our 

outlined on this map. I did the exact same thing for 

the Calla Subdivision or the - or my dad's Trust. I 

took a map that was one inch equals 100. It wasn't as 

good a map. I had it shrunk down to one inch equals 

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

E 

I 

1c 

11 

1; 

1: 

1 L  

I! 

1f 

1; 

I t  

l! 

2( 

2' 

2: 

2: 

28 

2 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

400, and I lined it up the best I could on this map, 

and then I had Lynn Blueprint run me copies of the 

clear map, and I have those with me. 

taped onto the map that Lynn Blueprint had them, and I 

have my work copy that I produced these copies with, 

and I will tell you that those two maps back there on 

the wall that I was looking at are virtually identical 

to this map. It has the lines on it. It has 

everything that I've done, and on this map is one inch 

equals 400, and, on the other map that Mr. Collier has, 

I had it blown up, which had to be blown up 800 per- 

cent, and that's why the line is kind of wide on that 

map. 

All right. Mr. LaViers, as to DLX Exhibit 2, which is 

also marked as - it says "G" on that map in the lower 

right-hand corner - did you employ the same procedure 

but at a different scale for this map? 

Yes. I took the line right here, and I went to Lynn 

Blueprint. They scanned in onto their computer and, 

because I had to blow it up 800 percent, it wouldn't 

fit on that map. 

would fit on that map, and I tried to pick out the most 

important portion, but the line on Exhibit G is a 

portion of this line that is on Exhibit B. 

All right. 

I still have them 

So we had to pick out a portion that 
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A. And it was blown up to one inch equals 50 feet. 

Q. Thank you. 

MR. COLLIER: 

I would move for the introduction of DLX 

Exhibit 1. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I'm sorry? 

MR. COLLIER: 

I move for the introduction of DLX Exhibits 1 

and 2. 

MR. WATTS: 

I absolutely object to the entry into the record 

of these two documents. They are intended to 

present to you the merits of the real estate 

dispute, which the Board previously ruled was not 

going to be considered in this proceeding, and 

it's beyond the scope of the proceeding and it's 

improper. 

MR. COLLIER: 

If I might, Your Honor, . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Mr. FitzGerald, do you have a response to that? 

MR. FITZGEFWLD: 

We don't object to the introduction. They don't 

speak to the merits; they speak to the extent of 
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it, which I think is consistent with the Board's 

earlier Order concerning this. So we have no 

objection. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Mr. Turner? 

MR. TURNER: 

It's been my impression all along, Your Honor, 

that what the Board needed was not to rule on 

the merits but simply to be aware of the extent of 

the controversy, and, to the extent that this map 

simply defines the extent of the controversy, I 

believe it's appropriate for that purpose. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

All right. The Board will sustain the motion to 

admit D L X  1 and D L X  2 and make those an exhibit in 

the record to be given the weight to which they 

are entitled . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

Note my objection. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

. . . over the applicant's objection. Thank you, 

Mr. Watts. 

D L X  EXHIBITS 1 and 2 

INTRODUCED 
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CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Anything further, Mr. Collier? 

MR. COLLIER: 

No. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Anything further of this witness by anybody 

Okay . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

Just one second, sir. 

MR. COLLIER: 

I have additional - do I need to file more with 

the Board? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Does she have one already? 

MR. COLLIER: 

She has one. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

That's all we need. 

MR. WATTS: 

I'm going to reserve the right to introduce a 

witness rather than cross examine this witness. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

That's fine. 

MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. 
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EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

I do have one question of you, Mr. LaViers. As I 

understand it, sir, the 28 acres that DLX claims it 

owns is not subject to the bankruptcy proceeding? 

It absolutely is subject to the bankruptcy proceeding. 

It is subject? It's the 80 acres that's not? 

If the Judge does not reform the deeds and leaves 

them as they are printed today in the courthouse, the 

28 acres will be owned by DLX. 

Okay. What about the 80 acres? 

The 80 acres will be owned . . . 
No. Is it subject to the bankruptcy, is my question. 

Yes, it is. 

Both of them are? 

Both these pieces are subject to . . . 
All right. All right. That's all I want to 1 

Okay. 

Okay. Thank you. 

nc J. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

You may step down. Okay, Mr. Collier. 

MR. COLLIER: 

The Trust calls Harry LaViers, Jr. 

WITNESS SWORN 
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BY 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

The witness, HARRY LAVIERS, JR., after having been 

first duly sworn, testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

MR. COLLIER: 

Mr. LaViers, state your name and address, please? 

My name is Harry LaViers. My business address is 

1632 Wild Turkey Court. I'm a resident of the state of 

Florida. 

Are you a Trustee for the Trust created under the Will 

of Maxie LaViers? 

I am. She was my mother. 

All right. Does that Trust own property that is 

involved in this proceeding? 

Yes. 

All right. You have filed direct testimony in this 

matter, have you not? 

Yes. 

And was that testimony prepared by you, at your 

direction, or was reviewed by you and approved? 

Yes. 

Have you reviewed it since then, and do you have any 

additions, corrections that you would like to make to 

it? 

No. I think it's adequate. 

Were I to ask you those same questions today, would you 
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give the same or substantially the same answers in 

response? 

A. Yes. 

MR. COLLIER: 

I move for the introduction. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Thank you, Mr. Collier. Mr. Watts? 

MR. WATTS: 

Thank you, sir. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. WATTS: 

Q. Mr. LaViers, are you testifying for DLX or the LaViers 

Trust? 

A. The LaViers Trust. 

Q. And were you the owner of South-East Coal? 

A. I was the majority owner. 

Q. And who were the other owners? 

A. My children and Consolidation Coal Company. 

Q. Just harking back to your son's testimony, when you say 

your children, do you mean the Trust on their behalf? 

A. No, no. They individually own stock in South-East Coal 

Company. The Trust is on real estate. 

Q. Okay. You son testified that the Trust owned 10.1 per- 

cent, if I recall, of South-East Coal. Did I misunder- 

stand him? 

u 267 

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

I think he owned it directly. 

Is there any litigation pending regarding the claims 

that you have asserted in this case to the Calla 

Subdivision? 

Yes. It's an ongoing case before the bankruptcy court. 

Involving the Calla Subdivision? 

Not just the Calla Subdivision, but the other 

properties that are properties of the Trust. 

Well, I'm specifically asking about the Calla 

Subdivision. 

Yes. 

Is the Trust a party to the bankruptcy proceeding? 

No. 

Well, how could it then have asserted claims in the 

bankruptcy proceeding with respect to the Calla 

Subdivision? 

It didn't. 

You just testified that it did, that they're pending. 

I said that . . . 
CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

I think he said they were in 

know that he said the Trust 

A. I couldn't hear you. 

MR. WATTS: 

My question was specifically 

dispute. I don't 

. .  

in pending 
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litigation. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

A.  

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Why don't you rephrase it. 

It's not a party - the Trust is not a party to the 

bankruptcy proceedings. 

Okay. Is it a party to any other proceedings asserting 

claims with respect to the Calla Subdivision? 

Yes. It is a party, the same as D L X  is. Some of the 

property belongs to D L X ;  some of it belongs to the 

Trust. 

Sir, I'm asking you really a pretty simple question. 

The question is, is the Trust a party to any litigation 

asserting a claim to ownership of the Calla 

Subdivision? 

No. 

Thank you. How about the Sandhill property? Is the 

Trust a party to any litigation asserting a claim to 

ownership of the Sandhill property? 

No. 

Thank you. Now, did South-East Coal own and operate 

the coal washing facility at the site of the proposed 

ECEP project? 

Yes, it did. 

Okay, and what years did it operate? 

Construction started in '78 but probably didn't reach 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A.  

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

completion until around '81, and it operated up until 

the bankruptcy action in Fayette Circuit Court with 

South-East Coal Company and Kentucky Utilities. 

When was the bankruptcy resolved? 

I can't pull a date out of my hand, but it's a matter 

of record. 

Okay, and South-East Coal declared bankruptcy; correct? 

South-East Coal declared bankruptcy when we lost our  

lawsuit with KU. 

And was the coal washing plant and the real estate of 

South-East Coal sold in the bankruptcy to DLX? 

Yes, it was. 

So your company was - were you the majority owner of 

South-East Coal? 

Y e s ,  I was the majority owner. 

So your company was bankrupted and its assets were 

acquired out of the bankruptcy by DLX, which was owned 

by your son; is that correct? 

That's correct. 

MR. WATTS: 

That's all. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Thank you, Mr. Watts. Mr. FitzGerald? 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Just a couple of questions. 
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CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FITZGERALD: 

Q. Mr. LaViers, to your knowledge, after the sale of the 

coal processing plant, was it operated by Kentucky 

Processing Company for a period of time? 

A. Yes, for awhile. 

Q. Okay. Do you recall, roughly, when they ceased active 

coal processing operations on the facility? 

A. Again, I can't pull that out of my hand, but it's a 

matter of record. 

Q. Okay. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

I have no further questions. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Mr. Turner? 

MR. TURNER: 

No questions. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Redirect, Mr. Collier? 

MR. COLLIER: 

I only had rebuttal with respect to the one 

exhibit that has the yellow outline of the 

property. That's all I have. 
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COLLIER: 

Q. Mr. LaViers, if you would, l o o k  at what's been marked 

as DLX Exhibit 1. I believe the Court Reporter . . . 
A. I don't have a copy of it. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Did he have any hand in preparing this? 

MR. COLLIER: 

He was present with his son, Mr. LaViers, Donald 

LaViers, and . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Is it basically going to be the same . . . 
MR. COLLIER: 

It's going to be the same. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Same testimony? 

MR. COLLIER: 

Yes, and if that's . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, I mean, we can . . . 
MR. COLLIER: 

I can ask him. 

Q. Mr. LaViers, you were present when your son testified 

about the preparation of that map, weren't you? 

A. Yes. 
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' Q. Do you agree with his testimony? 

I A- Yes, I do. I was present when all this was done. 

1 Q. Did he locate the Calla Subdivision property, 

I approximately, at your direction? 

' A. He did. 

i MR. COLLIER: 

That's all, Your Honor. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. Thank you. Re . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

We'll offer a witness on this point. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Okay. All right. Does the Board have any 

questions of Mr. LaViers? Okay. Mr. LaViers, 

thank you very much, sir. You may step aside. 

Okay. Mr. Collier, I presume that that completes 

your proof. 

MR. COLLIER: 

Yes. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. Mr. FitzGerald, you're at the plate; not 

on deck, you're at the plate. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

I'd like to call Will Herrick to the stand, 

please. 
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WITNESS SWORN 

The witness, WILLIAM STUYVESANT HERRICK, after 

having been first duly sworn, testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FITZGERALD: 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Would you state your full name and address, please? 

William Stuyvesant Herrick, 4859 Flat Mary Road, 

Campton, Kentucky. 

Mr. Herrick, did you cause eight pages of prefiled 

direct testimony to be prepared and filed in this 

matter ? 

Yes, I did. 

Were I to ask you those questions, would you give the 

same or substantially the same answers today? 

Precisely, with the single exception of Line 5, which 

says, "NO, the actual property is located in Lee 

County." Jinety-five percent of the property is in Lee 

County and five percent is in Wolfe County. 

Okay. Thank you for that clarification. Do you have 

any other changes or additions? 

No, sir. 

Do you affirm and adopt this testimony as your own 

today? 

Yes, I do. 
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MR. FITZGERALD: 

Mr. Chairman, I would move admission of the 

testimony. He's available for cross examination. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Thank you, Mr. FitzGerald. Mr. Watts, do you 

have questions, sir? 

MR. WATTS: 

BY 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

A. 

Yes, sir, I do. Just one moment. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

MR. WATTS: 

Now, on Page 3 of your testimony, there's an answer 

beginning on Line 17 that goes over to the top of the 

next page in which you offer an opinion about whether 

the site for the proposed project is a former coal 

processing facility. Do you see that? 

I do, sir. 

I want to ask you to read something. Well, do you have 

a copy of the Staff's . . . 
I do, not in front of me. 

Okay. Would you mind if I just showed you this and 

asked you to read something from it? And I'll just let 

you confirm that what I'm showing you is from ECEP's 

Responses to the Staff's First Data Request, and I'm 

specifically referring to materials that under Tab 10. 

The bankruptcy, yes. 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. This is in response to the Staff's No. 10. 

Uh-huh. 

Okay, and I'm specifically referring, under that tab, 

to the Corrected Amended Disclosure Statement to 

Accompany Debtor's Amended Plan of Orderly Liquidation 

and Distribution which is in the Kentucky Processing 

Company bankruptcy. Do you see that? 

Yes, I do. 

Have you reviewed this? 

I have scanned this document, yes. 

Okay. I'm turning to Page 18 of the plan, and I would 

ask you to read the two sentences that are listed 

there. They're highlighted in yellow under the heading 

"C. Future Operations.'' Would you read out loud the 

first sentence? 

"The Debtor is now closed, does not anticipate 

reactivation and will have no future operations." 

And the second sentence, which is the second full 

paragraph on that page. 

"Under either scenario, the Debtor will never conduct 

any future operations, but will be construed to be 

defunct. " 

Thank you. 

that document, I'd ask you to confirm for me that the 

Debtor is defined as Kentucky Processing Company. 

Just one more thing. On the first page of 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

The text on this page does say "KENTUCKY PROCESSING 

COMPANY ( ' the Debtor I ) . I' 
Thank you. And this is a minor thing, but I just 

thought I would ask. In both your motion to intervene 

and your direct testimony, you state that your water 

supply, as an individual property owner, is from a lake 

on your property; is that correct? 

Yes, sir. 

You get your potable water from a lake? 

Yes, sir, and I do a fair amount of treatment to it, 

you might can just guess. 

Okay. Thanks. 

MR. WATTS: 

That's all I have. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Thank you, Mr. Watts. 

MR. COLLIER: 

No questions. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Mr. Turner? 

MR. TURNER: 

No questions. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Mr. Collier? 

Does the Board have any questions of Mr. Herrick? 

Redirect, Mr. FitzGerald? 
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MR. FITZGERALD: 

No, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. Thank you, Mr. Herrick. 

MR. COLLIER: 

If Your Honor please, I may have neglected to 

move for the admission of Mr. LaViers, Jr.'s 

testimony. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, that's fine. I appreciate that. It's . . . 
MR. COLLIER: 

I can't recall if I did or didn't. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

It's already filed of record and does not need 

to be formally introduced, but thank you for that. 

MR. COLLIER: 

All right. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Mr. FitzGerald, that's your only witness, isn't 

it? 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Mr. Chairman, yes. I would like to just ask 

a clarifying question. The entirety of the 

document that Mr. Watts had Mr. Herrick read from 

is already of record, I assume. 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yes. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Okay. 

MR. WATTS: 

Yes, it is. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

All right. That's fine. That's all I needed to 

know. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. That concludes 

our case in chief. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Thank you. Do any of the parties wish to cross 

examine a representative of Brighton A & E, Inc., 

the Board's consultant? 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Mr. Chairman, we don't. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Mr. Watts, do you? 

MR. WATTS: 

No, sir, unless somebody else wants to cross and 

raises questions that we have to respond to. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

Okay. No, Mr. FitzGerald and Mr. Collier. I 

presume you don't, Mr. Turner. 
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MR. TURNER: 

No, sir, and I assume their report is already 

in the record so I don't need to move its 

admission. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yes, it is of record. 

MR. TURNER: 

Thank you, sir. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

If not, it will be accepted, but I think it 

already is of record. Does any member of 

the Board wish to question anyone from Brighton? 

Okay. All right. Now, that concludes, I think, 

all the evidence in chief. Now, you had, I 

believe, a witness on rebuttal . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

Yes. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

. . . with regard to the LaViers . . . 
MR. FITZGERALD: 

Could I approach to give her a copy of Mr. 

Herrick's testimony? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yes. 
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MR. WATTS: 

May I have just a moment? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yes. 

MR. WATTS: 

The last thing I want to do is extend this, but 

I would appreciate it if we had just a moment to 

confer. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

That's fine. 

MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Sure. 

MR. WATTS: 

May we leave the courtroom just for . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yeah. Let's take about five minutes to stand 

up and stretch. 

MR. WATTS: 

Okay. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

We'll be off the record. 

MR. WATTS: 

Thanks. 
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OFF THE RECORD 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. We'll be back on the record. Mr. Watts? 

MR. WATTS: 

Yes. Thank you. We'd call Dell Jaggers back 

to the stand, please. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Please understand, Mr. Jaggers, that you're still 

under oath. 

MR. JAGGERS : 

Yes, sir. 

MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. 

WITNESS PREVIOUSLY SWORN 

The witness, DELL JAGGERS, after having been 

previously duly sworn, testified as follows: 

REBUTTAL EXAMINATION 

BY MR. WATTS: 

Q. I'm going to refer you to what I believe is DLX 

Exhibit 1, which is the original version filed with - 

or purports to be the original version of Exhibit B to 

ECEP's application, which was dated, the map was dated, 

5-04-04; correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Okay. Is it, in fact, the map that the company filed, 
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t h a t  ECEP f i l e d ,  w i t h  i t s  a p p l i c a t i o n ?  

A.  A b s o l u t e l y  n o t .  

Q .  A l l  r i g h t ,  and  why do you s a y  t h a t ?  

A.  Because,  upon c l o s e r  r e f l e c t i o n ,  t h e r e ' s  a l o t  more 

added t o  t h i s  map t h a n  j u s t  some ye l low b o u n d a r i e s  on 

h e r e .  

Q .  W e l l ,  l e t ' s  t a l k  a b o u t  t h a t .  Looking a t  t h e  p r o p e r t y  

a l o n g  t h e  r iver,  t h e r e ' s  a s i te ,  t h e  f i r s t  s i t e  t h e r e  

from t h e  - t h e  second q u a d r a n t  from t h e  r i g h t  . . . 
MR. COLLIER: 

Which one i s  he r e f e r r i n g  t o ?  

MR. WATTS: 

I ' m  r e f e r r i n g  t o  DLX E x h i b i t  1. 

MR. COLLIER:  

Q. 

A. 

Q .  

A .  

Q .  

A .  

A l l  r i g h t .  

Now, go o v e r  two q u a d r a n t s  from t h e  uppe r  l e f t - h a n d  

c o r n e r  and  one down. 

Y e s .  

And t h e r e  i s  some l anguage  t h e r e  a b o u t  Kentucky 

P r o c e s s i n g  and  a Deed Book r e f e r e n c e ;  i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

T h a t ' s  c o r r e c t .  

Okay. Was t h a t  on t h e  ECEP map? 

No, i t  w a s  n o t ,  and,  by  t h e  way, my name i s  - o u r  name, 

t h e  company's name, i s  s t i l l  on t h e  c o r n e r  of t h i s ,  

CBC E n g i n e e r s  & A f f i l i a t e s ,  LLC. 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

And why is that significant? 

Because I did not prepare this map nor was it prepared 

under my direction. 

Okay. Now, moving down towards the southwest, there's 

a reference to South-East Coal and a Deed Book 

reference. Did you put that there? 

No, I did not. 

So that's been added? 

Yes. 

Now, below that to the left, there's a number that's 

supposed to, I guess, represent square footage and 

acreage. Did you put that on the map? 

No, I did not. 

Okay. So that's been added? 

Yes, it has. 

Thank you. Now, below that to the left, there's 

reference to South-East Coal and a Deed Book ref 

Did you put that there? 

No, I did not. 

I see. So that's been added? 

Correct. 

All right. Now, if you go below the reference to 

a 

re 

"Power Plant'' there with the squiggly arrow, there's a 

reference to - there's a black circle and some language 

there. Do you see that? 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q .  

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

What is that? Well, first of all, did you put that 

there? 

No. 

All right. So that's been added? 

Yes. 

All right. Now, move to the right. Move up to the 

northeast of that, I guess, into the area where the 

power plant is proposed to be located. Do you see 

that? 

Yes. 

Do you see the language that says "South-East" there 

and there's kind of a black area? 

Yes. 

Did you p 

No. 

All right 

Yes. 

Move down 

reference 

!t that there? 

So that's been added? 

below that to the right. Do you see the 

to Kentucky Processing and another Deed Book 

reference? 

Yes. 

Did you put that there? 

No, sir. 

Has that been added? 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

All right. Move over to the right, and there's a 

reference to a railroad mile marker. Do you see that? 

Yes. 

Did you put that there? 

No. 

Move above that. Do you see where it says - I can't 

quite read it - "Point" either " 5 "  or " 3 " ?  Do you see 

that? 

A triangle. 

There's a triangle - sorry - a black triangle. 

Yes. I don't know what it says, "Point" something. 

Did you put that there? 

No. 

All right. 

right center of the page from the right-hand corner, 

move over two quadrants and then down one quadrant. 

Do you see where it says "Fox Trot Properties, LLC"? 

Yes. 

Okay, and, under that, there's some yellow lines. 

Yes. 

Now, there are some markings there that look like lot 

lines. Do you see that? 

Yes. 

Okay. Did you put that there? 

Now, moving up towards the area up sort of 

2 8 6  
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A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

No. 

So that's been added? 

Yes. 

And that would be on both sides of Witt Road over to 

Coal Wash Road? 

Correct. 

All right, and, above that, there's a road indicated, 

moving up to the left, and then some other lines up 

there. Do you see that? 

Yes. 

Did you put that in? 

No. 

That's been added? 

Yes. 

And then all around that area up there is lines which 

appear to be some sort of a rectangle or rectangular- 

looking structure - excuse me - figure. Do you see 

that? 

Yes. 

Is any of that there by your direction? 

No, it is not. 

Q. Okay. Do you have a copy of Exhibit B with you? 

A. I can get one. 

MR. TIRONE: 

May I approach? 
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CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

C e r t a i n l y .  

MR. WATTS: 

May I approach?  I need  t o  j u s t  l o o k  a t  t h i s  

a second.  

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A.  

Q .  

A.  

Q. 

C e r t a i n l y .  

Okay. The area t o  t h e  r i g h t  - w e l l ,  l e t ' s  go down 

t h r e e  q u a d r a n t s  from t h e  t o p ,  from t h e  t o p  r i g h t ,  and  

t h e r e ' s  a q u a d r a n t  t h a t ,  on E x h i b i t  B,  shows a number 

and  so  f o r t h .  Has some o f  of l o t s  o r  houses  and  r o a d s ,  

t h a t  been  removed? 

Y e s ,  i t  h a s .  

Okay. D i d  you do t h a t ?  

No, I d id  n o t .  

A l l  r i g h t ,  and  t h a t  goes  a l l  t h e  way up Kentucky 89, 

does  it n o t ,  t h e  removal of -he t h i n g s  t h a t  were on 

your  map? 

I t  l o o k s  l i k e ,  and, of  c o u r s e ,  I h a v e n ' t  had a chance  

t o  review a l l  t h i s  map, because  t h i s  j u s t  came today ,  

b u t  it a p p e a r s  t h a t  a l l  of t h e  houses  up a l o n g  89 and  

Stump Road and  W i t t  Road and  a l l  of  t h o s e  have  been  

removed. 

A l l  r i g h t  . . . 
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MR. FITZGERALD: 

I'm sorry. 

alleging - I'm looking at the original that 

you all supplied me, and there are no houses and 

things, and I'm looking at the map that he 

supplied today and there are. So I'd love to know 

which map we're talking about. The one that I 

have is the one that you supplied to the - filed 

with the Board, dated 7-01-04, which is marked as 

Exhibit B. 

Can we clarify which map you are 

OFF THE RECORD 

MR. WATTS: 

The difference is this, Mr. FitzGerald. 

we've been referring to as the company's Exhibit B 

is dated May 4, 2004, which was filed as Exhibit B 

with the application. 

The map 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Okay. You also supplied an Exhibit B dated 

7-01-04 . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

Correct. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

. . . which is the site boundaries. 
MR. WATTS: 

Which was in response to Staff Data Request 
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No. 10. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

So you're using the more dated version or the 

more accurate version? Which version are you 

referring to? 

MR. WATTS 

If you look at DLX Exhibit 1, the date that is 

shown down there is May 4, 2004. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Okay. So they used the older exhibit, and that's 

what you're referring to? 

MR. WATTS: 

That's correct. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Okay. I'm sorry. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

That's as clear as mud to me. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Mr. Chairman, I don't mean to cut this short at 

ten to six in the evening, but I think everyone 

will stipulate that there's some additions that 

were - I mean, the testimony was they put an 

overlay on them and they marked where the South- 

East properties were. 

to be differences between what they supplied. 

So obviously there's going 
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We're a l l  q u i t e  capable o f  t a k i n g  t h e  maps and  

o v e r l a y i n g  them and see what t h e  d i f f e r e n c e s  are .  

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

W e l l ,  I . . . 
MR. FITZGERALD: 

And s o  I d o n ' t  mean t o  c u t  s h o r t  your  r e b u t t a l  

w i t n e s s ,  b u t  . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

W e l l ,  a c t u a l l y ,  you won ' t  do t h a t .  

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Good. I mean, I ' d  l o v e  t o  know where i t ' s  g o i n g ,  

though,  because  w e  can  o b v i o u s l y  compare t h e  two 

maps and  see t h a t  t h e r e  are  d i f f e r e n c e s ,  and  I 

t h i n k  everyone  w i l l  s t i p u l a t e  t h a t .  

MR. WATTS: 

W e l l ,  I wanted t o  p o i n t  o u t  f o r  t h e  r e c o r d  

t h e  t h i n g s  t h a t  have been  added t o  t h i s  map by  M r .  

C o l l i e r ' s  c l i e n t s ,  because  t h e  map h a s  been  

changed s i g n i f i c a n t l y .  I t  i s  n o t  t h e  map t h a t  t h e  

company f i l e d  - excuse  m e  - t h a t  ECEP f i l e d  w i t h  

t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n ,  and  I want t h e  r e c o r d  t o  be 

a b s o l u t e l y  c lear  a b o u t  t h a t .  

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

And I t h i n k  . . . 
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MR. FITZGERALD: 

Well, Mr. Chairman, I think the record reflects 

the two documents are there, and I do not see a 

whit of difference - no offense to Witt Road - 

between the boundaries of the different 

properties. There obviously have been some 

additional things regarding where South-East 

believes they own property or DLX does, and those 

are of record. 

going through this exhaustive . . . 
So I don't understand why we're 

MR. WATTS: 

Mr. Chairman, I'm entitled to put my witness on, 

am I not? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

You are. 

MR. WATTS: 

I argued thr ut this hearing against exactly 

this development, exactly where we are. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Well, I think probably you need to stand down 

just a little bit, Mr. Watts. The Board is 

entirely aware of what your argument has been and, 

as presiding officer of the Board, I've tried my 

best to be as fair as a I possibly could and issue 

rulings in a fair manner, and, if the parties 
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don't agree with that, that's certainly your 

right, and that's the reason that we have leave tc 

go to Circuit Court. With regard to Mr. Fitz- 

Gerald's objection, I think his objection merely 

goes to the fact that everyone recognizes that 

there are changes. Certainly, if you want to go 

over those changes, I'm going to permit you to do 

that . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

I would ask you to do it in as speedy a manner 

as you can without - and I don't want to cut you 

off. 

you think you need, but certainly we can look at 

the maps and tell that there are substantial 

differences with regard to what's been offered by 

Mr. LaViers and what your client offered 

previously in support of the application, and so, 

if you would, just go on and put your witness on, 

but let's try to move on, if we can. 

I want to give you as much due process as 

?IR. WATTS: 

Thank you. 

what we've established is a series of changes that 

go far beyond what Mr. LaViers said were made to 

I'd like to state for the record that 
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the map. That's important from my perspective. I 

also am going to state an objection to the counsel 

who just spoke to you attempting to testify as to 

what this map means. He can do that on brief. 

That's fine. He can make legal arguments. It's 

not appropriate at this time. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Yes, sir. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Mr. Chairman, just to preserve the record, I was 

merely pointing out that everyone can read the 

maps and see the changes . . . 
CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I understand. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

. . . without going through the changes seriatim 
in a very plodding manner. 

apologize if I appeared to be testifying. 

not intending to do so. 

So I apologize if I 

I was 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I understand. I didn't take it that, but 

certainly Mr. Watts is correct in pointing that 

out to me. Go ahead, Mr. Watts. 

MR. WATTS: 

Thank you. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

2 .  

YR . 

Now, referring to the property that's primarily in the 

second quadrant down . . . 
Which map are we on now? 

1. I'm on DLX 

Okay. 

And I'm 10' king - do you see the yellow lines that are 

around Witt Road there? 

Yes. 

All right, and it's my understanding that the LaViers 

interests are claiming title to those or ownership 

interest of some kind in those, and they call that the 

Calla Subdivision. 

Yes. 

Do you understand that? 

Now, did you make an investigation or you or CBC make 

an investigation of the deeds in the Estill County 

Clerk's Office to determine whether or not the LaViers 

Trust, in fact, owns that property? 

Yes. 

And what did you find? 

COLLIER: 

Objection. Your Honor, they testified previously 

they just looked at these but not for the purpose 

of determining title, and I was not permitted to 

go into that, and now he's . . . 
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with respect to 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Well, reask the question. 

Q. What did you find in the Clerk's Offic 

the ownership of this property? 

MR. COLLIER: 

Objection as to an opinion as to ownership. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Well, I'm going to sustain the objection. I 

think it's - he indicated that he didn't go into 

the deed room and search the title, and that's not 

an issue in this case. This Board is not going to 

consider who has title to this property, plain and 

simple. 

MR. WATTS: 

Q. 

A. 

2 .  

4. 

2. 

Thank you, sir. 

What does the PVA map show with respect to this 

property? 

It does not show that as - ownership is shown on this 

map. 

What does it show? 

I'd have to pull out the other map with the adjacent 

property owners shown on it. 

Processing. 

Okay. 

that the yellow lines - well, to testify that the 

It shows as Kentucky 

Now, I understood Mr. Donnie LaViers to testify 
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I 'n 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
MR. 

yellow lines shown in the portion of the property - 

on DLX Exhibit 1 - represent property that they have 

claimed an ownership in in the bankruptcy court. 

you understand that? 

Say that again for me, please. 

Sure. 

to the yellow lines in the bend of the river of the 

Kentucky River. 

Yes. 

Do you see that? 

Yes. 

Now, I understood Mr. Donnie LaViers to testify that 

those yellow lines refer to property that DLX claims ir 

the bankruptcy proceeding is owned by DLX. 

understand that? 

That's what I heard him say. 

Is that correct? 

Did 

I'm referring not to the Calla Subdivision but 

Do you 

COLLIER: 

Objection if he's going to legal title again. 

:HAIRMAN G O S S :  

Well, I think your client has indicated that he 

believes that DLX owns it. I'm going to permit 

this witness to testify as to what he believes, 

but we're not going to go any further than that. 

1. And the problem I had earlier with the questioning when 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

2 .  

YlR . 

these maps were first presented to me was that the 

property boundary that I have always seen and has been 

explained to me as being under dispute is not at all 

represented by what's on this map. 

By "under dispute," do you mean in the bankruptcy 

proceeding? 

Yes. 

All right, and can you explain what you mean? 

I mean that the boundary expands out further in an 

easterly direction than what was under dispute. 

was under dispute has always been referred to as the 

river refuse pile, and this goes way out beyond the 

river refuse pile. 

And what's the effect of it going to the east of the 

line that you understand to be the right line? 

What 

COLLIER:  

Your Honor, if I might, I don't know if it's an 

objection, but I had gotten into this, and I 

wasn't intending to get into something that was 

attorney/client, but it occurred to me that his 

testimony was he was told by a lawyer, and, if 

they open the door, then I want to ask questions 

about it, and they may not intend to get into 

something that counsel said . . . 
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CHAIRMAN GOSS:  

W e l l ,  . . . 
MR. COLLIER:  

. . . and I h a d n ' t  i n t e n d e d  t o  go t h e r e  e i t h e r ,  

b u t  . . . 
MR. WATTS: 

I c e r t a i n l y  d o n ' t  i n t e n d  t o  do t h a t .  

MR. COLLIER:  

Okay. 

CHAIRMAN G O S S :  

Q. 

A.  

Q. 

A. 

1. 

G o  ahead  and answer t h e  q u e s t i o n .  

Can you answer t h e  q u e s t i o n  w i t h o u t  r e f e r r i n g  t o  

c o u n s e l ?  

And your  q u e s t i o n  a g a i n ?  

The q u e s t i o n  was, you t e s t i f i e d  j u s t  a moment ago  t h a t  

t h e  boundary goes  s u b s t a n t i a l l y  t o  t h e  eas t  o f  where 

you u n d e r s t o o d  t h  boundary t o  be. By "boundary ,"  I 

mean t h e  d i s p u t e d  boundary,  t h e  boundary  t h a t ' s  i n  

d i s p u t e  i n  t h e  bankrup tcy  case.  

I t  goes  beyond t h a t  on two t h i n g s .  

t h a t  I have  p r e v i o u s l y  s e e n  and  a l s o  t h e  map t h a t  t h e y  

r e p r e s e n t  as t h e  R i c h a r d  H a l l  boundary,  

boundary,  are  n o t  t h e  same as  t h i s  one t h a t ' s  p l o t t e d  

on t h i s  map a t  a l l .  

And d o e s  t h e  e f fec t  o f  t h a t  i n c l u d e  on - o r  how d o e s  

Any o f  t h e  maps 

s u r v e y  
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

the difference between the yellow line, this boundary 

on this map, and the Hall boundary, how does that 

relate to the location of where the proposed power 

generation facility would be? 

The one that's on the disputed boundary or the Hall 

survey tract follows the refuse pile. This one extend: 

all the way out into where Kentucky Processing operatec 

their coal preparation facility for years and where the 

proposed power plant is actually purported or planned 

to be constructed. 

And if it, in fact, followed the Hall survey, would the 

area include the proposed site for the power generation 

facility? 

No. 

I'm sorry? 

No, it would not. 

Do you have any comment bout including the name block 

of your company on this map, DLX l? 

Yes, I do. 

What is it? 

That I want it at least known for sure by the Board 

that we did not have - CBC Engineers & Affiliates was 

not associated with the preparation of this map and, 

without having the chance to look at it in detail, you 

know, I'm not even sure that the lengthy process we 
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went through a minute ago covered all of the areas of 

discrepancy. 

Q. Thank you. 

MR. WATTS: 

That's all. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Thank you, Mr. Watts. 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Nothing, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. Mr. Collier? 

MR. COLLIER: 

No questions. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Mr. Turner? 

MR. TURNER: 

No questions. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. Mr. FitzGerald? 

Thank you. 

All right. 

Mr. Jaggers? Okay. Thank you, Mr. Jaggers. 

Thank you very much, sir. Anything further to 

take up before we get into a couple of house- 

keeping matters with regard to briefs and 

transcripts? Okay. Let me fold this up, and 

let's talk about that issue, and then we'll 

Does the Board have any questions of 
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adjourn. 

Sewell, during the break, 

thought that she could have the transcript 

completed by a week from tomorrow or possibly the 

day after that, which would put us to the 1st of 

September, 1st or 2nd of September, 

data requests that are due also the 2nd of 

September, seven days from today. 

Mr. Turner? 

Speaking to the Court Reporter, Ms. 

she indicated that she 

and we have 

Is that right, 

MR. TURNER: 

Well, did you say five days earlier? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

I think I said seven. 

vlR. TURNER: 

Okay. That's fine. 

:HAIRMAN GOSS: 

Is that the 2nd, SeF-enaer 2nd? 

I gave you folks, or did I give you a date on data 

re quests ? 

Is that the date 

[R. FITZGERALD: 

It was August. 

HAIRMAN GOSS: 

Oh, August 31st. So I did say five days. 

R. TURNER: 

Seven days would be August 31. 

302 

CONNIE SEWELL 
COURT REPORTER 

1705 SOUTH BENSON ROAD 
FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

(502) 875-4272 



1 

1 

1: 

1: 

11 

l! 

1f 

1; 

1E 

15 

2c 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Okay. Does anybody f o r e s e e  h a v i n g  a problem 

g e t t i n g  r e s p o n s e s  t o  data r e q u e s t s  b y  August  

I s a id  t h a t  a t  t h e  b e g i n n i n g  o f  t h e  h e a r i n g  

s t  

a n d  now we're e i g h t  h o u r s  l a t e r ,  and  I j u s t  wonde 

if - okay,  I d o n ' t  h e a r  any  o b j e c t i o n .  So w e ' l l  

s a y  data  r e q u e s t s  due  b y  August 31st. 

c a n  get  t h e  t r a n s c r i p t  b y  t h e  1st o r  2nd o f  

September. L e t ' s  s a y  t h e  2nd, and  you f o l k s  w i l l  

n eed  t o  work o u t  your  a r r angemen t s  w i t h  M s .  Sewel.  

w i t h  regard t o  hav ing  t h a t  Fed-Exed t o  you o r  

whatever  t h e  q u i c k e s t  method i s .  

d i s c u s s e d  br ie fs  b e i n g  due  on t h e  

September,  which gets u s  beyond t h e  Labor  Day 

weekend, and ,  i n  f ac t ,  pas t  t h e  n e x t  weekend, and  

t h e  1 3 t h  f a l l s  on a Monday. 

a p p r o x i m a t e l y  1 0  o r  11 d a y s  f o l l o w i n g  receipt  of 

t h e  t r a n s c r i p t  t o  w r i t e  t h e  b r i e f .  

W e  t h i n k  w 

W e  t h e n  

1 3 t h  o f  

So t h a t  g ives  you 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

S imul t aneous  b r i e f s ,  M r .  Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

S imul t aneous  b r ie fs ,  y e s ,  s i r .  

YR. FITZGERALD: 

C e r t a i n l y .  
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MR. TURNER: 

And one round. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

And one round. 

briefs. 

No reply briefs or responsive 

MR. FITZGERALD: 

Absolutely. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

Does anybody have a problem with briefs due 

September 13th? 

MR. COLLIER: 

No. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

So I'm changing that from the 7th of September to 

the 13th of September in light of the length of 

the hearing and the necessity to get the 

transcript out to you, and then we have a 

statutory deadline of the 12th of October? 

MR. TURNER: 

Yes , sir. 

CHAIRMAN GOSS: 

So that gives the Board a little less than a month 

to meet, decide the case, and issue a written 

decision. All right. Does anybody have any 

objections or any problems that you anticipate 
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with any of these dates that I've given you? All 

right. Very good. Hearing none, we'll assume 

those dates are okay with everyone. 

other matters to take up before we conclude? I 

want to thank everybody for representing their 

clients zealously. I appreciate very much your 

attention and your consideration to the Board, 

and, if there's nothing further, we'll go o f f  the 

record. 

Are there any 

OFF THE RECORD 

HEARING ADJOURNED 

FURTHER THE WITNESSES SAITH NOT 
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STATE OF KENTUCKY 

COUNTY OF FRANKLIN 

I, Connie Sewell, the undersigned Notary Public, in 

and for the State of Kentucky at Large, do hereby 

cer ify the foregoing transcript is a complete and 

accurate transcript, to the best of my ability, of the 

hearing taken down by me in this matter, as styled on 

the first page of this transcript; that said hearing was 

first taken down by me in shorthand and mechanically 

recorded and later transcribed by me and under my 

supervision; that the witnesses were first duly sworn 

before testifying. 

My commission will expire November 19, 2005. 

Given under my hand at Frankfort, Kentucky, this th 

30th day of August 30, 2004. 

I\ 

/- c&--.Q d&&&P 
Connie Sewell, Notary Public 
State of Kentucky at- Large 
1705 South Benson Road 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 
Phone: (502) 875-4272 
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